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Number of new users
¥IERAF

12,358,100 — 22 .
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEREBERE

Revenue

A

2016

70,400

2017

88,706

2018

105,470

2019 101,794

2020

109,251

Earnings per share (Basic)
BRERN (EX)

2016 [ 825

2017 58.97

2018 57.41

2019 66.71

2020 70.02
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Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

R B RRF RGBT

2016 . 606

Dividend per share
BREE

2016 I 6.5

2017 . 21.0
2018 [ 230
2019 [ 263

2020 234.67



Sales volume of natural gas

RARHEE

Unit: 100 million cubic metres
B B K

2016

2017 188

2018 220

2019

2020 378

LNG gasification, entrucking and processing volume

LNGR 1t - ZEEMIMIE

Unit: 100 million cubic metres
B B K

2016

2017 160

2018

228

2019 160

2020 166

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEREBRE

Sales volume of LPG
LPGSHEE

Unit: 10,000 tonnes

B -

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

e

638

658

700

607

521

Equity sales volume of crude oil
FohmEREER

Unit: 10,000 barrels
s

EhE

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

1,522

1,306

1,327
1,354

1,219

RERERAR —S-SF5EERE 3



FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEBEREBRE

Currency unit: Renminbi million BB AREBET
2020 2019 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZEF ZE-NF ZT-NEF ZT-)N\F ZT—+tF ZT—RF
(restated) (unrestated) (unrestated) (unrestated) (unrestated)
(ZH) (REH) (REH) (REH) (KREF)
For the year ended BZ+-A=+-8H note 9 note 10 note 10 note 10 note 10
31 December HEE fif &9 FigzE10 Fig5E10 ftzE10 fig #E10
Revenue and profit U A B2 35 Fl
Revenue A 109,251 101,794 113,313 105,470 88,706 70,400
Profit before income tax BRATETE AR A
expense 8,107 7,014 13,645 11,985 11,480 6,291
Core profit before income tax KPS 5 & F Al
expense 1 BOLSEF 0 7,562 7,797 14,427 13,279 11,659 10,618
Profit for the year £ Py ) 9,732 9,571 9,571 8,213 7,049 3,001
Profit for the year attributable to 7722 7] f% R
owners of the Company JE {6 & F 6,063 5,551 5,551 4,634 4,760 666
- continuing operations - BEREER 3,580 2,423 - - - -
- discontinued operations - BRIERE
REXT 2,483 3,128 - - - -
Core profit attributable to owners 7872 &) % 5 fE 15
of the Company (2 %o F 02 5,506 6,252 6,252 5,885 4,906 4,279
- continuing operations - BECEER 3,022 3,124 - - - -
- discontinued operations -BRIEHE
REX 2,484 3,128 - - - -
Adjusted earnings before BARMBRAE
interest, taxes, depreciation BE-HER
and amortisation (EBITDA) 19k 84 A & 7
(EBITDA) 3 12,342 12,406 21,491 20,303 18,244 16,660
Assets and liabilities EEHARE
Non-current assets ERBEE 81,145 118,247 118,247 109,930 107,663 99,711
Current assets RBEE 73,843 29,650 29,650 30,657 32,895 29,223
Non-current liabilities ERHaE 25,868 29,415 29,415 31,352 35,482 22,099
Current liabilities mEBAE 44,593 39,297 39,297 39,141 39,451 44,940
Net assets BEFHE 84,527 79,185 79,185 70,094 65,625 61,895
Capital and reserve A< B i
Share capital A 7 71 71 65 65 65
Reserve 5 21,956 21,433 21,438 17,277 14,680 15,951
Equity attributable to owners of 77 &) f% B fE (5 # 245
the Company 53,584 49,988 49,988 42,704 40,025 37,852
Non-controlling interests IR 30,943 29,197 29,197 27,390 25,600 24,043
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREBERE

Increase/
2020 2019 (Decrease)
—EDEE ZT-NF #WORD)

For the year ended BZ+=-HA=+-—H (restated)

31 December IHEE (E%))

Financial indicators BKEER

Net profit margin 5‘#’**‘] M 5.30% 4.53% 0.77

Return on total assets (ROA) @ 42 & 7= [0 7k 3= (ROA)® 5.48% 4.71% 0.77

Return on capital employed (ROCE) © ””éﬁ@#&f?(ROCE) 11.12% 11.54% (0.42)

Liabilities-to-Adjusted EBITDA ratio @ B &% %%uﬂ%z EBITDA1 gy« 4.87 4.62 0.25

Debts-to-net assets ratio © FEEREBEX 33.52% 44.35% (10.83)

Gearing ratio © BREBEX O 25.11% 30.72% (5.61)

Debts-to-assets ratio BEEBBEE O 18.28% 23.74% (5.46)

Average finance cost © FHEE KA © 3.68% 4.14% (0.46)

Earnings per share (Basic) (RMB cent) &% & F| (EA)(A R H) 70.02 66.71

— continuing operations - BEEEXG 41.34 29.12
- discontinued operations -BERIEFECEXER 28.68 37.59
Dividend per share (RMB cent) EERRE(ARE D) 234.67 26.30
~ final - RE 21.01 26.30
- special - F 5l 213.66 -

Dividend payout ratio K B L 30.01% 39.42%

Notes: BfsE: N ~

) Net profit margin is profit for the year from continuing operations divided by (1) FREERERELCEEBFRNRTBRFELE
revenue from continuing operations. EHUA » _ y N

@) Return on total assets is profit for the year from continuing operations divided  (2) A8 A 0] ¥R 5 5 8 AT R RS O 9 s R BR AR
by average total assets from continuing operations. REXFFHAEMRE - o

@3) Return on capital employed is the ratio of profit before income tax expense  (3) S ENCEIE S h ok & i&“%%ﬂ BERMIEMNA
and interest from continuing operations divided by total assets less current FRBECEEBREERTBAR -
liabilities from continuing operations. . -

(4) Liabilities-to-Adjusted EBITDA ratio is the ratio of total liabilities from continuing ~ (4) BEH QT BEBTDAG IR AR EXHEE
operations divided by adjusted EBITDA. ERRAFENE  BiE - ERBHEAET -

(6)  Debts-to-net assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings ~ (5)  FEAEBREEETLMEEREEHE 2 MK
and lease liabilities divided by total equity. Mtk o ‘

6) Gearing ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings, and lease  (6) ERRERIESEEEAMERE MR
liabilities divided by the sum of total equity, interest-bearing borrowings and Em AEEERASEAE M-
lease liability.

(7)  Debts-to-assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings (7)) EBEEAGEXEFISEERABEREIMEIAR
and lease liabilities divided by total assets. BE> . N

(8)  Average finance cost is the ratio of aggregated amount of each category of  (8) FIHE ’éfﬁkzli?é%ﬁiﬁﬂﬁgﬁkzﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ ¥R
borrowing multiply by its interest rate divided by the total borrowing from EEBREELG - REME -
continuing operations. o o

(99  Due to certain Group’s businesses are classified as discontinued operations (9 HR-_T_ZEAREELHRBESBRAER
in 2020. The financial information of the Group has been restated. IR B REETR - ARENMBARNCES o

(10)  The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the  (10) ASBEMBENAREELEDKILFEEE
potential disposal of discontinued operations as the directors consider that RGETET  RAREER/AREEINOHM
the unrestated financial information is more appropriate for year-on-year BENMEHARLLEBEARNEEREKEENE b
comparison of the change in the Group’s business operation. D 3 N 5 )

(1) Core profit before income tax expense is defined as profit before income (1) FRFT15 %% & A A 20 ) 7 ETREDE BE
tax expense excluding impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, Kot - A E - AR B At i R IR
intangible assets, accounts and other receivables and exchange gain/loss. 5)@2%@5@&@%%*/@5 B2 BRETBHE AA]

SEF| o

(12 Core profit attributable to owners of the Company is defined as profit — (12) AR E A 008 M I T B AR RE
attributable to owners of the Company excluding impairment losses on BIEZME  BERSEE BTEE - BREE
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, accounts and other R B FL A 8 MR TR (L S 18 % BB S M s S 4R
receivables and exchange gain/loss attributable to owners of the Company MEBABRBEEE ARG REEMLEF -
and its related tax effect. -

(13)  Adjusted EBITDA is defined as profit before income tax expense from  (13) ALFTHEMGRFS - BiIE - TER B HEABFIET
continuing operations, excluding impairment loss on property, plant and BREYE BELRBREBE BREER
equipment, impairment loss on intangible assets, impairment loss on accounts 1B 598~ AR AR R L A R MR IR Rl (S 9
and other receivables, exchange gain/loss, interest and depreciation, depletion IE)EMEEE/EE BFEURITE - BREKEH
and amortisation. CREEEERG TSR E AR -

EmRAERAT —2-SFEFERE 5



FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEREBRE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

“E-8F “EF-NF “E-\F -F—tF —Z-xf

(restated)

(£7))

For the year ended BZE+-A=1t-H note 1

31 December HEE B 71
Sales volume of products ERHER

City gas W R 274 200 147 118 92

CNG CNG 23 29 26 26 25

LNG LNG 78 48 42 38 29

Others Hit 3 3 5 6 6

Sales volume of natural gas XAREEE

(100 million cubic metres) (B HX) 378 280 220 188 152
Sales volume of LPG LPGHEE

(10,000 tonnes) (E8) 521 607 700 658 638
Stations in operation BEZEUE

CNG stations CNGh 562 562 561 543 540

LNG stations LNG 615 612 609 603 680

Sales volume of retail gas

& 55 =
AAREERE
Unit: 100 million cubic metres
BA B AR

© industrial users
T¥AF

commercial users

[ES N
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() residential users
EBERAF

O CNG/LNG stations
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

BEREBRE
2020 2019 2019 2018 2017 2016
SECEE ZZ-NF ZE-NF ZT-)\F ZT—tF ZT—RF
(restated) (restated)
(7)) (E51)
For the year ended BEZ+=-A=+-H note 2 note 1
31 December tEE fif 52 P 51
LNG gasification volume INGRIL £ 113 122 162 189 128 66
LNG entrucking volume INGEEE 29 18 24 23 21 9
LNG processing volume INGINIE 24 20 20 16 1 5
LNG processing and terminal LNGII TE#E&
(100 million cubic metres) (BZAK) 166 160 206 228 160 80
Plants and terminals in BEE T RAE R
operation
LNG plants LNG I 15 14 14 15 14 12
LNG terminals LNG# 45 uh 2 2 3 3 3 3
Equity sales volume of BHESHER
crude oil
(10,000 barrels) (B1) 1,219 1,354 1,354 1,327 1,306 1,522
Natural gas pipeline XARE®R
transmission
(100 million cubic metres) (B AXK) - - 556 529 47 357
Notes: B 5
(1) Due to business combinations under common control completed in 2017, (1) AR~ FEEREH TS

the operating information of the Group has been restated to include the

operation data of Jingtang Co.

2) Due to certain Group’s businesses are classified as discontinued
operations in 2020. The financial information of the Group has been

restated.

ARBNELANDES  UBERELR
0B A -

@ HRZE_TEAEEFOHEBEHIEARDS

RIEKBERZER ARENMBENEE
5l o

ERERARAT —S-25F5EHRE 7



LOCATIONS OF NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

OO

K
CNG station and LNG LNG Plant in LNG Terminal in
Province station in operation operation operation
#» BESCNGIERINGES EEZINGIE CEZINGEERIS
Xinjiang %758 209 2 -
Hebei 54t 227 2 1
Shandong L& 144 1 -
Henan 577 41 - -
Shanxi 117 10 1 =
Sichuan E9)I] 67 2 =
Inner Mongolia A% & 34 1 -
Jiangsu ST & 71 = 1
Liaoning % 44 1 =
Shaanxi BREG 20 1 -
. Tianjin X3# 5 = =
Hubei 4t 43 1 .
Ningxia ZE 29 = =
Guangdong B3R 19 1 -
Hainan /gRg 2 - -
Guizhou &M 14 = -
Yunnan £ 16 - -
Zhejiang HiiT 17 - -
Gansu HE 26 1 =
Qinghai &% 5 1 =
. Beijing b3 32 = =
Jilin F#K 4 - -
Shanghai L& 7 = =
Anhui Z# 9 = =
Hunan #5& 23 = =
Guangxi FE7G 8 = =
Heilongjiang B 88T 15 = =
Jiangxi L7 5 = =
Fujian B2 6 = =
. Tibet 7o 3 - -
1,177 15 2
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LOCATIONS OF NATURAL GAS BUSINESS
RARREBZ DM
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LOCATIONS OF CRUDE OIL EXPLORATION AND
PRODUCTION BUSINESS
FmBRREERE D E

o

COUNTRIES
{8 B =

7

PROJECTS

(EREYS
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LOCATIONS OF CRUDE OIL EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION BUSINESS
FhEERREEREDHE

-
/

~ ¥ T
v /}
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Fu Bin {3t
Chairman and Executive Director
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE

With an aim to facilitate high-quality development, the Group will
vigorously push forward the implementation of the five strategies of
“innovation, green operation, market, capital and low cost”.

To promote green development, the Group will smooth the different
business strategy, and expedite its transformation from a natural gas

distributor into an internationally renowned and China’s first-class
integrated green energy provider.

FEERUSEERRATE XOER[AIH e

BA A RHHE-

EReFRRE 28 HEB B

Pﬁﬁﬂ% W /)Ib:iﬁ%@

Dear shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), the revenue
of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) reached RMB109,251 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB7,457 million or 7.33%;
the profit before income tax was RMB8,107 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of RMB1,093 million or 15.58%; the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB6,063 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB512 million or 9.22%.
Earnings per share (basic) was RMB70.02 cents. Under the
challenging environment of the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic
and the sharp decline in international oil prices, the Group made
great efforts to explore the natural gas end-user market. The sales
volume of natural gas for the Year reached 37,763 million cubic
metres, representing a year-on-year increase of 9,734 million cubic
metres or 34.73%, recording a profit before income tax of RMB5,019
million, which represented a year-on-year increase of RMB1,101
million or 28.10%. The Natural Gas Sales segment achieved increase
in sales and efficiency, further highlighting the role as the Company’s
main growth driver.

45

REEE MREXAR
HEBNER-

ReEEmE
ERARE

B SRR
REBEE-_E-_TF+_A=+—BHLFE(X
FE] EmERARAATARRADRE
MBAR (B AEENDERKAARKE
1,002.518 7T + RGN A REE74.57(8 7ﬂz
7.33% : BRETIS BRI R A A R#81.07E T
Htti-ﬂu)\EMmgm BT 5,15.58% : A"

A% R A % I A R #60.631B 7T - Httibu
AR 51218 7T 39.22% - & I% & F| (& )
B AR®ET70.025 o 1£ 1 70 fb & & 8 A1 B R
MERETKRNEREFEDZT AEEXHFE
BRARKIEME  2FERRAREE
377.63183 K + R IEHN97.3418 37 oKk
34.73% ' BIRBRATIS AR F A R¥50.19
BT - B EMA REE11.0118C228.10%
AARHEXEBERENEL T EXEK
MR E— PR o

[
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, faced with the severe impact on the economy and the
society brought by the COVID-19 epidemic, the PRC government
exercised overall leadership and took decisive measures to
effectively curb the spread of the epidemic, and made proactive
efforts to establish a new development pattern of “dual circulation”,
enabling the economy to stabilize and recover within a short period
of time. China registered a year-on-year GDP growth rate of 2.3%
in 2020, becoming the main driver for the recovery of the global
economy. Meanwhile, with the further implementation of the new
national energy security strategy and the establishment of “peak
carbon dioxide emissions and carbon neutrality goals”, efforts have
been made to accelerate low-carbon transformation of the energy
structure, ushering in a new round of great opportunities for the
development of the clean energy sector. The national production
volume and the net imported volume of natural gas during the Year
was 324 billion cubic metres, representing a year-on-year increase
of 5.6%, continuing to maintain a growth momentum.

Faced with the market downward pressure and the impact of the
epidemic, the Group coordinated its efforts to fight against the
epidemic while promoting production and operation, maintaining a
stable and smooth operation during the Year and achieving better-
than-expected operating results. We achieved substantial growth in
the sales of natural gas, made great progress in the development

E 3700

—EoTF  BHNERARBEHEELS
TROBEENE  PREAREZR - RE
RE - BNERBHRIEERELE  BEHE
RIERBRRIMERBRE - KBEEEHAL
BEE - 2FEALEERERLIER2.3%
IﬂZET’EE))%H%&‘&E@%E’UIEﬂ% o [ -
BIZRR A ﬁéx’i%ﬁ%&ﬁi IR HOE
& - E)xﬂPﬁ‘DJETﬁ?S%I BER A B R AR A
EEER iﬁiﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁéJELX%ﬁ W E X
B 2FRARKEBUEEES240(8 L7
K- B RE.6%  BERFIEREE -

HEMS NMTEBEOMRIEZE  AEBRSE
REGEREELE  2FLEETTIER

BF  KEEEEREUNIES - KRATHESE
KIEHRE - FEEFEEESHEKK - LNG
&Llﬁuﬁﬂft&l\%uaumﬁ—ﬁ%ﬂ C LPGER

ZEEERmME  IEREBKVIF

A ten-year comparison between the apparent consumption of natural gas of China and the

Group’s sales volume of natural gas

FETFXARRBEEEEELIKRERAARAREEEYL

Unit: 100 million cubic metres
B B AR

4,000 — — 400
3,500 — — 350
3,000 — 300
2,500 — 250
2,000 — 200
1,500 — 150
1,000 — 100
500 — 50
0~ -0

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
. Apparent consumption of natural gas of China
FEXARRBEEE
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2017 2018 2019 2020

+()- Sales volume of natural gas of the Group
AEBMAARRHEERE



of new projects, further enhanced the gasification and transmission
capacity of LNG terminals, and extended the LPG business into
the end-user market of several provincial capital cities. Furthermore,
we have built up a brand reputation for the non-gas business, and
further enhanced environment, social and corporate governance
(“ESG”) information disclosure and governance. In addition, the
Group entered into the equity transfer agreement with China Oil &
Gas Pipeline Network Corporation (“PipeChina”) to sell the equity
interests in PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd (“Beijing
Pipeline”) and PetroChina Dalian LNG Co., Ltd (“Dalian LNG”),
allowing the Company to further focus on the development of its
natural gas end-user business and seize the golden development
opportunity for the clean energy sector, so as to continuously
improve market scale and operational efficiency of its natural gas
end-user business.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Currently, the China economy has shifted from rapid growth to high-
quality development. In light of the significant strategic progress
made in the epidemic containment, and with the economy returning
to the growth track, the GDP growth forecast was set at above
6% in the Report on the Work of the Government for the year.
The high-quality development of the macro-economy is expected
to drive rigid demands for clean energies, including natural gas.
Following the establishment of the “dual carbon goals”, the industry
has witnessed accelerated low-carbon transformation of the energy
structure, while natural gas is expected to play a greater bridging
and supporting role during this historical process. Under the carbon
reduction and carbon trading policy, there will be ample room for
development in the industrial, transportation and power generation
sectors in the short term. As the development of the natural gas
industry fits well with the “six stabilities, six guarantees” requirement
and national policies of new urbanization and rural revitalization, this
sector is expected to have robust market demands in the medium
to long term. According to relevant forecast, the consumption of
natural gas in China by the end of the “14th Five-Year” plan period
will reach 420 billion to 440 billion cubic metres, with an average
annual growth rate of about 5.7%.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE

FX oh 22 - IRIR - L& M1 X B DA (ESG)
SERBENMERENFAIER o 1 AE
BREAROMAAREBEEGRAF (H
REMREE DA EZBDOHILERRAARE
BARRAR(IEREB AR NP AR AE
BIERARABR AR (TKELNGA AR
BEWE 0 ENMRERARLmRBHRE
BRIERERERECHEBN FERN
KRR 5 MR A& Wzt o

*BERE

EA FELEEHeRIEREEERSE
ERERER BEFSHARBHZIRE
BAEBKR KERRZISEALY
SERNBNIERERLE 7TGDPHE K6% MU
IMEHEE ZELESEE28REBE
FBEERXATERNNEREIRT KR ME
R oBEIEMEZINRL  EREBER
EAPHIZEE RAREE—ELERS
MBRMZBIERGE— TR - AHE -
ERRBERIR R ZEENERT T% - X
A EEEAGTHERAK - FREFF - KAK
EFHER[NEBARIER - FABRELCE
FoHANIRENBRERSEREG  miH
EoREMRS) o RIBFHFREEA [HHEAIR
PR AR EE & 1% 3#4,20018 74,4008
7o YRR FES TR LS °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE

During the “14th Five-Year” plan period, energy transformation
and oil and gas system reform will present the Company with
more opportunities than challenges. With an aim to facilitate
high-quality development, the Group will vigorously push forward
the implementation of the five strategies of “innovation, green
operation, market, capital and low cost”. Taking innovations as
the primary driver, the Group will put effort in system, commercial
model and corporate culture. The Group will facilitate innovations
by focusing on the natural gas business and strive to improve
the value of business chain through the process of innovation. By
adopting a market-oriented strategy, the Group will promote the
overall development of all business lines while tailor solutions for
different business segments, so as to consolidate its advantages
in resources for precise resource allocation. The Group will push
forward the cooperation in joint ventures, and will put proactive
efforts to build a win-win industry ecosystem, with an aim to facilitate
transformation and upgrading of the local economy and energy
structure. Quality and efficiency enhancement is the fundamental
policy in development, and thus efforts have been made to promote
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement in all aspects, so as
to strengthen our core competitiveness in low-cost operation. To
promote green development, the Group will smooth the different
business strategies, and expedite its transformation from a natural
gas distributor into an internationally renowned and China’s first-
class integrated green energy provider.

2021 marks the first year of the “14th Five-Year” plan. Focusing
on the new stage of development, the Group will implement new
development strategy to fulfill its new development vision. Through
consolidation of the advantage in resources, the Group will make
full effort to expand market shares, optimize structure, reduce costs,
improve service quality and enhance cooperation, with an aim to
promote the high-quality development of the natural gas business.
The Group will focus on the following aspects:

16 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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Expand the end-user retail sales business scale. The Group
will continue to focus on the city gas projects in order to explore new
markets and maintain stable profit. The Group will step up efforts
to explore new markets, and explore potential opportunities in and
facilitate profit enhancement of its existing customers, with an aim
to achieve sales improvement and profit enhancement in terms of
the end-user retail market and ensure sustainable and steady growth
of the core businesses. The Group will give full play to the capital
platform and speed up the development of the market share of
the end-user in certain provinces. The Group will explore the end-
user integrated and comprehensive energy service business, and
satisfy comprehensive energy demand through distributive energy
projects and intelligent micro pipe network gas supply services.
Through the establishment of the digital city gas pipeline network
platform, the Group will facilitate the intelligent management and
digital transformation of its production and operation. The Group will
continue to push forward the “quality and efficiency enhancement”
program, and explore the “Amoeba” management model, so as to
continuously improve the profitability of the end-user business.

Promote the synergetic development of LNG industrial chain.
The Group will make effort to improve the sales system of liquefied
product with “Terminals and processing plants as base, self-
operated stations and end-users as support, logistic optimization
as security, and tank distribution as an auxiliary”. Through the
combination of commissioned processing and self-operations, the
Group will optimize the business mode of LNG plants, so as to
strengthen stable resource supply and increase capacity utilization
rate of LNG plants. In addition, the Group will further optimize
the functional positioning of the plants, and seize the opportunity
arising from the development of inland waterway transportation to
proactively develop the end-user refilling business.
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Optimize the development of full industrial chain for LPG
business. Efforts will be made to speed up the construction of
terminal storage tanks, further expand its LPG resource channels
and increase foreign procurement quantity, so as to ensure resource
supply. The Group will proactively participate in the government-
led market consolidation, so as to facilitate the construction of LPG
network of the end-user and increase its market shares in the end-
user market. By keeping a close watch on the development of the
“rural gas program”, the Group will speed up the planning and pilot
construction of the storage tanks in stations and micromanagement
network gas supply business, and tailor solutions for various cities
and organize timely promotion activities to nurture new business
lines. Effort will be made to enhance the establishment of information
system and optimize logistics and distribution, so as to ensure
steady development of the LPG business.

Explore new energy and non-gas businesses. The Group will
step up efforts in energy conservation and emission reduction,
and facilitate the green and low-carbon transformation of its
existing stations, with an aim to develop integrated green energy
supply stations featured with new energy power generation, power
charging and gas supply. Leveraging on the unique advantages of
gas-powered generators such as short construction period, rapid
peak-buffering response and environmentally-friendly operation,
the Group will speed up the development of peak-buffering
natural gas generator projects as well as quality photovoltaic, wind
power and hydrogen energy projects. The Group will strengthen
top-level instruction, and promote the integrated construction
and development of its core businesses and non-gas business.
Upholding the business philosophy of “enhancing competitiveness
with best services”, the Group will strive to improve customer
experiences, enhance customer royalty and explore value-added
service business. Effort will be made to implement the three-
step strategy of “promoting synergetic effects, mutual interaction
and paralleled development between natural gas and non-gas
businesses” by establishing online and offline services system,
exploring extended value of customer base and building an “Internet
+ energy + lifestyle” business ecosystem.

In the coming year, the Group will actively follow the development
trend of nationwide low-carbon transformation in energy structure
and oil and gas system reform, and will always take its responsibility
to its Shareholders, employees and society seriously. The Group will
take proactive measures to capture development opportunities of
the industry, focus on high-quality development of its businesses,
enhance energy conservation and efficiency improvement of its
business operation, continue to push forward the establishment of
its ESG system, and make continuous effort to improve company
value, striving to create greater return to the Shareholders.
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FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB21.01
cents per share and a special dividend of RMB213.66 cents per
share, totaling RMB234.67 cents per share (2019: RMB26.3 cents
per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s
register of members (the “Shareholders Register”) on 3 June 2021
(Thursday). The payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
(the “2021 AGM”) and the payment of the special dividend is subject
to (i) the completion of the disposal of 60% equity interest in Beijing
Pipeline and 75% equity interest in Dalian LNG (the “Transaction”) in
accordance with the terms and conditions under the equity transfer
agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”) entered into between the
Company and PipeChina on 20 December 2020; (i) the receipt by the
Company of the proceeds from the Transaction; and (i) the approval
of the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM. The payment is expected to
be made on or before 30 July 2021 (Friday). The proposed 2020 final
dividend and special dividend amounts to a total of approximately
RMB20,320 million and 2019 dividend of RMB2,277 million was paid
in 2020. The payout ratio for 2020 (final dividend per share divided by
basic earnings per share) was approximately 30.01% (2019: 39.42%,.

The Transaction is conditional upon the satisfaction of certain conditions
as set out under the Equity Transfer Agreement, and thus the
Transaction contemplated thereunder may or may not proceed. Further,
as the special dividend is subject to the completion of the Transaction,
the receipt by the Company of the proceeds from the Transaction and
the approval of the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM, the special dividend
may or may not be paid. Shareholders and potential investors should
exercise caution when dealing in the Shares.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2021 AGM will be held on 26 May 2021 (Wednesday). The
Notice of the 2021 AGM, which constitutes part of the circular to
shareholders, will be sent to the Shareholders together with the
2020 Annual Report. The Notice of the 2021 AGM and the proxy
form will also be available on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER

For the purposes of determining Shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2021 AGM, and entitlement to the final dividend and
special dividend, the Shareholders Register will be closed. Details

of such closures are set out below:

For determining eligibility to
attend and vote at the 2021
AGM:
ARERREE—_F_—FRR
BEATINE LRENER :

For determining entitlement to
the final dividend and special
dividend:
HEERREIRRAR SRR
g SRR
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2 BEFABHIWT

20Mw5ﬁ

Thursday (4:00 p.m.)
EBM (T F ez

21-26 way 55

Friday-Wednesday (both dates inclusive)
ENE-EH= (BEMABEER)

26Mw5ﬁ

Wednesday
EH=

1 June 68

Tuesday (4:00 p.m.)
EB = (T M)

2'3me6§

Wednesday-Thursday (both dates inclusive)
EH=-EHN ERMABEER)

:3 June 68

Thursday
25
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Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration
RERGEF S AMERT
& &R

Closure of Shareholders Register
EEnEROBRER

Record date

Cix A

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration
REIRGB 5 S EE T
HEEZER

Closure of Shareholders Register

EEMERNDBRER

Record date

wCik A



During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, and
to qualify for the final dividend and special dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Branch Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later
than the aforementioned latest time.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Group’s success was attributable to the steadfast support
of all its customers, business partners and shareholders and the
dedicated efforts of all employees. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to extend sincere thanks to them.

By order of the Board

Fu Bin
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

THRIAKS

66

The Group adhered to the market-oriented approach and leveraged
on its resource advantages. Targeted policies have been implemented
in the existing market to expand sales, which was complemented by
multi-pronged measures intended for development of and expansion
into potential markets, leading to increases in sales and efficiency of
the natural gas end-user business, whose core role as the Company’s
main growth driver stands out further.

BEmEEn REERED F&
BETSEZELBRABERER RARKD

ﬁ%FEH%E%%%’
mAEBERENER.

BROEBARMEE-SER-

In 2020, faced with the challenging environment amidst the outbreak
of the COVID-19 epidemic and the sharp decline in international
oil price, increasing pressure of economic downturn and profound
change in the supply and demand of natural gas, all staff members
of the Company remained committed to our corporate vision and
forged ahead with persistent determination. By focusing on high-
quality development of the natural gas business and continuing to
promote integrated and synergetic operation, we pushed forward the
implementation of reform and innovation, and set the first priority
to ensure secure and stable operation of the industrial chain and
create lucrative return for the shareholders, achieving stellar results
in production and operation.

OPERATING RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of RMB109,251 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB7,457 million or 7.33%;
profit before income tax was RMB8,107 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of RMB1,093 million or 15.58%; profit attributable
to owners of the Company was RMB6,063 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of RMB512 million or 9.22%. Earnings per
share (basic) was RMB70.02 cents.
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Qian Zhijia $#83K
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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Natural gas sales

The Group adhered to the market-oriented approach and
leveraged on its resource advantages. Targeted policies have
been implemented in the existing market to expand sales, which
was complemented by multi-pronged measures intended for
development of and expansion into potential markets, leading
to increases in sales and efficiency of the natural gas end-
user business, whose core role as the Company’s main growth
driver stands out further. Through strengthened capital operation
and innovative cooperation modes such as heating and power
cogeneration and energy management contract, our companies in
Shandong, Hubei and other provinces achieved breakthroughs in the
hybrid reform of city gas projects while the companies in Sichuan
province developed a new pattern of joint oil and gas stations,
creating the effect of economies of scale in the development of end-
user projects. Through effective resources consolidation, natural gas
value-added business started to show economies of scale, and the
end-user business was transformed from the traditional natural gas
sales to the “natural gas+” marketing. During the Year, the Group
operated 44 projects which were acquired through acquisitions
and mergers, newly established and invested by way of capital
increase, and had equity interests in 7 projects. The Group had
414 gas projects, located in 31 provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities across the country.

During the Year, natural gas sales volume was 37,763 million cubic
metres, representing a year-on-year increase of 34.73%, among
which, retail gas sales volume was 21,694 million cubic metres,
representing a year-on-year increase of 20.45%. The number of new
users amounted to 1,081,100, including 1,076,700 new residential
users and 4,400 new industrial and commercial users, and the
cumulative number of users has reached 12,358,100, representing
a year-on-year increase of 9.59%. The Natural Gas Sales business
recorded a revenue of RMB87,995 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 20.33%. Profit before income tax was RMB5,019
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 28.10%.
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LPG sales

The sustainable enhancement of development capacity was
the focus of the Group, to achieve which, the Group continued
to expand resources channels, expedite construction of LPG
sales channels and networks, constantly strengthen its safety
management capability and marketing capability, continuously
optimize resources and customer structure, and steadily increase the
proportion and profit of end-user retail sales. The Group proactively
developed the direct sales industrial customers, and carried out
direct sales and distribution business for residential end-users. The
Group has developed a total of 410,000 customers and extended
its business into the markets of many provincial capital cities.
The Group also optimized resource allocation and enhanced the
operation efficiency of self-owned railways, automobiles and storage
stations, so as to reduce logistics operation costs.

During the Year, LPG sales volume was 5.2117 million tonnes,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 14.20%. This business
recorded a revenue of RMB14,775 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 30.72%. Profit before income tax was RMB550
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.34%.

LNG processing and terminal

During the Year, the Group maintained the secure and smooth
production and operation of the LNG terminals, achieving the target
in general. The expansion work of Jingtang LNG terminal was overall
completed, while the expansion work of Jiangsu LNG terminal
proceeded as scheduled, leading to significant improvement in the
gasification and transmission capacity of the terminals. By giving full
play to the advantages of the integrated LNG industrial chain, the
Group proactively pushed forward the planning and development of
the transportation sector, achieving substantial increase in the sales
of liquefied products and effective consolidation of the business
chain and value chain of LNG.
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During the Year, LNG gasification and entrucking volume of Jingtang
and Jiangsu LNG terminals amounted to 14,249 million cubic metres
in total, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.89%. The average
capacity of these two LNG terminals recorded a year-on-year
increase of 1.5 percentage points as compared with last year. 15
LNG processing plants were put into operation during the Year, and
sales volume of self-operation reached 1,369 million cubic metres
while sales volume of commissioned processing amounted to 1,041
million cubic metres, totaling 2,410 million cubic metres. Sales
volume of commissioned processing and self-operation increased
by 192 million cubic metres and 164 million cubic metres year-on-
year, respectively. The average production capacity of 14 plants
under continuous operation was 43.76%, similar to last year.

During the Year, LNG Processing and Terminal business recorded
revenue of RMB8,649 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 10.71%. Profit before income tax was RMB2,596 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 14.56%.

Exploration and production

During the Year, as international crude oil price declined significantly
as compared with last year, the average realized crude oil selling
price of the Group decreased to US$38.71/barrel from US$54.54/
barrel of last year. During the Year, the sales volume of crude oil of
the Group was 12.19 million barrels, representing a decrease of 1.35
million barrels or 9.97% compared with 13.54 million barrels of last
year. Sales revenue of crude oil was RMB1,266 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 36.83%. Loss before income tax was
RMB244 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 122.39%
in profit.

Discontinued operations

On 22 December 2020, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with PipeChina to sell 60% equity interests in Beijing
Pipeline and 75% equity interests in Dalian LNG to PipeChina at
the basic transaction consideration of approximately RMB40,386
million. The transaction has been approved by shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 12 March 2021 with a high number
of votes for and will be completed on 31 March 2021.
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During the Year, the pipeline transmission volume and LNG
gasification and entrucking volume of the discontinued operations
was 49,329 million cubic metres and 3,513 million cubic metres
respectively. Revenue amounted to RMB10,076 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 12.53%. Profit before income tax was
RMB5,137 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 22.53%.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Over the past year, in the face of the unexpected outbreak of the
COVID-19 epidemic and impacts of low oil prices, all staff members
of the Company held fast to their positions and responsibilities
despite grave challenges, in an effort to ensure secure and stable
supply of natural gas for every household and the steady production
and operation of the Company. | would like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to all employees of the Company. In the future, |, together
with the management, will fully implement decisions of the Board,
adhere to the Company’s work arrangement and give our best
efforts to expand market shares, optimize structure, reduce costs,
improve service quality and enhance cooperation, with an aim
to promote the high-quality development of the natural gas sales
business, and live up to the expectations from vast investors and
all parts of the society.

By order of the Board

Qian Zhijia
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group continued to develop its Natural Gas Sales Segment during the
Year. Profit before income tax expense from continuing operations of the
Group for the Year was approximately RMB8,107 million, representing an
increase of 15.58% as compared with RMB7,014 million (restated) for the
last year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately RMB6,063 million, representing an increase of 9.22% as
compared with RMB5,551 million (restated) for the last year.
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The Group continued to develop its Natural Gas Sales segment
during the Year. Profit before income tax expense from continuing
operations of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB8,107
million, representing an increase of 15.58% as compared with
RMB7,014 million (restated) for the last year. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the Year was approximately RMB6,063
million, representing an increase of 9.22% as compared with
RMB5,551 million (restated) for the last year.

Revenue

Revenue from continuing operations for the Year was approximately
RMB109,251 million, representing an increase of 7.33% as
compared with the amount of RMB101,794 million (restated) for the
last year. Due to the decrease of international crude oil price and
weakened market demands as a result of the COVID-19 epidemic,
the prices of the Group’s natural gas products decreased in different
degrees. However, as the epidemic situation in China has been
brought under control, and driven by the increasing demands for
natural gas, sales volume of natural gas recorded rapid growth,
leading to an increase in the revenue of the Natural Gas Sales
segment.

Other gains, net

Other gains, net from continuing operations for the Year was
approximately RMB1,141 million (2019: RMB44 million (restated)). The
increase was mainly due to increase in exchange gains resulted from
appreciation of RMB against US$ during the Year.

Purchases, services and others

Purchases, services and others from continuing operations for
the Year were approximately RMB90,292 million, representing an
increase of 8.89% as compared with amount of RMB82,922 million
(restated) for the last year. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in purchase volume which was generally in line with the
increase in sales of Natural Gas Sales segment.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEIMN

Employee compensation costs

Employee compensation costs from continuing operations for the
Year was approximately RMB4,700 million, representing a decrease
of 0.91% as compared with amount of RMB4,743 million (restated)
for the last year. Employee compensation costs for the year
remained stable, which was mainly because the increase in total
remuneration was set off by the reduction or waiver of employer’s
contribution for certain social insurance schemes.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation from continuing operations
for the Year was approximately RMB4,402 million, representing an
increase of 10.74% as compared with amount of RMB3,975 million
(restated) for the last year. The increase was mainly due to the
depreciation charge attributable to the newly acquired subsidiaries
during the Year and the increase in property, plant and equipment
transferred from construction in progress at the end of last year.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses from continuing
operations for the Year were approximately RMB2,689 million,
representing a decrease of 11.28% as compared with amount of
RMB3,031 million (restated) for the last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in royalty expenses as a result of lower
revenue from Exploration and Production segments. The decrease
was also due to the decrease in transportation expenses and
travelling expenses as a result of COVID-19 and the Company’s
effort in cost control.

Interest expenses

Interest expenses from continuing operations for the Year was
approximately RMB708 million, representing a decrease of 21.25%
as compared with amount of RMB899 million (restated) for the
last year. The decrease was mainly due to a lower interest rate for
the super short-term commercial papers of RMB1,000 million and
medium-term notes of RMB1,000 million issued during the Year and
the lower average borrowing balance as compared to the last year.

Total interest expenses from continuing operations for the Year

was approximately RMB1,147 million of which RMB439 million was
capitalised under construction-in-progress.
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Share of profits less losses of associates

Share of profits less losses of associates for the Year was
approximately RMB340 million, representing a decrease of 64.25%,
as compared with amount of RMB951 million (restated) for the last
year. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the shared
operating result from CNPC-Aktobemunaigas Joint Stock Company
as a result of lower international crude oil price during the Year.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of total assets of
the Group was approximately RMB154,988 million, representing
an increase of RMB7,091 million or 4.79% as compared with
RMB147,897 million as at 31 December 2019.

The gearing ratio of the Group was 25.11% as at 31 December 2020
compared with 30.72% as at 31 December 2019, representing a
decrease of 5.61%. It is computed by dividing the sum of interest-
bearing borrowings and lease liabilities of RMB28,337 million
(2019: RMB35,117 million) by the sum of total equity, interest-
bearing borrowings and lease liabilities of RMB112,864 million (2019:
RMB114,302 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEIMN

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has total borrowings of
RMB27,673 million which will be repayable as follows:

NR_E-TF+-_A=Z+—H AEBZE
BEEARK27673A B LA NEE:

2020 2019

RMB miIIion RMB’million

—E-EF ZE-NF

AR¥%RH % 7T ARBEETT

(Note 29) (Note 29)

(Mt E29) (M 7£29)

Within one year —F R 5,182 8,772
Between one to two years —EWF 4,244 2,314
Between two to five years Wz AF 12,039 17,076
After five years HEMN £ 6,208 6,337
27,673 34,499

The functional currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is
RMB. As such, the Group is exposed to exchange rate risks arisen from
borrowings denominated in other currencies raised by the Company
or these subsidiaries. The Group will incur exchange gain/loss from
such foreign currency borrowings when RMB appreciates/depreciates
against other currencies. The details of the Group’s financial risk factors
(including foreign exchange rate risk) are summarised under Note 4.1
in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other financial
risk factors are summarised in Note 4.2 and Note 4.3 in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the Year, no share option (2019: none) has been exercised by
the senior executives of the Company as all share options were lapsed.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, certain property, plant and equipment of
the Group amounting to RMB756 million (2019: RMB21 million) were
pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the Group.

New Investment in Major Projects

During the year ended 31 December 2020, PetroChina Kunlun Gas
Co., Ltd. (“Kunlun Gas”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into equity transfer agreement to acquire equity interests
in 22 entities at a consideration of approximately RMB1,486 million.
This acquisition will help the Group to achieve rapid development in
target markets, generate synergies among the Group’s businesses,
enhance operational efficiency and increase market competitiveness.
Upon the completion of the Acquisition, 22 entities have become
the subsidiaries of Kunlun Gas.
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Material disposal

On 22 December 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with
PipeChina, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to sell and PipeChina has conditionally agreed to purchase the
Company’s equity interests in Beijing Pipeline and Dalian LNG at
a base consideration of approximately RMB40,886 million (subject
to the adjustments according to the price adjustment mechanism
as set out in the agreement). Each of Beijing Pipeline, which used
to be reported under the Group’s “Natural Gas Pipeline” segment,
and Dalian LNG, which used to be reported under the Group’s
“LNG Processing and Terminal” segment, represented a separate
major line of the Group’s business. Consequently, Beijing Pipeline
and Dalian LNG were presented as discontinued operations with
the associated assets and liabilities presented as a disposal group
classified as held-for-sale in these financial statements.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 22
December 2020 in relation to the disposal of 60% equity interest in
Beijing Pipeline and 75% equity interest in Dalian LNG.

Material Investments

Material investments of the Group are its investments in associates
and in joint ventures.

There is no single material associate or joint venture which
significantly affects the results and/or net assets of the Group.
Details of the Group’s investments in associates and joint venture are
in Note 17 and Note 18 respectively in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Non-adjusting Event after the Reporting Period

Pursuant to the material disposal, the agreement entered into
with PipeChina for the disposal of 60% equity interest in Beijing
Pipeline and 75% equity interest in Dalian LNG was approved by
shareholders at the special general meeting held on 12 March 2021.

Employee

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 36,396
employees globally, excluding the employees under entrustment
contracts (2019: 37,085 employees (restated)). Remuneration
package and benefits were determined in accordance with market
terms, industry practice as well as the duties, performance,
qualifications and experience of the employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEIMN

Contingent Liability

The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as well as the
named party in other proceeding. While the outcomes of such
contingencies, lawsuits or other proceeding cannot be determined
at present, management believes that any resulting liabilities will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position or financial
performance of the Group.

DIVIDEND
Dividend Policy

The dividend policy of the Company allows shareholders to share the
Company’s profits and also enables the Company to retain sufficient
reserves for its future development. Under the circumstances that
the Company makes profits and has no effect on the Group’s normal
business operation, the Company intends to share its profits with
its shareholders in the form of annual dividend, which shall be in a
total distribution amount of not less than 25% of the Group’s annual
consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company, on
the condition that it shall be subject to the following “Criteria”.

Criteria:

1. When proposing the declaration of any dividends, the Board
shall consider, among other things, the business conditions
and strategies of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), the expected working capital needs and future
expansion plans, surplus, contractual restrictions, actual
and expected national financial conditions, macroeconomic
conditions and other factors as the Board deems relevant.

2. The dividend rate will vary every year according to the above
criterion and the Company will not assure the distribution of
any specific amounts of dividend at any particular period or
the distribution of dividends at any particular dividend vyield.
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FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB21.01 cents per share and a special dividend of RMB213.66
cents per share, totaling RMB234.67 cents per share (2019:
RMB26.3 cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on
the Company’s register of members (the “Shareholders Register”)
on 3 June 2021 (Thursday). The payment of the final dividend is
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company (the “2021 AGM”) and the payment of the
special dividend is subject to (i) the completion of the disposal of
60% equity interest in Beijing Pipeline and 75% equity interest in
Dalian LNG (the “Transaction”) in accordance with the terms and
conditions under the equity transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and PipeChina on
20 December 2020; (ii) the receipt by the Company of the proceeds
from the Transaction; and (i) the approval of the Shareholders at
the 2021 AGM. The payment is expected to be made on or before
30 July 2021 (Friday). The proposed 2020 final dividend and special
dividend amounts to a total of approximately RMB20,320 million and
2019 dividend of RMB2,277 million was paid in 2020. The payout
ratio for 2020 (final dividend per share divided by basic earnings
per share) was approximately 30.01% (2019: 39.42%,).

The Transaction is conditional upon the satisfaction of certain
conditions as set out under the Equity Transfer Agreement, and thus
the Transaction contemplated thereunder may or may not proceed.
Further, as the special dividend is subject to the completion of
the Transaction, the receipt by the Company of the proceeds from
the Transaction and the approval of the Shareholders at the 2021
AGM, the special dividend may or may not be paid. Shareholders
and potential investors should exercise caution when dealing in the
Shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEIMN

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its code
of conduct regarding dealings in the Company’s securities by
Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors, and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model

Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

By the Order of the Board

Qian Zhijia
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
and certain recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions as
set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code Provisions
throughout the Year. If there is any deviation from the CG Code,
the Company will explain in the appropriate section.

The Company has also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to Company’s business,
and in ensuring transparency and accountability of Company’s
operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All directors of the Company (the “Directors”) should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRSE

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, establishment of ESG system, material transactions (in
particular those which may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board fully supports the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to management, it has given clear directions
as to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company adopted written terms established on division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for

Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
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Composition

The Board has the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
There is a strong element of independence in the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

During the Year, the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) (appointed on 19 November 2020)
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee)

Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 19 November 2020)

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr Ling Xiao (resigned on 19 November 2020)

Mr Zhao Yongqi (resigned on 19 November 2020)

Mr Zhao Zhongxun (resigned on 19 May 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee)
Mr Sun Patrick (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee)
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper (Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (retired on 27 May 2020 and did not
offer himself for re-election)
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to:

(1)  the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise;

(2) the appointment of independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, serving on Board committees, scrutinising the
Company’s performance and monitoring performance reporting, all
Independent Non-executive Directors make various contributions to
the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

Under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination committee
(or the board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board
members, and shall disclose the policy or a summary of the policy
in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has adopted a
Board Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and Nomination
Policy to align the board diversity.
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Nomination Policy

Selection criteria and principles

The Nomination Committee will consider the following factors upon
the assessment of candidates:

(1)

Review on the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board at least once a year, and also make recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to align with the
Company’s strategies.

Fully consider the Board Diversity Policy, individual
performance, individual capability, professionalism, knowledge,
experience and time that can be devoted to the Company,
personal credibility, the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and applicable laws and regulations etc.; identify candidate(s)
with appropriate qualifications to be member(s) of the Board,
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individual(s) nominated as director(s).

Make recommendations to the Board on the relevant matters
regarding the director(s) and succession plans for the
director(s) (in particular, the Chairman and chief executive).

Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
criteria, including but not limited to, skills, knowledge, experience,
gender, age, ethnicity, and educational background etc. Board
appointments will be made on meritocracy, contribution to the Board
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with
due regard to the benefits of the diversity on the Board.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Board diversity of the Company in
terms of age, years of service and title are shown as follows:

Age Group
FRERM

Designation

BB 17

Number of Years as Board Members

EHhESSHEFH
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each Non-
executive Director has entered into a formal letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term of three years, subject to the
retirement and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after their appointment. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company which provide that every
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy during
the Year shall retire at the next general meeting and every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. Code Provisions A.4.1
and A.4.2 have been fully complied.

Mr Fu Bin and Mr Qian Zhijia was appointed as executive directors
on 19 November 2020 and will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 97 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Zhou
Yuanhong and Mr Miao Yong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
November 2020, Mr Ling Xiao resigned as Executive Director with
effect from 19 November 2020 due to the reason of his other work
engagements, and Mr Zhao Yongai resigned as Executive Director
with effect from 19 November 2020 due to having reached the age
of retirement.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 May
2020, Mr Zhao Zhongxun resigned as Executive Director with
effect from 19 May 2020 due to the reason of his other work
engagements.

In accordance with Bye-law 97 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Li
Kwok Sing Aubrey retired at the 2020 Annual General Meeting, and
has not offered himself for re-election at the 2020 Annual General
Meeting due to having reached the age of retirement.
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

During the Year, each of the Directors has attended various in-house
briefings and internal or external seminars/trainings, and has read
internal or external newsletters, updates and other reading materials
covering topics such as business of the Company, corporate
governance, industry knowledge, regulatory updates, finance and
management. The training records of the Directors in 2020 are set
out belows:

EE

BETZEZESHEEAERBERZAR
ES2H - ERARBFAEMKRZHMEEM
LME%TBZMLTﬁ/ATZ%fQ&@T’Ei’JEL
B2 URTEMEBER MRS
FEERETZBE -

FER  ARANZHAEFREFEN
REXER-

AEE  REFCHREZEANENTEAE
SkONBER R &1 - 0 2 BT RS INED
ERAA - RAKEMBIEN R RETE
WMARBES - BEER - TEMS - BEE
B MBRERE -EFX-_T-ZFEIIK
BRELHIA0T

Reading

Attending materials relating
seminar/ to the Group,
meeting/forum/  daily business or
giving lecture responsibilities

at seminar of Directors
HEERE MEEBRES -
B2 wE/ AE¥RRES
SHEHREE BESHMR
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) Rk E(FE)

(appointed on 19 November 2020) (REF-FFF+—HATNAEZ(F) Yes B Yes B
Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer) BOARFEE(TTHAZ)

(appointed on 19 November 2020) (REF-FF+—HATNAEZ(F) Yes B Yes B
Mr Zhou Yuanhong BEBxTE Yes Yes
Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer) BEEE(HHFHEELE) Yes B Yes B
Mr Ling Xiao )ﬁ%aﬁ'ii

(resigned on 19 November 2020) (R-ZF-ZFF+—A+LHEFE) Yes A Yes A
Mr Zhao Yongg oK B 5 $

(resigned on 19 November 2020) (R-ZF-ZFF+—HA+LHEFE) Yes A Yes A
Mr Zhao Zhongxun iH 5 8 5‘6%

(resigned on 19 May 2020) (R-—E-FFFZA+NHEL) Yes A Yes A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHNTESE:
Dr Liu Xiao Feng ZEEE LT Yes B Yes B
Mr Sun Patrick ?fii yiogad Yes A Yes B
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper B 5E B Yes B Yes B
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (retired on 27 May 2020 ZBRE L4 (R-FE-FFaA=++H

and did not offer himself for re-election) RIF - WTEEEL) Yes A Yes A
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance =2

Code Provision A.1.1 stipulates that regular Board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
for reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance,
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the Company.

During the Year, six Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings,
one Remuneration Committee meeting and three Nomination
Committee meetings were held.

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the
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Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee during the Year is set out below:

$¢F BREENEFS -
YFEZBehREZBERHAIHE

%WZZDT-

N

BHEAE -
=

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ERRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Board Committee Committee  Committee
Ex EEg ENZES ¥MEEE REZEEE
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) (appointed on & 5E 4 ( I E)

19 November 2020) (R-ZFZFF+—HT/LAEZT) 2/2 - - 1/1
Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer) #5385 St (mE(f @%)

(appointed on 19 November 2020) (REFZFF+—H1TNLAEZ(E) 2/2 - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong BB EE 6/6 - - -
Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer) BB 4 (B K4 E 5/6 - - -
Mr Ling Xiao BB R

(resigned on 19 November 2020) (RZFZFFL+—HFNAFE) 4/4 - - 2/2
Mr Zhao Yongq tﬂwi%_’{

(resigned on 19 November 2020) (RZF=ZFFL+—HFNAFE) 4/4 - - -
Mr Zhao Zhongxun A A

(resigned on 19 May 2020) (RZF-FFHAFNAGE) 1/1 - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV FEHTEE -

Dr Liu Xiao Feng Ell=1 3N 6/6 2/2 1/1 3/3
Mr Sun Patrick FEERLE 6/6 2/2 1/1 3/3
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper = SRRk T 6/6 2/2 1/1 3/3

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (retired on
27 May 2020 and did not offer
himself for re-election)

FEERER_F_FFLA
ZTEHEE  ETEEEL)
11

11 - 1l
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings and reasonable notice is generally
given for other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices
are served in accordance with the required notice period stated in
the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors/ committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors abreast of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary will attend Board and committee
meetings, when necessary, to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary. Minutes are prepared after each meeting
and the final version is signed by the Chairman or the chairman
of the relevant committees (as the case may be) and confirmed
by the Board in the following Board Meeting or by the relevant
committee in the following committee meeting (as the case may be).
The confirmed minutes are kept for future reference and Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such Directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established
and set out in writing.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure
a balance of power and authority.

During the Year, the positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by different individuals. Mr Ling
Xiao was the Chairman of the Board from 1 January 2020 to
19 November 2020 and Mr Fu Bin was the Chairman from 19
November 2020, and Mr Zhao Yongqi acted as the Chief Executive
Officer from 1 January 2020 to 19 November 2020, and Mr Qian
Zhijia acted as the Chief Executive Officer from 19 November 2020.
There is no relationship between the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.

There are written terms on the general division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the senior management,
the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes
for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.
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Al Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
the members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised four Independent
Non-executive Directors from 1 January 2020 to 27 May 2020,
and since Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey retired on 27 May 2020 at the
2020 Annual General Meeting, and has not offered himself for re-
election at the 2020 Annual General Meeting, the Audit Committee
comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors from 27
May 2020 to 31 December 2020. Throughout the Year, the Audit
Committee included one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Mr Sun Patrick was
the Chairman of the Audit Committee throughout the Year. None
of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing independent auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by independent auditor
before submission to the Board;

2. to review the relationship with the independent auditor
by reference to the work performed by the independent
auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the independent auditor; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings, to review
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report on the Company’s internal control and risk
management review and processes and the appointment of the
independent auditor.
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The Company’s annual results for the Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised four
Independent Non-executive Directors from 1 January 2020 to 27
May 2020, and since Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey retired on 27 May
2020 at the 2020 Annual General Meeting, and has not offered
himself for re-election at the 2020 Annual General Meeting, the
Remuneration Committee comprised three Independent Non-
executive Directors from 27 May 2020 to 31 December 2020.
During the Year, Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey was the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee from 1 January 2020 to 27 May 2020
and Dr Liu Xiao Feng was the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee from 27 May 2020. The primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, making recommendations to the Board for
approval of the remuneration policy and structure and making
recommendation or determining the remuneration packages of
the Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the
annual remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
the senior management and other related matters. The Company
Secretary is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company.

The remuneration paid to the senior management by band for the
Year is set out as below:

$¢F FHZESCME X AREA
REVZFH MR R R RE -

REEXINTFTEREBEAER ZFHMIZEE
£l B

Senior Management emolument EREEAEZHMNE
Year 2020
—E-EF
RMB1,000,001 — RMB2,000,000 A R #1,000,0017T 2= A R #2,000,0007T 1
RMB2,000,001 — RMB3,000,000 A R #2,000,0017T & A K #3,000,0007T 1
2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised five members
from 1 January 2020 to 27 May 2020, and since Mr Li Kwok
Sing Aubrey retired on 27 May 2020 at the 2020 Annual General
Meeting, and has not offered himself for re-election at the 2020
Annual General Meeting, the Nomination Committee comprised four
members from 27 May 2020 to 31 December 2020, including the
Chairman of the Company. During the Year, Mr Ling Xiao was the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee from 1 January 2020 to 19
November 2020 and Mr Fu Bin was the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee from 19 November 2020.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. 1o assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;

4, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executives;
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5. 1o regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities; and

6. to do such other things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred to it by the
Board.

In performing its duties, due regards would be given to the Listing
Rules and the associated guidance.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year to
review Board composition, proposal for Directors’ re-election on
retirement, the appointment of new Director as well as the objectives
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance functions as required under the CG Code:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

- adoption of corporate governance functions under the CG
Code;

- review the usage of annual caps on continuing connected
transactions of the Group;

- review the compliance with the CG Code; and

- review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management systems of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Code Provision A.6.4 stipulates that directors must comply with their
obligations under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules and, in addition, the Board should establish
written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors, and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines — Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees in respect of the
dealings in the Company’s securities by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 87 to 93.

During the Year, the fees charged by KPMG for the audit of the
Company and its subsidiaries amounted to approximately RMB22
million (2019: RMB18 million). In addition, approximately RMB1 million
(2019: RMB2 million) was charged by KPMG for non-audit services.
The non-audit services mainly consist of taxation services, advisory
and other professional services. The fees charged by other auditors
of the Group for audit services and non-audit services during the
Year amounted to approximately RMB7 million and RMB4 million
respectively (2019: RMB10 million and RMB3 million respectively).
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(1)

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, are available to answer questions
at the shareholders’ meetings.

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting will be taken by poll except where the Chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely
to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. Details of the poll procedures are included
in all notices/circulars to shareholders and will be explained
during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company subsequent to the close of the
shareholders meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEARE

IRREFRIREERE

(1)

RERXE

ARRZBRAERBRLREZSRE

HESETER - %%@Iﬁ%&%’f?
ZBg FMZESREEEZES
B (ERE FHT)Réz\EZEﬁﬂ

Z8 BERRASL@MERMR -

RIEBEEHAA - BREFEABERIME
HAERHABEBEREFXITREE
ZRBEBUBFTARRIN BE
MR ARG EEH Z B RRBAIN

BETAET %&ﬁfﬁ\ﬁ%ﬂ
FEREREBSE Ak TRRERE

TTHREE -
RRERBRBRRK G R FTR
RAR A TIE -

RERAEL  BREEAFE(BHE
BRENER)IREBLRER -

[

ERERERAR —2-ss5gRs O3

K
I



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRSE

During the Year, two general meetings were held on 27 May
2020 and 27 October 2020 which were the 2020 annual
general meeting and the special general meeting for approval
of the revision of annual caps for the continuing connected

transactions in 2020,

new master

agreement and the

continuing connected transactions for the years 2021 to 2023,
respectively. The attendance records of the Directors to the
2020 general meetings are set out below:

AEE BER-_Z-TFRA_TLH
MZZ-ZFE+A-+EBRBETMAK
RRE ENBR—_Z_ZFREE
FRE R B RERIA G AR EEFT#
BRER %Ff7f7¢Z¢FL@
HEHah T —FE_FT_—F2
H\WLX% EXHRE_ZT_FF
BRAEZHEEH BRI 0
T

Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HE EBRE
Annual Special
General General
Directors Meeting Meeting
= BRRBEFAE RBREFSIKE
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman) NMEE(FE)R-_F=-FF
(appointed on 19 November 2020) +—A+NHEZE) - -
Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer) $aRTHE(TTHAEZ) R -F-FF
(appointed on 19 November 2020) +—A+NAEZ(T) - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong ﬂtﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁi 1/1 1/1
Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer) #8844 (81 544 &) 0/1 1/1
Mr Ling Xiao EERER-_F_FF
(resigned on 19 November 2020) ‘/‘ — A+ NHEE) 1/1 1/1
Mr Zhao Yongqi HAKEBEE(RZF-ZFF
(resigned on 19 November 2020) +—A+F N HEAE) 1/1 1/1
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEBSEER=ZF=-F
(resigned on 19 May 2020) AATFTNABE) - -
Independent Non-executive Directors: B IF#iTE H :
Dr Liu Xiao Feng Ell=1: 3 1/1 1/1
Mr Sun Patrick FEESLLE 1/1 1/1
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper SEAR oA 11 0/1
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (retired on THEEAER=-_F=-FF
27 May 2020 and did not offer AAZFEHRF -
himself for re-election) T B (F) 0/1 -
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(2)

The Code provision A.6.7 provides that non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
However, Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey, the former Independent
Non-executive Director, was not able to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2020 due
to other engagements, and Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper, the
Independent Non-executive Director, was not able to attend
the special general meeting held on 27 October 2020 due
to other engagements. Save as disclosed above, all other
Independent Non-executive Directors had attended the annual
general meeting held on 27 May 2020 and special general
meeting held on 27 October 2020 to answer questions and
collect views of shareholders.

Rights of Shareholders to Convene Special General
Meeting

A special general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the registration not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company which as at the date of the deposit
carries the voting right at general meetings of the Company
deposited at the registered office of the Company in Bermuda
(Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda)
and the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong (39/F, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong) for the
attention of the Board.

The written requisition shall specify the objects of the special
general meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s). If the Board
does not, within 21 days from the date of deposit of the written
requisition, proceed duly to convene the special general meeting
the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the special general meeting in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which special general meeting may be
convened by the Board, provided that any special general
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
3 months from the date of deposit of the written requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports, annual
reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders in a timely
manner and are also available on the website of the Company.
The Company’s website provides the shareholders with the
corporate information, such as principal business activities and
latest development of the Group, as well as the share price and
dividend history of the Company. Also, it provides information
on corporate governance and corporate social responsibilities
of the Group as well as the compositions and functions of the
Board and the committees. For efficient communication with
shareholders and in the interest of environmental protection,
arrangements were made to allow shareholders to elect
to receive corporate communications of the Company by
electronic means through the Company’s website.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone hotline, fax number, emalil
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make
any query that they may have with respect to the Company.
They can also send their enquiries to the Board through these
means.

Constitutional Documents

Changes in the Company’s constitutional documents may
only be effected by way of special resolution. During the Year,
there were no changes in any of the Company’s constitutional
documents.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website at http:/www.kunlun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders investment and the Company’s assets. The internal
control system of the Company comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
The Company also has an internal audit department, which is
responsible for monitoring the internal governance of the Group and
overseeing the risk management and internal control system of the
Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses annually the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system which covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management of the Company. The Board
acknowledges that such risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Having reviewed the assessment report issued by an external
advisory firm, the Board considers that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

The Group has been attaching great importance to internal control
and risk management. The Company continued to facilitate the
building of its internal control system, gradually built and improved a
comprehensive risk management system, and effectively promoted
its operation in compliance with the laws and regulations. It actively
pushed forward the integration of risk management and business and
gave full play to the guiding role of risks in its management.

MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL IN
2020

In 2020, in accordance with the requirement and arrangement of
the Board and the management, and under the risk-oriented and
compliance-based principle, the Company’s internal control and
risk management work was focused on optimization of procedures,
implementation of effective supervision and enhancement of material
risk management and control, further strengthening the Company’s
capability in risk prevention, and enabling the Company to achieve
high-quality development with all tasks for the year successfully
and smoothly accomplished. In addition, the Company was rated
by PetroChina Company Limited in its internal control operation
evaluation as an “outstanding” unit for three consecutive years.
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Market Risk

The Group proactively facilitated the resumption of work
and operation of the end-users. For end-users that have
not yet resumed work or operation, the Group conducted
inspection of their actual situation and promptly tracked
their operation resumption plan to prevent customer loss.
Meanwhile, the Group made full preparation for gas supply to
customers once operation is resumed, so as to ensure timely
distribution and supply of gas upon resumption of operation.
For end-users that have resumed operation, while sparing
no efforts in guaranteeing resource supply, the Group also
adopted a well-structured marketing strategy to boost their
gas consumption back to the pre-epidemic level as soon as
possible. Furthermore, through enhanced communication and
coordination with production enterprises and users, the Group
helped address the shortage in transportation capacity during
the epidemic and mitigated the imbalance between supply
and demand to some extent. Great efforts were exerted to
optimize its sales structure and increase the sales volume
of retail business with high efficiency, in order to maintain
stable profit. The Group also adopted a proactive marketing
strategy targeted at non-resident customers having gas
consumption of over 10,000 cubic metres, and implemented a
sales volume expansion strategy, for the purpose of customer
loss prevention, ultimately recording an increase in end-user
sales of nearly 50 million cubic metres. By focusing on the
priority tasks such as cultivating the existing niche markets,
development of new markets, active initiatives for stable gas
supply and rigorous promotion of rational pricing, the Group
managed to effectively address the risk of declining end-user
sales caused by the epidemic, fully eliminate or mitigate the
impacts by some degrees, and achieve the established goals
of continuous rapid growth of end-user sales and expansion
of customer base.
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Risks related to the development of national policy

The Group paid close attention to new industry policies
and carried out careful interpretation and analysis on
policies introduced by the government, such as the “Notice
on Strengthening Supervision on the Transmission and
Distribution Price of Natural Gas” ({71138 X %A R &) Bc (B 1%
ELEH)EA)) , the “Notice on Temporary Reduction of Natural
Gas Cost for Non-resident Purpose in Supporting Resumption
of Work and Production” (KBRS B M & EIEER AR AR
BOEETIEERRA)) and the white paper titled “Energy in
China’'s New Era” ((FTEFEIHREIGEIRERE)) , etc., to analyze
and study the market changes and industry trends brought by
policy changes and develop response strategies in advance,
SO as to effectively prevent and mitigate policy risks and their
impacts. Besides, the Group actively cooperated with local
governments in policy implementation by taking the initiative to
adjust the retail price of natural gas and bringing the impact
on price reduction to the industry, so as to ensure that its
downstream corporate customers could benefit from favorable
policies in a timely manner. In response to the requirements
under the “Notice on Taking Special Measures to Address
Safety Problems Related to LPG Cylinders and Bottled LPG”
KERFEEREABIRBMBEEREABRELZEFEER
BB %1))  released jointly by the State Administration for
Market Regulation, the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development and other three equivalent authorities, the Group
actively participated and cooperated with local governments
in consolidating the LPG market and regulating markets
and the industry, to continuously increase its market share.
Furthermore, the Group also strengthened the cooperation
with the upstream entities to seek simultaneous decrease in
gas purchase price, and established relevant system to collect
market information on a weekly basis to promptly follow policy
changes made by provincial governments, marketing strategies
of competitors, gas consumption of major customers and other
key information, so as to mitigate the risk of narrowing sales
margin.
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Health, Safety and Environmental Protection Risks

The Group continued to improve its systems and strengthen
its management foundation, and implemented a routine
management mechanism to continuously promote its
consistent performance of pipeline compliance inspection and
detection, internal and external pipeline detection, identification
of high risk areas, flood prevention and other tasks. Besides,
being committed to improve its digital management and control
system, the Group facilitated digital pipeline management
under its three-year special rectification action plan, and
conducted pilot rollout of the pipeline management modules
in its production management system, effectively improving
its management and control efficiency and giving full play
to cross monitoring. The Group took vigorous measures to
address potential safety hazards and violations, achieving
the annual targets of full monitoring and inspection coverage
of all second-tier and third-tier subsidiaries with the
accomplishment of all project tasks. In addition, the Group
strengthened contingency plan management and enhanced
emergency and accident management. Given its high attention
to event reporting, the Group continuously strengthened the
statistical analysis of event-related information, especially
events related to pipelines and users, and made strenuous
efforts to investigate event cause from the management
perspective, identify system deficiency and develop preventive
measures. There was no report of major safety hazards during
the Year.

Risks related to gas metering

The Group carried out daily maintenance to ensure smooth
operation of metering equipment. Paying close attention
to the equipment that has not been inspected due to the
COVID-19 epidemic, the Group requested all subsidiaries to
conduct risk assessment, strengthen parameter monitoring
and management and have the equipment inspected as soon
as possible, so as to avoid omitting inspection. In addition, the
Group conducted special inspection on the metering system
of customers suffering with severe gas loss and analysis on
the gas loss data, and strengthened online monitoring and
detection of the operation of the meters to identify gas theft
and leakage in a timely manner. The Group also tracked and
calculated gas loss on a quarterly basis, and summarized
and promoted the relevant experience in management and
control. Taking advantage of the transformation of its metering
and delivery system, the Group directed its subsidiaries to
manage gas metering in an orderly manner, conduct special
study and pass the inspection upon acceptance, and primarily
established its metering management system based on the
results of the study. There were no report of major and serious
disputes or accidents in relation to metering matters during
the Year.
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Investment Risk

With a focus on its core business, the Group invests only in
sizeable, profitable and quality equity projects by clarifying the
multidimensional selection criteria for equity acquisition and
merger projects in terms of strategic approach, profitability
and other aspects. Moreover, the Group strengthens the
management of equity investment projects from the source
through stringent selection of shareholders, in-depth due
diligence and analysis of risks in legal affairs, financial
affairs, security, social stability and other areas, so as to
effectively ensure the risk control and compliance management
requirements. Furthermore, the Group carried out the
planning and research on its business development and
improved its planning, analysis and assessment system. The
detailed plans prepared by the Group would then be used
as key reference for the establishment of primary working
programmes. While adhering to the working mechanism of
“multi-level accountability and multi-layer inspection”, the
Group would take into account the management capability of
different provincial companies from an overall perspective, and
implement differentiated authorization management, with an
emphasis on the accountability of the granted authorization,
so as to achieve unification of power and responsibilities.
In addition, the Group strictly executed its four-step project
approval procedure of pre-review, evaluation, headquarter
review and corporate decision making, and thus projects that
failed to meet the profitability standards would not be approved
and implemented. With a more scientific decision-making
procedure for investment projects, the Group effectively
prevented and controlled risks in market development and
investment, ensuring the quality and profitability of the
investments.
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Management Risk of Engineering Projects

The Group continued to improve its professional project
management system to further strengthen the project
construction management, and took various measures to
perfect the administrative measures on project construction
and refine regulations on project risk management, so as
to enhance the operability of each project. In addition, the
Group further enriched inspection means to improve quality of
supervision and inspection, and carried out special inspections
and supervisions on major projects, key areas and coal-to-gas
conversion project by organizing comprehensive inspections
on engineering projects of the Company. All key projects
were inspected while the others were checked on a random
basis, and such inspection covered all companies in any
provinces where such engineering projects are located, which
was effective for precaution, alert and supervision. Efforts
have been made to regulate the performance of contracts
by the contractors so as to have the orderly development
of the projects. In addition, the Group continued to enhance
the implementation of the “five requirements” regarding the
contractors, strengthened the supervision on contractors
from every aspects including entry barrier, use of services,
assessment and result application, and put in place the
“contractor blacklist” system. Under the principle of “service
users to conduct evaluation and take responsibility”, the
Group organized the second-tier subsidiaries to conduct
annual assessment on the contractors, enhanced management
over contract performance by the contractors and initiated
review of major projects after bidding, effectively preventing
management risks of engineering projects.
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Risks related to managing loss-making subsidiaries

From the perspective of strengthening the “Four Awareness”,
the Group strived to gain a clear understanding of the overall
situation and formed a shared commitment within the Group.
We deployed a team of outstanding talents and consolidated
group resources to tackle the difficult tasks in phasing out
loss-making subsidiaries in a limited time frame. Furthermore,
the Group also specified key milestones in phasing out such
subsidiaries according to the loss-making subsidiaries phase-
out plan, and deepened and refined the work plan in the
principle of compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and differentiated policies for various subsidiaries. With
the head of each subsidiary at the provincial or regional
level acting as the primary person-in-charge of loss-making
subsidiaries phase-out task, the members of the senior
management, assistants and assistant to the president of such
subsidiaries were responsible for the direction, supervision and
coordination in their designated regions. Special assistance
and guidance were given to regions with greater number of
loss-making subsidiaries, with concerted effort to tackle the
problems. Various departments of the headquarters proactively
fulfilled their responsibility and worked together to create
synergetic effect and push the tasks forward. In addition, the
Group made loss-making subsidiaries phase-out as a part of
the performance assessment of its subsidiaries and align their
performance in this aspect with compensation distribution
and payment as well as the performance appraisal of the key
leaders.
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Risks related to strategic partners

To effectively prevent the risks arising from strategic partner
selection, the Group, based on its corporate management
needs, further revised and improved its strategic partner
selection methods. To accommodate its corporate
management needs, the Group raised the selection criteria and
selected excellent partners to form the alliance which leverages
complementary strengths. In addition, during the preliminary
assessment of equity investment projects, the Group strictly
implemented its strategic partner selection methods and
strengthened partner due diligence, so as to promptly
identify risks affecting capital contribution and limitations on
equity interest of the joint venture projects. No joint venture
cooperation with prohibited parties was allowed. The Group
also enhanced equity management by enhancing exercise
of rights by the contributors, strengthening communication
and coordination with the strategic partners and tracking the
operation and contract performance of the strategic partners,
so as to assess their impacts on the joint venture companies
in a timely manner, come up with effective response measures
and prevent operational risks.

Legal Risk

Sticking to the requirement of “compliance with applicable
laws and regulations”, and through the identification of legal
compliance risks relating to the business operation and
various positions as well as guidance on the prevention
and control measures, the Group strived to address and
prevent various legal risks. Besides, the Group regulated the
antitrust compliance actions in the systems and operations to
improve the antitrust investigation, response and coordination
mechanism. In addition, the Group strengthened the instruction
and training regarding major steps of contract management,
and further pushed forward the application of the contract
management informatization and standardisation. The Group
improved the safety of contractual transactions by promoting
whole-cycle contract management and contract performance
supervision. Putting more efforts to deal with lawsuits, the
Group also took full advantage of all kinds of legal resources to
mitigate lawsuit risks in a timely manner and effectively protect
its legitimate rights and interests.
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10.

Risks related to organizational structure

To improve the organization’s operation efficiency, the Group
actively promoted the optimization and integration of its third-
tier organization structure following the principle of “one city,
one managing body”. Furthermore, the Group issued the
“Notice on Further Advancing the Optimization and Integration
of the Third-tier Management Structure of the Company” ({#
RAABELARMB=MEERBEELESITENBN)),
which stipulates binding targets on all subsidiaries to further
promote the optimization and integration. In addition, the
Group tightened the equity investment authorization by strictly
controlling the number and size of investment projects. The
Group signed the Statement of Delayer Target (/5 BI1Z &
f££)) with each subsidiary at the provincial level, which
sets out the time schedule for completing delayer task and
specifies the delayer target of no less than 25% and the rules
for evaluating the delayer performance. The Group reviewed
with its subsidiaries at the provincial level and there were 17
subsidiaries disposed during the Year. Based on the fulfillment
of the benchmark return indicators of the ultimate holding
company, the Group selected the best projects, eliminated
the projects that fail to meet the standards after taking into
consideration of the size and expected economic benefits, in
order to ensure the control over the investments. Projects not
included into the proposed equity investment plan for the Year
shall not be put into implementation, effectively mitigating the
risk of losing control over the establishment of subsidiaries
under the multi-level authorization system of equity investment.

10.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXERES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review of the results of each business segment of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), major risks
and uncertainties facing the Group’s business operations, and the
Group’s business prospects are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
and Chief Executive Officer’s Statement on pages 12 to 27 of this
annual report, the discussion thereof forms part of this Directors’
Report.

(1) Business Strategy

Currently, the China economy has shifted from rapid growth
to high-quality development. In light of the significant strategic
progress made in the epidemic containment, and with the
economy returning to the growth track, the GDP growth
forecast was set at above 6% in the Report on the Work of the
Government for the year. The high-quality development of the
macro-economy is expected to drive rigid demands for clean
energies, including natural gas. Following the establishment
of the *“dual carbon goals”, the industry has witnessed
accelerated low-carbon transformation of the energy structure,
while natural gas is expected to play a greater bridging and
supporting role during this historical process. Under the
carbon reduction and carbon trading policy, there will be
ample room for development in the industrial, transportation
and power generation sectors in the short term. As the
development of the natural gas industry fits well with the “six
stabilities, six guarantees” requirement and national policies of
new urbanization and rural revitalization, this sector is expected
to have robust market demands in the medium to long term.
According to relevant forecast, the consumption of natural gas
in China by the end of the “14th Five-Year” plan period will
reach 420 billion to 440 billion cubic metres, with an average
annual growth rate of about 5.7%.

66 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2020

EmeRERAR(ARGNEEE((ES
ENRAREHE_ST-_ZTFE+_A=+—
AEFE(ARFED)ZFRERLEZLEE
S HRE -

E 3300

HARBIREMBAR (RBIAEE])&E
BIRMES AEBEBLEARITIE
RBETHEERNERAMAEEXHREZ
HAEHERNAFRERE27AZEFER
ERTBREBRE BRI WMBKAES

EHmEE D -

(1) BB

A PREEED R RIERERER
SEHERRER  -BEHNTEHRRIE

iR SEAEBEAR  KBEERZ
FEBALY  SFEHBRTIERER
£ TGDPIER6% A FHFEREEZE - &
BRESESRRETHBERAL
ERRERERE MR - BEE
[EHEZ iR @ EREBERER
PHEHRR KRAREE—ELERS
MBRML BEERBE—TER -
HIE - FERR R HE KBk X 5 R B HE B
T T B BEAEHTEERAK -
FREIE  RAREFABRKR[NEN
RIBSk - FAV AR - A IR
MBRERSERE  MHEERIME
B o REABER [t REIKXF
B R AREE E#53%4,20018 54,400
BH  FHBRRFESTREL A ©

hSy



(2)

During the “14th Five-Year” plan period, energy transformation
and oil and gas system reform will present the Company
with more opportunities than challenges. With an aim to
facilitate high-quality development, the Group will vigorously
push forward the implementation of the five strategies of
“innovation, green operation, market, capital and low cost”.
Taking innovations as the primary driver, the Group will put
effort in system, commercial model and corporate culture.
The Group will facilitate innovations by focusing on the natural
gas business and strive to improve the value of business
chain through the process of innovation. By adopting a
market-oriented strategy, the Group will promote the overall
development of all business lines while tailor solutions
for different business segments, so as to consolidate its
advantages in resources for precise resource allocation. The
Group will push forward the cooperation in joint ventures, and
will put proactive efforts to build a win-win industry ecosystem,
with an aim to facilitate transformation and upgrading of the
local economy and energy structure. Quality and efficiency
enhancement is the fundamental policy in development, and
thus efforts have been made to promote cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement in all aspects, so as to strengthen our
core competitiveness in low-cost operation. To promote green
development, the Group will smooth the different business
strategies, and expedite its transformation from a natural gas
distributor into an internationally renowned and China’s first-
class integrated green energy provider.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business are mainly operated by its subsidiaries
in the PRC and overseas, which in their businesses should
abide by the relevant laws and regulations, including those
relating to gas operation and service, gas facilities protection,
prevention and handling of gas safety accidents, price
determination regime of natural gas, environmental protection,
labour security, exploration, production and sales of crude oil.
The Group has also obtained the requisite business licenses,
qualifications, approvals and permits which are necessary for
conducting its operations in the PRC and overseas.

During the Year, to the best of the knowledge and information
of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the Group
has complied with the relevant laws, regulations and other
applicable requirements that have a significant impact on the
Group and there have not been any illegal or non-compliant
acts which would materially impact the Group’s normal and
continuing operations.
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Key relationships with stakeholders

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to its healthy growth and strives to maintain
effective communication with its stakeholders, including its
shareholders, investors, employees, customers and suppliers.
This has facilitated the Group’s sustainable development
in various aspects, including its business operation,
environmental protection and work environment.

Corporate communications are provided to the shareholders of
the Company in a timely manner. The Directors participated in
the general meetings held during the Year to enable effective
communication with the shareholders. The Company also
continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the development of the Company.

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness in recruitment
and treatment of its employees, and has established sound
occupational health and safety policies to create a desirable
work environment for its employees. Remuneration package
and benefits of the employees are determined in accordance
with market terms, industry practice as well as duties,
performance, qualification and experience of the employees.

The Group adopts a market-oriented approach, closely
monitors the demand for its products and coordinate its
production, transmission and marketing activities with an aim
to provide greater value to its customers. The Group has
established long-term relationship with its major customers,
including PetroChina Company Limited (“PetroChina”) and
other independent third-party customers which are primarily
industrial users of the Group’s gas products. The ageing
analysis and further details of the Group’s accounts receivable
are set out in Note 22 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Group did not rely on any major
customer during the Year, and will continue to adopt multiple
measures to develop users and expand marketing channels.

At the same time, the Group adopts scientific approach
in managing its supply chain and controlling costs of raw
materials. The Group has also received strong support from
its largest supplier, PetroChina, in maintaining stable supply
for its midstream and downstream natural gas business. The
Group has maintained a good relationship, and did not have
any significant disputes, with its major customers and suppliers
during the Year.
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The Group has upheld its mission of “Low-Carbon Economy
Green Development” in its long-term business strategy. It
has placed a great emphasis on environmental protection by
promoting energy conservation and emission reduction with
a view to contributing to the sustainable development of the
environment and maintaining long-term growth of the Group.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are the
sales of natural gas, sales of liquefied petroleum gas (“‘LPG”) and
liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing and terminal business in
the PRC and the exploration and production of crude oil and natural
gas in the PRC, the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Sultanate of Oman,
the Republic of Peru, the Kingdom of Thailand and the Republic of
Azerbaijan.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 94 and 95.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB26.3
cents per share amounting to approximately RMB2,277 million was
paid during the Year. The Directors recommended the payment of
a final dividend of RMB21.01 cents per share for the Year and a
special dividend of RMB213.66 cents per share, amounting to a
total of approximately RMB20,320 million.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity on pages 98 and 99, and Note 26 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

fig A

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during ARRIAEERNZ BRAEHFIFSHNEE
the Year are set out in Note 25 in the Notes to the Consolidated — Bf 7 & & Fft 5% 2 M 5525
Financial Statements.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY Z NGRS &7 T E -
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders WZE-ZEFK-_F—hLF+-_HA=+—8 "
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows: RN A) A] ’“szﬂ%ﬁ LU
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEETR ARBBEETT
Contributed surplus EBRAH% 109 109
Retained earnings BIFEF 19,508 17,779
19,617 17,888

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year are:

Executive Directors:
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)
(appointed on 19 November 2020)
Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 19 November 2020)
Mr Zhou Yuanhong
Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr Ling Xiao (resigned on 19 November 2020)
Mr Zhao Yongqi (resigned on 19 November 2020)
Mr Zhao Zhongxun (resigned on 19 May 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (retired on 27 May 2020 and
did not offer himself for re-election)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
November 2020, Mr Ling Xiao resigned as Executive Director with
effect from 19 November 2020 due to the reason of his other work
engagements, and Mr Zhao Yongqi resigned as Executive Director
with effect from 19 November 2020 due to having reached the age
of retirement.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 May
2020, Mr Zhao Zhongxun resigned as Executive Director with
effect from 19 May 2020 due to the reason of his other work
engagements.

In accordance with Bye-law 97 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Li
Kwok Sing Aubrey retired at the 2020 Annual General Meeting, and
has not offered himself for re-election at the 2020 Annual General
Meeting because he has reached the age of retirement.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

During the Year, the Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising
out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHEE
E
RAFEANT ZEFMT
BITES:
{38 55 4 (2 %)

(RZB_FF+—HTNABZL
BRI E(TTEAEE)

(R-ZB_FF+—HTNHEHEZE)
BR B E
RBBERE(HBHEE)
EEAE(R-ZF_FFF+—HFILAFE)
HKREE(R-ZE-_EF+—HAT/EEFT)
HEBMAE(R=ZFZFEFAAFTNHEFF)

BIAFHITES:

2 BE 1818 1

DR STE

THERLER-_FE-_FTFAA-++H
BIT - WTEEZET)

FOAARAPAE-ZE_EF+—HTNH
B ARSI IIT’Fnﬂ@JE- ERBEE
BANTES  URZZE_FTF+—A+NI
A AR REAZEIRKEER - BoKEBEE
BERNTES  YRZZTZFTF+—A+N
HA R -

HMARREMAS T -_FTFHAT AN
REMRE  RITEASHRE - EE8EE
BIERTES YR-_FT_FTFAATNA
FRAERR

BREBEARR ZARMAER  THERESRE
ER-E-_TERRBFAGLERE AR
BEEERFEMIAE T _ZTFRRBF
REBEEL -

BEEERARNAR L IAHARE RN —F
WTﬁﬁﬁwmz1 BR 50 T 4 1E 2 AR 75

/\ o

BEF R

REE ARACHEEERSRERAR
AREEEHMERADELE EEITY B
ESERTBABZBEFEE ZRRTH

ERERERAR —E-sss5gRs /1



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERES

BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr Fu Bin (Chairman)

Aged 56, Mr Fu was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 19 November 2020, and served as the Chairman of
the Board from 19 November 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

Mr Fu is currently executive director of PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company (FEIAHXAREE D A7), president of
PetroChina Natural Gas and Pipelines Company (4 B A i Xk %A
REEEH A7), and executive director and president of China
Petroleum Hong Kong (Holding) Limited (FE A X ARE B AR
NG

Mr Fu, being a senior economist, obtained a bachelor's degree
in engineering and a master’'s degree in engineering from China
University of Petroleum, East China, and China University of
Petroleum, Beijing, respectively, and completed the EMBA course
at the University of Houston.

Mr Fu has over 30 years of experience in the Chinese petroleum
and gas industry. Since 1992, Mr Fu had worked in China National
Petroleum Corporation Marketing Company (7 Bl A H X AR E A
Al $4 & A 7)), China National Petroleum Marketing Corporation (7
Bl £ 38 & 422 7)) and the Refining and Marketing Company of
PetroChina Company Limited (“PetroChina”) (B h X R RAX DA
PR A &) 6 Om EL §5 & 9 A F]). Mr Fu became executive vice president
and president of China Marine Bunker (PetroChina) Co., Ltd. (B
AR ELEBR E L2 7)) in November 2003 and July 2007 respectively.
He became vice president of PetroChina Marketing Company (4
B AHEE D 27]) in November 2009, president of PetroChina
Sichuan Marketing Company (B A #0138 E 5 A7) as well as
president of Sichuan Petroleum Corporation (P81 A i & B A )
in October 2014, and president of PetroChina Marketing Company
in April 2018. He became executive director of PetroChina Natural
Gas Marketing Company, president of PetroChina Natural Gas and
Pipelines Company, and executive director and president of China
Petroleum Hong Kong (Holding) Limited in October 2020.
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Mr Qian Zhijia (Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 55, Mr Qian was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 19 November 2020.

Mr Qian is currently president of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing
Company (F B A#XAREE D A7)

Mr Qian, being a senior engineer, obtained a bachelor’s degree in
engineering and a doctorate degree in engineering from Southwest
Petroleum University, and completed the EMBA course at the
University of Houston.

Mr Qian has over 30 vyears of experience in the Chinese
petroleum and gas industry and had worked in Sichuan Petroleum
Administration Bureau (U)II'/BAEIE D) and PetroChina Southwest
Oil and Gas Field Company (EI/G M7 R R HES A7) since July
1989. He became vice president of PetroChina Southwest Oil and
Gas Field Company in December 2009, as well as vice president of
PetroChina Natural Gas Southwest Marketing Company (7 & A jHx
RAHETRE D A7) in December 2016 concurrently. In May 2017,
Mr Qian became executive vice president of PetroChina Southwest
Oil and Gas Field Company and vice president of PetroChina
Natural Gas Southwest Marketing Company. In July 2018, Mr Qian
became president of PetroChina Natural Gas Southwest Marketing
Company and vice president of PetroChina Southwest Oil and Gas
Field Company. In January 2019, Mr Qian became vice president
of the Company and vice president of PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company. In October 2020, Mr Qian became president
of PetroChina Natural Gas Marketing Company.

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Aged 53, Mr Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 January 2018.

Mr Zhou is a Senior Accountant, now appointed as the Deputy
General Manager of the Capital Operation Department of China
National Petroleum Corporation and a Director of CNPC Capital
Company Limited. With a working experience of more than 30
years in the petroleum and natural gas industry, Mr Zhou has long
been engaged in financial management and capital operation in
PetroChina and possesses extensive knowledge and experience in
financial management and capital operation.

Mr Zhou successively obtained a bachelor's degree from Xi'an
Shiyou Institute and a master’s degree from the University of New
South Wales, Australia.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer)

Aged 47, Mr Miao was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 January 2018 and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 6 November 2018.

Mr Miao, being a senior accountant, has over 20 years of working
experience in the oil and gas industry in PRC. From July 2009, he
was deputy chief accountant of Finance Department of PetroChina.
From June 2012, he was chief accountant of PetroChina Southwest
Pipelines Branch Company (B AAARMEE D A7) From
December 2016, he was Chief Accountant of PetroChina Pipelines.
From July 2017, he was Chief Accountant of PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Aged 58, Dr Liu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 16 April 2004.

Dr Liu has more than 23 years of experience in corporate finance
and has worked in various international financial institutions
since 1993, including N.M. Rothschild & Sons, NM Rothschild &
Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, JP Morgan Chase, DBS Asia Capital
Limited, China Resources Capital Holdings Company Limited. He
was an independent non-executive director of Haier Electronics
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1169) since June 2007 up
to June 2014, an independent non-executive director of Hisense
Home Appliances Group Company Limited (stock code: 921) since
September 2017 up to August 2018, an independent non-executive
director of Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 196) since January
2008, an independent non-executive director of Cinda International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 111) since July 2016, the independent
non-executive director of Sunfonda Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1771) since May 2017 and the independent non-executive
director of AAG Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 2686) since
August 2018, the issued shares of all of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He
is also currently an independent director of UBS Securities Co., Ltd.
Dr Liu obtained a master’'s degree and a Ph.D. from the Faculty of
Economics, University of Cambridge in 1988 and 1994 respectively,
a Master of Science degree in Development Studies from the
University of Bath, England, in 1987, and a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Southwest University of Finance and Economics, China
(previously known as Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics,
China) in 1983.
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Mr Sun Patrick

Aged 62, Mr Sun was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 February 2016.

Mr Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd., which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director
of CRRC Corporation Limited and China Railway Construction
Corporation Limited, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr Sun was an independent non-executive director of China Railway
Signal & Communication Corporation Limited (2015-2018), Trinity
Limited (2008—2020), China NT Pharma Group Co., Ltd. (2010—2019),
all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong, and Chairman of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies (2013—-2015). Before that,
he was the senior country officer and head of investment banking
for Hong Kong of JP Morgan Chase, group executive director and
head of investment banking for Greater China at Jardine Fleming
Holdings Limited. He was a member of the Takeovers & Mergers
Panel and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission, deputy convenor of the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange and a council member of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania, the United States, with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Economics in 1981. Mr Sun also completed the Stanford
Executive Program of Stanford Business School, the United States,
in 2000. Mr Sun is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the United Kingdom, and a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Aged 73, Mr Tsang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 August 2019.

Mr. Tsang is currently an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (stock
code: 3613), and DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 0620) both are listed on the Stock Exchange,
an honorary professor at the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
convenor of Hong Kong Vision Research Programme (&8 58 2 &t
21), vice chairman of Hong Kong Policy Research Institute Limited
and an advisor of the Democratic Alliance for the Betterment
and Progress of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang also dedicates himself to
education in Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree and certificate in education from the University of Hong
Kong in 1968 and 1981, respectively. He then obtained a master’s
degree in education from the University of Hong Kong in 1983. He
is currently a manager of Pui Kiu Primary School and supervisor of
Pui Kiu Middle School and Pui Kiu College.

From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Tsang was the chairman of the Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment of Hong Kong (B = 2 &Kt 8). From
1993 to 2013, Mr. Tsang was a member of the National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. From
1996 to 2000, he served as a member of the Standing Committee
on Language Education and Research. From 1996 to 2005, he was
a member of the Council of the Open University of Hong Kong.
From 1997 to 1998, he was a member of the Provisional Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”).
From 1998 to 2016, he was a member of the Legislative Council
of the HKSAR. From 2002 to 2008, he was a member of the
Executive Council of the HKSAR. From 2008 to 2016, he was the
president of the 4th and the 5th Legislative Council of the HKSAR.
In addition, from 2001 to 2007, he was a non-executive Director of
the Securities and Futures Commission. From 2002 to 2008, he was
a member of the Disaster Relief Fund Advisory Committee. From
2003 to 2008, he was a member of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption Complaints Committee. From 2005 to 2008, he
was a member of the Executive Committee of the Commission on
Strategic Development and a board member of the Airport Authority.
From 2017 to 2018, he served as a member of the Task Force on
Land Supply.
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Company Secretary
Mr Xie Mao (Company Secretary)

Aged 50, Mr Xie was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company on 17 December 2020.

Mr Xie is a senior economist and holds a Master of Business
Administration from Zhejiang University and served as a visiting
fellow at Stanford University. Mr Xie has been appointed as the
secretary to the Board since May 2016 and is affiliated person of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Xie has 30
years of work experience in the petroleum and natural gas industry
and has worked in several oil and gas companies of PetroChina.

Chief Financial Officer
Mr Miao Yong

Aged 47, Mr Miao was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 January 2018 and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 6 November 2018. Mr Miao’s biography is set out on
page 74.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or any entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Commencement of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such Director
and chief executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuer under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries and
its holding companies a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
spouses and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the Period, the Company does not have any outstanding
share options granted to the directors and employees of the
Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO, showed that the
Company has been notified of the following interests, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company.
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Number of shares Percentage
g 4= of issued
Direct Indirect shares
interest interest HEBTRH
Name z28 EEER BEER 2B
PetroChina Hong Kong Ltd. PHBEERRAF 4,708,302,133 (L) - 54.38%
(“PetroChina Hong Kong”)" ((REHBEEDO 4,708,302,133 (1)
PetroChina Company Limited FEABRARR S - 4,708,302,133 (L) 54.38%
(“PetroChina”) BRAQA 4,708,302,133 (#¥)
(THEAMKDO
Fairy King Investments Ltd.? Fairy King Investments Ltd.? 277,432,000 (L) - 3.20%
277,432,000 (4F)
CNPC International Ltd. CNPC International Ltd. - 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
(“CNPCI")® ([CNPCIJ) @ 277,432,000 (£F)
China National Oil and Gas H B A B R AR IR - 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
Exploration and Development RN 277,432,000 (£F)
Corporation (“CNODC”)@ (flcNoDc)) @
China National Petroleum FEABRARREE AT - 4,985,734,133 (L) 57.58%
Corporation (“CNPC”)"@ ((HBEAHER]) 4,985,734,133 (#%)
Notes: B 5 -
1) PetroChina Hong Kong is wholly owned by PetroChina, which in turnis (1) RFEHEEEATRABEZEEES MPEA

owned as to 80.80% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to have
interest in the 4,708,302,133 (L) shares held by PetroChina Hong Kong.

2 Based on the Disclosure of Interests Online (DION) System of the Stock
Exchange, Fairy King Investments Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CNPCI, which in turn is wholly owned by CNODC, which is in turn owned
as to 100.00% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is deemed to have interest
in the 277,432,000 (L) shares held by Fairy King Investments Ltd.

@

8 Bl B R B A e & B E 580.80% 4 & o
b FREABEREKRARPABE B
24,708,302,133 (4F) IR IRy B #E 1 ©

1R ¥R B AZ P 2 4R E 4 %5 4% 78 (DION) & 4% -
Fairy King Investments Ltd./5CNPCIZ & &
i AR - MCNPCIFHCNODC2 & A
B Bl A h & E % A CNODC 2 100.00% #
e AL - PEIA RS E AR AR Fairy King
Investments Ltd. FT$§ 2 277,432,000 (4F) iz i%
MR ER -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any
person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company were not aware of any person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2020 and there
had been no other exercise of convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the Year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules, are as follows.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESZERGE

FAEXS

EHRABEBT2HEBERS - ARELM
HAIBUAEHEIT T

Nature of transactions Details Amount incurred for 2020 Annual cap for 2020
REMtE #f “ECREEECEE “ECREFELR
RMB'million RMB'million
ANRERET ANEREET
() Provision of products by the CNPC Group  As disclosed in Company’s 56,960 78,575
to the Group announcement dated 11 September 2020
PREERNASEREER and circular dated 5 October 2020
RARRIBHAZE-SENAT—H
ZRERZZ-TETARA
ZBHPRE
(i) Provision of services by the CNPC Group ~ As disclosed in Company’s 6,777 13,433
to the Group announcement dated 11 September 2020
TREERNASBRERS and circular dated 5 October 2020
RARABEA-Z-_ZENAT—AH
JRAER-F-EE+ATA
LRHTRE
(i) Provision of products by the Group As disclosed in Company’s 3,335 8,409
to the CNPC Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
AEEmTRERREER and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARARIRHA-S—+tE+—A-TAH
LRERZE—+ETZA-A
LREHTRE
(iv)  Provision of services by the Group As disclosed in Company’s 15,285 21,244

to the CNPC Group
AERmTREERERS

announcement dated 29 November 2017
and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARRIRSEA-E—+tE+—A-+NA
LRERZE—tETZA-H

LBHPRE
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the independent auditor of the Company to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The independent auditor of the Company has issued
its letter containing its following findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on pages 206 to 210 of the Annual Report in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Nothing has come to the independent auditor’s attention that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;

(i) are not in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company
if the transactions involve provision of goods or services by
the Group;

(i) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcements
dated 29 November 2017 and 11 September 2020 and
circulars dated 1 December 2017 and 5 October 2020
with respect to the aggregated amount of each transaction
involved.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Group has entered into certain entrustment management
contracts in relation to the management and operation of the Leng
Jiapu Contract and PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to 69%
the Group’s largest supplier

Percentage of purchases attributable to 72%
the Group’s five largest suppliers

Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or 8%

rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers

10%

PetroChina, a listed subsidiary of CNPC,
supplier and customer.

is the Group’s largest

Save for the above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the close directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) has
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to RMB4,005,911.
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AKARBHER  Eft FiiFERESSEE
TFIETHRNFUAEZHERT -
EEAMEH
$¢lEﬁEE&L%Q%MGH ¢
ﬁéﬂo
FEEERMLED
TEHERMBEROASERENEES
IR ERBE WA ZBED LT
AEEmAHERGRETS L 69%
AEERAAHEELHRET L 72%

AEBZKABEEEHEEDX 8%
RERBZEABD L

AEBRABEGHHEEEYX
RERBZBABD KL

10%

hEAHER ETMBARTEARAXR
SEZRAREHNER

BRLaEIN EF REZETHEAL
AR SESHMANEBARBCEITRMHAE
5%A EZERIRRBERAEE L T2
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and the employees of the Company
are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration Committee
to the Board, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the knowledge
of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 23 March 2021, none of the
Directors and their respective associates had any interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the businesses of
the Group (as would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules if each of them were a controlling shareholder).
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Name of Director

EEfR

Name of company

ALIEE

Nature of interest

EEME

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESZERGE

Nature of competing
business

BEEBUE

Fu Bin (appointed on
19 November 2020)

MR -—E-FF
T—ATNAEZL)

Qian Zhijia (@ppointed on
19 November 2020)

BARR_F_FF
T—ATNAEZE)

Zhou Yuanhong
J&E %

Miao Yong
B

Ling Xiao (resigned on
19 November 2020)

RE (R -_FE_FF
F—ATNBEE)

Zhao Zhongxun (resigned on
19 May 2020)

i AN EjJ (]JLA F—F ff
AAFAFE)

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above entities, the
Company has therefore been capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the above businesses.

PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company
FEABRAREED QA

PetroChina Natural Gas and
Pipelines Company

FEAOHMRARBEED QA

China Petroleum Hong Kong
(Holding) Limited
FEARARAREBRRRRF

PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company
FEOARAREED AT

CNPC
REAHEE

PetroChina Natural Gas
Marketing Company
FEABRAREED QA

PetroChina
HELA

PetroChina
HELA

Executive Director

WITES

President
RS

Executive Director and
President

WITEERALE

President
e

Vice President of M&A
Department

BERNEZ#alRE

Chief Accountant

Bestam

Vice President

&l A

Vice President of

Department of Planning

and Programming

G DE R Y

=
EB

PNl /N
AEEERE KT -

WEERERAE =

Marketing of natural gas

RARTIGHEE

Planning and Management
Natural Gas and Pipeline
Business

AAREEBEBNMREIHE
B8

Investment Holding Company

REZR AT

Marketing of natural gas

RARTIGHEE

Exploration, development and
product and marketing of
crude oil and natural gas

RomkRARZEE
P EAEENTISHEE

Marketing of natural gas

RARTIGHEE

Exploration, development and
product and marketing of
crude oil and natural gas

JRom & RAR 2 BN -
HEREERTSER

Exploration, development and
product and marketing of
crude oil and natural gas

JRom & RAR 2 BN -
HEREERTSER

HRARAEEFEBHUN LA RAERS -
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

The outbreak of novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) epidemic in
early 2020 has led to a series of precautionary and control measures
implemented across the globe and also casted downward pressure
on domestic and international energy prices. It may have certain
impacts on the Group’s business operations. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the epidemic and assess its
impact on the financial position, cash flows and operating results. Up
to the date of issue of these financial statements, the assessment
is still in progress and the related impact could not be reasonably
estimated at this stage.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the Year have been audited by Messrs
KPMG.

According to the relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC and the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Counsel, PetroChina,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, shall change its
auditor if such auditor has served continuously for certain
period of time. PetroChina is intended to recommend at its
forthcoming annual general meeting the appointment of Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers as its international auditor for the year
2021. The Board considers that it would be more efficient and
cost effective to appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the auditor of the Company for the year 2021. Accordingly the
Board, with the recommendation of the Audit Committee of the
Company recommends at the 2021 AGM the appointment of Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for the year
2021.

On behalf of the Board

Qian Zhijia
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021

86 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2020

MERRRABERER

RZE_ZEFVNEBEBRBFAEATRRES
(COVID-19) BIEEEHMEHKEHEHE— R
R REHERE - JE B RINERE R
ERTHEBED - WA e RNEB 2 ¥
EEELEETRE AEEBEINBER
BrBERUARTHEEHMBMRR  RER
EMKEEBIVE BEZSUBHRE
Tz A8 SEEDE#ETY BB E
TR AREERE MG -

& By Em

AEEZMBEREREAEFTEHEAMER
P&z o

RETEMRELEGEEAEEEEE
BEZEERM AR PEAMBAN
REERRR) R R EZBE - BB
FEEERG R —EFR - FEAMER
EHEEBRRBFAG LERERESH
KBERHEBARE T - —FEBEZH
Al - EE SRR ZEEIRKBEAAD
EBMAAAR T - —FEME ARK
MRz - At EFGFREBEARARE
REZBENHERE  HMEBEE_T_—FHRE
FAELEZRELMKBEFMEBAR
RRARZEZ—FHEAE -

REREST®

#BAR

TR FHTTE R

BEA —E-_—4F=ZA=-+=H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Kunlun
Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kunlun
Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 232, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with  Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FARESER

AREBEAFTEIREBERMANERHE - R
REARGEAVBERROBTR/ERN
ZH ELEHARELRMBAEREAY
BmAMHABTERETEEDN - ZMAT
THELFTHEHEFNER -

AR R R R R (LNG) 0 T B B9 sk (B

Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)ii) on pages 132 to 134.
BRI E I IRA N 16K F132 21348 I i 3(m)(ii) 89 & 51 B &

The Key Audit Matter
HREEITEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPNETNMEEZEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s property,
plant and equipment in respect of the Group’s LNG
processing plants amounted to RMB7,715 million.

RZZZTF+=—A=+—H 5% BEEEHLNGHNTI
Bins X EBEEENYE BEEXBRARETS

- —

BETT °

In view of the volatle LNG prices, management
considered that there were indicators that the Group’s
property, plant and equipment attributable to different
LNG processing plants may be impaired as at 31
December 2020.

HARLNGE®RKE @ EEERANR_T-_ZTF+=A
=+—H ESEINGHNIKNYME BEREZENX
FRERERR

Management performs impairment assessments of the
Group’s LNG processing plants whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of these assets may not be recoverable.

BEEHABANER T ESBEINGHNITHOKRE
BEsERWOE  EEESHEETRHENA -

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of LNG
processing plants included the following:
BPRTEINGIN THEA R ENEFEFEFEATIE
=2

o assessing management’s identification of CGU,
the allocation of assets to each CGU and the
methodology adopted in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to
our understanding of the Group’s LNG processing
business and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

o  IREHMY BEEINGIITEKAERENEH
SR EAMESR T EEERSELELUN
RE SHEEERSEABU Z2EANDEA K
KANTREeRELESHEE:

o assessing management’s cash flow forecast for
each CGU by comparing the key assumptions
adopted by management, in particular, forecast
LNG selling prices, forecast production costs and
expenses and the discount rate applied, with our
understanding, experience and knowledge of the
Group’s LNG processing business and the LNG
industry in general;

e BBKEERERANMKR  FHEARKINGIHE
B £ERANEBRRANTIRE - EHM
# BEEBELNGIIEBILINGTTEMNIERELT
e HEReELAEVNTRERESREEEL
BRI
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Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants (Continued)

TR R AR (LNG) bn T R 89 w {B (&)

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)ij) on pages 132 to 134.
B2 E B IRA N 16Kk FE 13221348 [ i 3(m)(in) ) & &1 B R °

The Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMNETNAMEEZER

Each LNG processing plant operated by the Group
has been identified as a separate cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) for impairment assessment purposes.
Management compares the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment allocated to each CGU
with respective recoverable amount, which is estimated
by preparing a discounted cash flow forecast, to
determine the amount of impairment loss, if any. The
preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement
in determining the relevant inputs to the discounted
cash flow forecasts and the assumptions adopted
therein, including forecast LNG selling prices, forecast
production costs and expenses and the discount rates
applied.
FEETRENRR - BIEES S ELNG I TR RE A
BUNReEABU(ReEEARM])  WEHLEY
¥ BEARBHNREEEFTRBE AR AZTHY
ARl EERETSHEBR(INEG) EERTREAS
RERNERET  EEESHSEERBRMNEE (B
BEARKRINGHEER HEXNAMEMESLE A
AR BRI X) (e E K E -

° comparing the forecast LNG selling prices with
external market data;

o BRVERIF R TERIR RINGIH & E 15 B T 15 8
BHETLEER:

° comparing key financial data, including revenue,
production costs and expenses, in the cash flow
forecasts with the budgets approved by the board
of directors;

e BREAATNEREIEEERA - EEKAK
MERELESSEHAENTEEPHOBIRETL
Eag

° assessing whether the discount rates applied in
the cash flow forecasts were within the range of
those adopted by other companies in the same
industry;

o HERENRPRANFRRRAERTENT
HARRAHARBER:

o comparing the actual results for the current year
with management’s estimates in their cash flow
forecasts prepared in the previous year to assess
the historical accuracy of the management’s
forecasting process and to assess whether there
is any indication of management bias;

e BAFENERERE F—FEBRREARASD
WEREMETLER UGB EERERE A
By AE M
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AR R AR LNG]) in T MY R B (&)

Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants (Continued)

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)(i) on pages 132 to 134.
BRRGEE N ERE N 16K F132 21348 [ i 3(m)(i) £ & 5 I ©

The Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMNEFNAMERZER

We identified assessing impairment of LNG processing
plants as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments involve the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting LNG
selling prices, production costs and expenses and in
determining appropriate discount rates, all of which
could be subject to management bias in their selection.
HRBEASAFTEEREEBELERALE  CEEHH
ARIRLNGHHEBR - £EKANEBHOFERARIEKA
BEAOFTHEX A REIREREARXINERRE
REBFE - BAIRE T ELNG I IR E R E R R F
MBS ETEIE -

o performing sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions adopted by management, including
forecast LNG selling prices, forecast production
costs and expenses and the discount rates
applied, to assess what changes thereto, either
individually or collectively, would result in a
different conclusion being reached and assessing
whether there were any indicators of management
bias in the selection of key assumptions; and

e HREBEAATEERERANZTEBERR B
ARRLNGHE B - AEKANE B RKBE
PFERE  ETHREST - LT HBERRKE
BERESEAEREFENRERNTCEREETE
EEARRIRNABETFRAFEEMAERERM
IR &

o assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of LNG processing plants with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

o RERTEAENNER Fh EEEGEHM
T 7= H B B LNG A1 TR (B R B R 4R 8% o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

92

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Alex Chung Chuen Choi.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYGHEMERE

- FHERAUBHROEBRIEI A
BENMAR  BREREE UANEAY
BHREREPERRZZMER -

- B BERERAEBAEHEBHOYMH
EEEMRTE BENTFNERE N
BHEEMBREABERER - RMA
' BEREESOSA - BEENRT -
BPRREFERAERL -

PBREMEREI > RMEEZRES BB T
EMBEHE KRZHE BEAFAER
% - BRBMEFER P #E5 LA EHE H 8
ERAIERBRE °

BMERNEZZEGRIBH  FHARLM
ENAARBMEMERERERENR I
BB RER A EMERRETER
MBI ENMBEBERMEMEIR - ANEE
ABBRT - BEREE MR ZITSHRE
J& R e B 8845 e

NEEZZESEANEERET  RMAEE
MLEERANPEEPWHBHRERNBARS
EZ2 FAMEKEREAFTE BMAEX
BE R E R A E L FIR  FRIFDEARIER
TAFARARBEELER  ERHFERL
BAT MRAEFHERMBETER
RERERNAERRBBELENRRAN
@ RPAREFNEERSEFEBZEHR -

HEARBI ZHENRENEFHEABAR
ke

EERETMERAR
e
FEEPR
T B 5R
AKFRENE

—E-—F=HF=-+=H

ERERERAT —2-sa=gHns 93



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _FTF +_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
Note RMB m|II|on RMB’million
B 5 AREBETR AREBERAETT
(Restated)
(E5))
Continuing operations BFERSEEK
Revenue WA 6 109,251 101,794
Other gains, net H bl sk - F58 7 1,141 44
Interest income F B U A 8 330 265
Purchases, services and others RE - RS R EAM (90,292) (82,922)
Employee compensation costs E BB & AR 9 (4,700) (4,743)
Depreciation, depletion and weE BRENKEHE
amortisation 11 (4,402) (8,975)
Impairment loss on property, ME - WELZRERE
plant and equipment 518 16 - (404)
Selling, general and administrative HE - —REMNEEER
expenses (2,689) (3,031)
Taxes other than income taxes BR BT 1S 0 LA SN2 B 1R (347) (385)
Interest expenses .2 fz 5] 10 (708) (899)
Share of profits less losses of: FEE i AR BT 18
- Associates /N 17 340 951
- Joint ventures -8B NhE 18 183 319
Profit before income tax expense PBRFTEH B AAER 11 8,107 7,014
Income tax expense Frigti & A 13 (2,313) (2,405)
Profit for the year from continuing B EE£BERER
operations 5,794 4,609
Discontinued operations CRIEFERKEXR
Profit for the year from discontinued DR ILZHERLEEKENRN
operations a2 ) 35 3,938 4,962
Profit for the year FREF 9,732 9,571
Other comprehensive income: H2mEWKE:
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit TAIEFH DA EER 2
or loss: |H:
- Fair value gain on other financial -Hthe@mBEEZ AT
assets (non-recycling), net of tax BElm(roEs
Bwm) MBRHIE
1% 31 65
ltems that may be reclassified HEBnEMmsEEEEZ
subsequently to profit or loss: B/H:
- Exchange differences on -BRERBREZER
translation of financial Z8 - HMBRTER
statements, net of nil tax, of: TH1%
- Subsidiaries - B A F (93) 168
- Associates L WNE (92) 14
- Joint ventures -H5EDHE (85) 20
Other comprehensive income for FRE M2 @E 2
the year (239) 267
Total comprehensive income for FRAZHEWFZHAEE
the year 9,493 9,838
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GREEERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T _FTF + A=+ —HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EH —ET-NEF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
(=3 AREBETR AREBETT
(Restated)
(E7%))
Profit for the year attributable to owners 7N &) i% 2 & {5 F (A
of the Company from ik N
— continuing operations - BEBEEEER 3,580 2,423
- discontinued operations - BERIEBECEER 35 2,483 3,128
6,063 5,551
Profit for the year attributable to eI MRS BIEFR
non-controlling interests from il
- continuing operations - RBELEEER 2,214 2,186
- discontinued operations -ERIEBESEER 35 1,455 1,834
3,669 4,020
Profit for the year FERRF 9,732 9,571
Total comprehensive income for the AR TR E EGER
year attributable to owners of the FHEK B
Company from
- continuing operations - BEBEREER 3,390 2,651
- discontinued operations -ERIEBESEER 2,483 3,128
5,873 5,779
Total comprehensive income for the — FREEE EUW 5 4258
year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company S N/NET §) 5,873 5,779
- Non-controlling interests - FEEH MRS 3,620 4,059
9,493 9,838
Basic earnings per share for profit ZAN/NEIE X (E i
attributable to owners of the TRERZR
Company (RMB cent) from (ANREEED) 14(a)
- continuing operations - BEEEER 41.34 29.12
- discontinued operations -ERIEBELCEER 28.68 37.59
70.02 66.71
Diluted earnings per share for profit — Z</2 &) f% 5 &5 3% | 2
attributable to owners of the 5 P 38 A A
Company (RMB cent) from (ANRE D) 14(b)
- continuing operations - FREREER 41.34 28.38
- discontinued operations -ERIEBELEER 28.68 36.26
70.02 64.64
The notes on pages 102 to 232 form part of these financial ~5102% 2325 K i o 18 Ak AN A1 15 3 & .2 —
statements. Detalils of dividends payable to owners of the Company ~ &% ° & P F| E I ARG R R AR 87
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note 15. BEHRHIFE15 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRR K

As at 31 December 2020 R=—ZE-_ZFTF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
= —TAF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
h=a ARBEEET AREBBHETT
Assets EE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREZHE 16 67,877 105,776
Investments in associates R ERR 2 E 17 6,186 5,712
Investments in joint ventures REBELEZERE 18 3,348 3,203
Intangible and other non-current EmEREMIERESEE
assets 20 2,440 2,190
Deferred tax assets R IEE B 29 1,294 1,366
81,145 118,247
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 925 1,398
Accounts receivable JiE Ug BR 3R 22 4,085 2,792
Prepaid expenses and other current 81 7 & H b 775 &
assets BE 23 8,153 6,820
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEIER 24 16,273 18,640
Assets associated with a disposal HEOBABIELE L
group classified as held-for-sale HEER BBz EE 35 44,407 -
73,843 29,650
Total assets WEE 154,988 147,897
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable to Z&AQA TR REEREAR
owners of the Company e
Share capital &N 25 71 71
Retained earnings =15 B A 26 31,557 28,484
Other reserves H A FE 26 21,956 21,433
53,584 49,988
Non-controlling interests Ik 22 4 R 2 30,943 29,197
Total equity R 84,527 79,185
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GEMBRR R

As at 31 December 2020 R —_ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
S=a AREEET AREBBHETT
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable and accrued ENERERKREFTEE
liabilities 27 28,093 29,300
Income tax payable FETFT1S 1 29 604 728
Other tax payable HAbfE BB 212 272
Short-term borrowings HHEER 28 5,182 8,772
Lease liabilities HEARE 158 225
Liabilities associated with a disposal B EAFHEHE 2
group classified as held-for-sale HEHEFEBcAaGE 35 10,344 -
44,593 39,297
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Long-term borrowings REIEE 28 22,491 25,727
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 29 1,438 1,697
Lease liabilities HEAE 506 393
Other liabilities HihBgE 1,433 1,598
25,868 29,415
Total liabilities waE 70,461 68,712
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEBEHATE 154,988 147,897
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(BE)FE 29,250 (9,647)
Total assets less current liabilities B EERATEE 110,395 108,600
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 W_ZE_—F=A-t+=HAEEFeH £

March 2021.

Qian Zhijia
8BAER
Executive Director #7TE %

The notes on pages 102 to 232 form part of these financial

statements.

T -

Miao Yong

25
Executive Director #177# &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _FTF +_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARRRER Non-
Retained Other controlling
Share capital earnings reserves  Sub-total interests  Total equity
Rx  REEBR  HERE N FEHEER  EREE
Note RMB’million RMB’million RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
Wit AR%EER ARMEER AR®EER ARMEBER ARYEER AREEER
Balances at 1 January 2019 RIZE-NF-A-B&E#H 65 25,362 17217 42,704 27,390 70,004
Changes in equity for 2019: “E-NEREEE:
Profit for the year ERgT - 5,551 - 5,551 4,020 9,571
Other comprehensive income Et2EYa - - 228 208 39 267
Total comprehensive income ERZENREE
for the year - 5,551 228 5,779 4,059 9,838
Transfer between reserves RERER - (598) 508 - - -
Final dividend for 2018 ZE-\ERERE 15 - (1,831) - (1,831) - (1,831)
Acquisition from non-controling WFEEH R
interests - - - - (73) (73)
Dividend to non-controlling interests B JF 24l iE% 2 1k 8 - - - - (3,222) (3.222)
Capital contributions from FEHMER TE
non-controlling interests - - - - 853 853
Acquisition through business EREBAMETNE
combination - - - - 236 236
Disposal of subsidiaries REMBLA - - - - (46) (46)
Issue of shares upon conversion of 7 B {E A &R g%
convertible bonds Bin 6 - 3,330 3,336 - 3,336
6 0.429) 3,928 1506 0.259) (747)
Balances at 31 December 2019 R=ZF-h%+-F=+-H
&6 71 28,484 21433 49,988 29,197 79,185
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERBEDR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T _FTF + A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
RARRRER Non-
Retained Other controlling
Share capital earnings reserves  Sub-total interests Total equity
Rx  REER  EHRG NGt FENEREE  BRAE
Note  RMB'million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
Wit ARYEER ARMEER AR®EER ARYEBERT ARMEER AR¥EER

Balances at 1 January 2020 R-E-ZF-A-HEH% m 28,484 21,433 49,988 29,197 79,185
Changes in equity for 2020: CECEEREEE:
Profit for the year FREH - 6,063 - 6,063 3,669 9,732
Other comprehensive income EhrEda - - (190) (190) (49) (239)
Total comprehensive income ERZENGES
for the year - 6,063 (190) 5,873 3,620 9,493
Transfer between reserves fEMER - (113) 13 - - -
Final dividend for 2019 “E-REXRSRE 15 - o) - (2,277) - 2.277)
Acquisition from non-controling PEREet 1 E
interests - - - - (20) (20)
Dividend to non-controling interests B i JEFE I #4552 it & - - - - (3,521) (3,521)
Capital contributions from FEHUERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - 620 620
Acquisition through business BREBAETHE
combination 34 - - - - 1,047 1,047
- 29%) 3 221 (1,87 (4,151)
Balances at 31 December 2020 W-Z-F%£+-f=1-A
433 ! 31,557 21,956 53,584 30,943 84,527

The notes on pages 102 to 232 form part of these financial £102Z 2328 & Mf 5k & A A8 B 75 ¥ 3k 2 —
statements. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T _FTF +_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
st ARBEERT ARKEET
Cash flows from operating REXBMBZHERE
activities
Profit for the year from F 75
— continuing operations — FBKEET 5,794 4,609
— discontinued operations — ERIEBEREED 35 3,938 4,962
Profit for the year F A5 9,732 9,571
Adjustments for: P
Income tax expense FriSti& A 3,512 4,074
Depreciation, depletion and E BREKEE
amortisation 6,963 6,350
Share of profits less losses of JE 15 B & 8 B s M) RS 4B
associates (340) (951)
Share of profits less losses of joint JE1E & & 1b 5 % MR E 18
ventures (183) (319)
Impairment loss on property, plant Y- BB NRERERE
and equipment 518 - 404
Impairment loss on intangible assets & £ & & i (B &5 18 - 16
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of HEME BMEAREZ
property, plant and equipment Eia (k) F5E 16 @
Net losses on disposal of HEHBARZEEFE
subsidiaries 9 -
Net exchange (gains)/losses PE X (W), B 18558 (621) 288
Interest income FLEW A (369) (274)
Interest expense MEZH 825 988
Changes in working capital: HEESH
Accounts receivable JE W BR 3K (1,134) (244)
Prepaid expenses and other current A3 IA K Efthm 8) & &
assets 676 (358)
Inventories FE 354 471
Accounts payable and accrued ERNERREGFAEE
liabilities 736 275
Other tax payable HAb e BB 19 (192)
Cash generated from operations KEEEL RS 20,195 20,097
Income tax paid RENRZIRS (3,457) (4,012
Net cash generated from operating K& X KELE CHEFEHE
activities 16,738 16,085
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GELETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B EZ T _TF +_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—EZEHF —T-NF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
iz ARBEBEERT ARBEET
Cash flows from investing activities REEZEFBzRERE
Dividends received from associates B B & QR A 2 BR B 283 781
Dividends received from joint ventures BeEEWRZRKRE 278 208
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B8 BT BB 2 &) 34 (1,217) 667)
Acquisition of associates W g B A ) (163) (737)
Capital contributions to associates Mt EAREE (445) (777)
Capital contributions to joint ventures MeEBEREITE (281) (201)
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEBE AR ZFSHKIE 99 112
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE « MELZEZ AT
and equipment B RIR 403 594
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from & I AR S 128 A% A B 0B
an intermediate holding company (), (1,680) 24
Capital expenditure BEARRX (6,802) (9,932)
Interest received 2 U A 2 350 284
Loans repaid by/(to) an associate —fBERFEE(ER)
B¥® 330 (59)
Loans repaid by a joint venture —HEBELEEEREER 10 80
Loans repaid by third parties F=FERBER 2 13
Net cash used in investing activities REEZKHAMACE S FE (8,833) (10,277)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFEBME2RHERE
Capital contributions from JEIEFIMERTE
non-controlling interests 620 807
Dividends paid to owners of the Company &1 4Q 7] I 3R A% & 15 & 24(p) (2,277) (1,831)
Other dividends paid B EAMmAR R 24(0) (4,202) (3,165)
Increase in borrowings BEE M 24(0) 16,616 9,343
Repayment of borrowings EEEBE 24(0) (18,627) (10,986)
Repayment of convertible bonds BETERES 24(b) - (10)
Interest paid BT F A 24(0) (1,423) (1,558)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEReARE G 24(0) (462) (301)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEEREF BEIBHD 24(0) (33) 31)
Acquisition from non-controlling interests  [A) 3F 22 1| 14 4 25 Ux 88 (20) (73)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEFTACBE S EHE (9,808) (7,805)
Decrease in cash and cash RekReEEEAZRD
equivalents (1,903) (1,997)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HZREREEE
1 January BHIEH 18,640 20,474
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgEscog g
changes (47) 163
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-ZBA=+—HBzH&E 24
31 December RE&EEHEEH 16,690 18,640

The notes on pages 102 to 232 form part of these financial

statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Its ultimate holding company is China
National Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC”) which is a company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
4,708,302,133 shares of the Company which was previously
held by Sun World Limited, the former immediate holding
company of the Company, was transferred to PetroChina
Hong Kong Limited (“PetroChina HK”), which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and is in turn wholly-owned by
PetroChina Company Limited (“PetroChina”), a subsidiary
of CNPC, on 14 May 2019. Since then PetroChina HK has
become the immediate holding company of the Company. As
at 31 December 2020, PetroChina indirectly owned 54.38%
(2019: 54.38%) equity interest in the Company.

The address of the Company’s principal office and registered
office are 39/F, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong and
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda,
respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are the sales of natural gas, sales of
liquefied petroleum gas (‘LPG”) and liquefied natural gas
(“LNG”) processing and terminal business in the PRC and
the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas
in the PRC, the Republic of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”), the
Sultanate of Oman (“Oman”), the Republic of Peru (“Peru”),
the Kingdom of Thailand (“Thailand”) and the Republic of
Azerbaijan (“Azerbaijan”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

—REH

EmeERERAR ((ARADRERE
AR AEREBRAR - mMmER
NEBBHAERZHERAR LM o K
NAEREZERAR AR AGHKA
REEERAR(FRAHEER]) - —
MRAPEARLMB(FEHDKALZA
Bl RM-ZTE—AERATWE AR
BB B KA FSun World Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) had two (2019: two) major production
sharing arrangements, located in the PRC and Azerbaijan
respectively. On 30 December 1997, the Group entered into an
oil production sharing contract (the “Leng Jiapu Contract”) to
develop and produce crude oil in Liaohe, Liaoning Province,
the PRC. In 2002, the Group acquired another production
sharing arrangement to develop and produce crude oil in
Azerbaijan. Further details in relation to the Leng Jiapu
Contract and the Group’s share of results and net assets in
this arrangement are shown in Note 31.

The oil operations in the PRC are conducted through
production sharing arrangements with PetroChina, whereas the
oil operations in Azerbaijan are conducted through production
sharing arrangements with both PetroChina and a third party.
The Group is entitled to a fixed percentage of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of those oil operations in accordance
with the respective oil production sharing contracts entered
into with PetroChina and the third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
3(x) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
other financial assets which are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out in Note
3(h).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 5.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTHHEE)

(CONTINUED)

(@) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes
3(0) and 3(p) depending on the nature of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 3(h))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture (see Note
3(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 3(mj(ii)).

A listing of the Group’s principal subsidiaries is set out
in Note 39.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate or joint venture that forms
part of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment. At each
reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised as profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised as other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture (after
applying the expected credit loss model to such other
long-term interests where applicable (see Note 3(m)(i))).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 3(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses. Impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount (see Note 3(m)(ii)).

Listings of the Group’s principal associates and joint
ventures are shown in Notes 40 and 41, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Accounting for production sharing contracts

(d)

Production sharing contracts constitute joint operations.
The Group shall recognise in relation to its interest in
joint operations:

(i)

(i

(il)

(iv)

V)

its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operations;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operations; and

its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

Foreign currencies

0)

(i)

Functional currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(i)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into presentation currency at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into
presentation currency at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties (Note 3(f) and construction in progress,
are initially recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost where it is probable that they
will generate future economic benefits. Cost represents
the purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred
to bring the asset into existing use. For construction in
progress, cost comprises direct costs of construction
as well as interest charges, and foreign exchange
differences on related borrowed funds to the extent that
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest charges,
during the periods of construction. Construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.
Subsequent to their initial recognition, property, plant
and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion and amortisation (including any
impairment) (see Note 3(m)(ii)).

Depreciation to write-off the cost of each asset, other
than oil and gas properties (Note 3(f)), to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives is calculated using
the straight-line method.

The Group uses the following useful lives for depreciation
purposes:

- Interests in buildings 40 years or over the
remaining period of
respective leases

whichever is the

shorter
- Leasehold land leased lease term
for own use
- Natural gas pipelines 10-30 vyears
- Equipment and 4-30 years
machinery
- Motor vehicles 4-14 years
- Others 5-12 years

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress
until the assets are completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values and useful lives of assets are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management has revised the classification of the
Group’s certain property, plant and equipment. Such
reclassification does not result in changes on the residual
value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and has no material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amounts and are recorded in profit or loss.

Interest and other costs on borrowings to finance the
construction of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
Costs for repair and maintenance activities are expensed
as incurred except for costs of components that result
in improvements or betterments which are capitalised as
part of property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Oil and gas properties

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities. Under
this method, all costs for development wells, support
equipment and facilities, and proved mineral interests in
oil and gas properties are capitalised. Geological and
geophysical costs are expensed when incurred. Costs
of exploratory wells are capitalised as construction in
progress pending determination of whether the wells
find proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas
reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil and
natural gas, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable
certainty to be economically producible from a given
date forward, from known reservoirs, and under
existing economic conditions, operating methods, and
government regulation before the time at which contracts
providing the right to operate expire, unless evidence
indicates that renewal is reasonably certain regardless
of whether the estimate is a deterministic estimate or
probabilistic estimate. Existing economic conditions
include prices and costs at which economic producibility
from a reservoir is to be determined. The price shall be
the average price during the 12-month period before
the ending date of the period covered by the report,
determined as an unweighted arithmetic average of
the first-day-of-the-month price for each month within
such period unless prices are defined by contractual
arrangements, excluding escalations based upon future
conditions. The cost shall be that prevailing at the end
of the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Oil and gas properties (Continued)

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditure are evaluated for economic viability within
one year of completion of drilling. The related well costs
are expensed as dry holes if it is determined that such
economic viability is not attained. Otherwise, the related
well costs are reclassified to oil and gas properties
and are subject to impairment review (Note 3(mj(ii)). For
exploratory wells that are found to have economically
viable reserves in areas where major capital expenditure
will be required before production can commence, the
related well costs remain capitalised only if additional
drilling is underway or firmly planned. Otherwise the
related well costs are expensed as dry holes. The
Group does not have any significant costs of unproved
properties capitalised in oil and gas properties.

The Ministry of Land and Resources in China issues
production licenses to applicants on the basis of the
reserve reports approved by relevant authorities.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised at the
field level based on the units of production method. Units
of production rates are based on oil and gas reserves
estimated to be recoverable from existing facilities based
on the current terms of the Group’s production licenses.
The Group’s oil and gas reserves estimates include
only crude oil and condensate and natural gas which
management believes can be reasonably produced within
the current terms of these production licenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9) Intangible assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the

acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain

on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Separately recognised goodwill
tested annually for impairment (see Note 3(m) (ii)).
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see Note 3(mj(ii)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and
in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investments. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit
or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see Note 4.3. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

() Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest
method (see Note 3(r)(v)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(h)

EFEEHBRGE
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(Continued) fthiz & (48)
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income (“FVOCI”) - recycling, if the m (R A FEER
contractual cash flows of the investment AEMmEERE]D -
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business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income
is recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL, if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

=
EB

WEERERAE =

AEOERZD  fia
REZEHNBEEZR
EREARE RFEM
FoWERHEREZ
B &) /& E &Y e & 4
iﬁfi\m&tﬂ’iﬁ’lﬁﬁx
B AP EZE
K‘ET’@EEH&/\WT@
RERBEEE
1B FEBAGRER
MEEAE) MIE H U
mMEEARERER
R BRIEERZ
RER REMZE
WaRANRFZEER
BmEbEER -

BAFEFAER
fnE Z K E T &R
B AN IR A TE
ST E Ath 2 E Y5 (7]
EOZER)FTEZR
£ ZREZRATE
EH(EENB)NE
ﬁﬁwﬁ&wu °

—zespgs 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 3(r)(iv).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

() As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease components and
non-lease components, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

0)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 3(e)
and 3(m)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

0)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories include natural gas products, liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”), materials for natural gas pipelines
and crude oil which are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of inventories is primarily
determined by the weighted average cost method, which
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads, but excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
cost of completion and selling expenses.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 3(r) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECLS”) in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(mj)(i) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see Note 3(l)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(r). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see Note 3())).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(m)

Accounts receivable

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see Note 3(k)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see Note 3(mj(i)).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, accounts and
other receivables, including loans to an associate
and joint ventures, which are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest) and debt
securities measured at FVOCI (recycling).

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling), are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between
() the contractual cash flows that would be due
to the Group if the holder of the loan commitment
draws down on the loan and (i) the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn
down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, accounts and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are

expected to

result from possible default

events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs:

these are losses that are

expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to

which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivable,
receivables and contract assets,

lease
are always

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic

conditions at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEEHBERGE
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets m EEBEMEERNE

(Continued) (#8)

() Credit losses from financial instruments () KE=2mIERKEGAL
and contract assets (Continued) EENEEEEE)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued) 15 B 7 [ 7 212 0 (&)
ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to BHEEEBEEESERSE
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit HEMNE - WREBEVIA
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the mREeHRITAEERR
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain MEL - BHEEERES
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an EMERELLHIEERZF
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments BRAREWRIEE - K
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying SETEERFABSRIAN
amount through a loss allowance account, except BERRSKEER 25
for investments in debt securities that are measured AEBERENEHHEERE
at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss allowance BETHERE HEZAQ
is recognised in other comprehensive income and FEGAHEMEERE (A
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling). HRZEED)FTEZERE

FRERIN - HEBREES
E’\\,Jﬂi\ﬁﬂﬁzﬁélﬁﬁ%ﬁ@i’ﬁ

NP EFEFIEBREE
J%T&)WE%% °

Basis of calculation of interest income FEWA )T EE %
Interest income recognised in accordance with RIEMF3NVIER ZF B
Note 3(r(v) is calculated based on the gross H&A}Hﬂfﬁ\ﬂﬂég ) BR E 42
carrying amount of the financial asset unless BE bRIEE mﬁéﬁ?ﬁfﬁ
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which Zf)f/ﬂlﬁ TERERLT - F
case interest income is calculated based on the Bl ARemEEa#E
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less R (BIVBR T 42 (8 R I8 18 7
loss allowance) of the financial asset. #H)FTE o
At each reporting date, the Group assesses REBERER - ~EBEF G
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A PRMEERSEBREER
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or B-E-HAFEHEHME
more events that have a detrimental impact on the ERAKRERNGETEE
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset FENSEHEAR 2/
have occurred. EESHESERBREBREER
@ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to

identify indications that the following assets may

be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an

impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets

- oil and gas properties;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not ready for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEEHHERGE
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets m EEBEMEERNE
(Continued) (48)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) EMEEREGE)
- Calculation of recoverable amount - G EARKEZEE
The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEZAIWE 252
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal NS D = R DN
and value in use. In assessing value in FHRAEBEMEZRS
use, the estimated future cash flows are o EEEREE
discounted to their present value using a pre- B [AETRRIB SR
tax discount rate that reflects current market ERARBERKMS
assessments of the time value of money and HE®KREE 2T
the risks specific to the asset. Where an LzBEZEERR
asset does not generate cash inflows largely ZBMAFTBREEITRE
independent of those from other assets, the HBEBE - LNEEME
recoverable amount is determined for the EZBRERAERLE
smallest group of assets that generates cash WIBIREME E
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating FFEEZHRERA
unit). At B EARS
MAZ &/NEEHF
(BB EEBEM) K
EErkESE -
- Recognition of impairment losses -  ERBEER
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or EEESEMBELRS
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or EEXBAUZEREES
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, FAE AU Bl & BE A
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment FerERTERA
losses recognised in respect of cash- BEFEE RRESELE
generating units are allocated first to reduce BAUERZREEBERE
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated TUOER BERE
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) BOozReELE
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of fI(sk—#HE ) 2 1T
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) MEEZEREE A
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying 1% 322 L 151 P& AR B8 6 (3K
value of an asset will not be reduced below —HEL) R EMEE
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if ZHEEBE BEEER
measurable) or value in use (if determinable). HETSREERE
BRAFEREHEE
P A (RAA] 51 &) 3k (&

FREBE(AA#EE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss in respect of assets
other than goodwill is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, deposits held with banks and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out
in Note 3(m)(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

()

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has unconditional rights to defer settlements of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Taxation

Income tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESHHEHRE)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Taxation (Continued) () HIE(E)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Group, associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from initial recognition of goodwill. The deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Taxation (Continued)

(r)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

The Group also incurs various other taxes and levies
that are not income tax. “Taxes other than income
taxes”, which form part of operating expenses, primarily
comprise resource tax, urban construction tax, education
surcharges and business tax.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Rendering of services

The Group’s revenue from rendering of services
is primarily attributable to provision of natural
gas pipeline transmission services and LNG
gasification and unloading services. Revenue from
the rendering of these services is recognised in the
profit or loss when control over these services is
transferred to the customer upon transmission of
the natural gas or the gasification or unloading of
LNG.

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the contract
relates to work on assets under the control of the
customer and therefore the Group’s construction
activities create or enhance an asset under the
customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be reasonably measured, revenue from the contract
is recognised progressively over time using the
cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the proportion
of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated
total costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 3(m)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(8)

Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary assets
or non-monetary assets that the Group receives from
the government, excluding capital injection by the
government as an investor. Special funds such as
investment grants allocated by the government, if clearly
defined in official documents as part of “capital reserve”
are dealt with as capital contributions, and not regarded
as government grants.

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and
the Group is able to comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Government grants in the form of monetary
assets are recorded based on the amount received or
receivable, whereas non-monetary assets are measured
at fair value.

Government grants received in relation to assets are
recorded as deferred income, and recognised evenly in
profit or loss over the assets’ useful lives. Government
grants received in relation to revenue are recorded as
deferred income, and recognised as income in future
periods as compensation when the associated future
expenses or losses arise; or directly recognised as
income in the current period as compensation for past
expenses or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: (i) the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; (i) it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(iii) reliable estimates of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Retirement benefit plans

The Group contributes to various employee retirement
benefit plans organised by PRC municipal and provincial
governments under which it is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at prescribed rates for its
employees in the PRC. The relevant PRC municipal
and provincial governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of existing and future retired
employees of the Group in the PRC. The Group has
similar retirement benefit plans for its employees in its
overseas operations. Contributions to these PRC and
overseas plans are charged to expense as incurred. The
Group currently has no additional material obligations
outstanding for the payment of retirement and other post
retirement benefits of employees in the PRC or overseas
other than the monthly contributions described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties

@

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management and Executive Directors
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale
and discontinued operations

Non-current assets held-for-sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held-for-sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available-for-sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held-for-sale when the above criteria for
classification as held-for-sale are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale
and discontinued operations (Continued)

U)

Non-current assets held-for-sale
(Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and
all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then,
on initial classification as held-for-sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy so far as the
financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets and financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries).
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in Note 3.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held-
for-sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while
held-for-sale, are recognised in profit or loss.
As long as a non-current asset is classified as
held-for-sale, or is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset
is not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale
and discontinued operations (Continued)

(i)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held-for-sale (see (i)
above), if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal groups constituting the discontinued
operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1 Financial risk factors

Exposure to foreign exchange rate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
in continuing operations are described below.

Risk management is carried out by the management
of the Group under policies approved by the Board
of Directors. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. There has
been no change to the Group’s exposure to the risks
mentioned above or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks.

(@ Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange rate risk
primarily through sales and purchases which give
rise to receivables, payables and cash balances
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
United States dollar (“US dollar”). The Group is also
exposed to foreign exchange rate risk in respect
of the borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
which are denominated in Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”)
and US dollar.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency are excluded.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued) (@)

4 HEERBREEREMIAR
FE(H)
41 BF %5 b A & (4R)
S|P [ Bz (48)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)

SRR
(AARESR)
2020 2019
Z2CEF —Z-NE
US dollar HK$ US dollar HK$
EH BT xT BT
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEBT AR¥EER AR¥EBERT AREBHER
Accounts receivable and  JE 4 BR 7 &
other current assets Htt g EE 10 4 202 10
Cash and cash RekRe%E
equivalents EH 67 37 190 63
Accounts payable and  JEfFER X
accrued liabilities LEFHEE (44) (17 (30) (127)
Borrowings BE (6,501) (2,648) (7,815) (4,968)
Gross exposure arising DHEREE R
from recognised BEEEZ
assets and liabilities Rk (6,468) (2,624) (7,453) (5,022)

The Group did not enter into any hedge contracts
during any of the years presented to hedge
against its foreign exchange rate risk. However,
management monitors the related foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
earnings) that would arise if foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

4 BEERBE
EE

4.1

")

SINEE [ B

ExEMIAR

B 3% JEL by B & (48)
2 (#8)

TRIRMHASER HRE

HAREHEXRR

2 HY) [ X

Rz AHBREBE - AEH

MR R (SR TF &

)

{0 BB 5 B (£33 A o
AREBBETE) -

2020 2019

32 —NE
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in Increase/ increase in
Increase/ profit for (decrease) profit for the
(decrease) the year and in foreign year and
in foreign retained exchange retained
exchange rates earnings rates earnings
RMB’million RMB’million
ErEF 9
= RERFEA B % REFEN
E#H/(TH) A 4),/ &M A/ (TR) CR),/ &M
A REBER ARBEET
US dollar i 5% (323) 5% (373
(5%) 323 (5%) 373
HK$ BT 5% (131) 5% (251)
(5%) 131 (5%) 251

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and retained earnings measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2019.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
arises primarily from accounts receivable.

A substantial portion of the Group’s cash at bank
and time deposits is placed with state-owned
banks and financial institutions in the PRC and
management believes that the credit risk is low.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Depending on market conditions, debtors
with balances that are past due over a certain
period would be requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases and the customer
bases are separated into the related parties and
third parties. The management considered that
the credit risk associated with accounts receivable
from related parties is low, taking into account the
financial position, past experience and other factors
of the related parties. The expected credit loss
rate for accounts receivable from related parties is
immaterial under lifetime ECLs method. Thus, no
loss allowance for accounts receivable from related
parties was recognised.
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4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 H 3%@.: EEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS T {E(])
(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 B ISR B E = (8])
(o) Credit risk (Continued) b)) EERE(E)
The following table provides information about TREHBEAASERE=
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for FREWERFEZ ZIEERR
accounts receivable from third parties: LRIEHEEEECER:
2020
g g 33
Gross Provision on
carrying individual Loss
amount basis ECL rates ECLs allowance
RERER FHEE
BHAE EERE FEX RAGEER BREE
RMB’million  RMB’million RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEBEER AR%BEBER % ARMEERT AR%EER
Within 1 year —ER 2,672 - 3.68% (98) (98)
Between 1 to 2 years —EMER 159 3 26.51% (41) (44)
Between 2 to 3 years MEZFN 112 (12) 41.38% #) (53)
Between 3 to 4 years ZENFR 97 6) 72.18% (66) (72)
Between 4 to 5 years NERER 65 (64) 100.00% 1) (65)
Over 5 years RE L+ 282 (85  100.00% (197) (282)
3,387 (170) (444) (614)
2019
“ET-NEF
Provision on
Gross carrying individual Loss
amount basis ECL rates ECLs allowance
EEREE BHEE
REAE HERE BEX BHEEER BEEE
RMB’million RMB’million RMB'million RMB’million
AREKBET ARKBER % AR®BEL ARBBETRL
Within 1 year —ER 1,510 (19) 3.16% @7) (60)
Between 1 to 2 years —EMER 277 (13) 23.45% (62) (75)
Between 2 to 3 years MEZFER 166 (14) 35.81% (54) (68)
Between 3 to 4 years ZENER 70 (29) 60.79% (25) (54)
Between 4 1o 5 years NERER 120 (66) 89.28% (48) (114)
Over 5 years AFENE 179 (35) 100.00% (144) (179)
2322 (170) (380) (550)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 MBEBREEREMIAR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS T {E(E)
(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 B SRR EZE (8])
(b) Credit risk (Continued) ) EER(E)
ECL rates are based on actual loss experience EHEEEBEBEEREARBE
over the past five years. These rates are adjusted TFEEREBBERHE -
to reflect differences between economic conditions ZELERBEE L BB
during the period over which the historic data has SHRZ KM  FHI R
been collected, current conditions and the Group’s KEB R A ERERR
view of economic conditions over the expected lives EHFEEBRNZ&EBRR
of the receivables. —ECBERETHE -
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect JERERRENEEZE
of accounts receivable and contract assets during BRERENRFAZEE I
the year is as follows: ™
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBHETT
Balance at 1 January Rn—HA—HB#&& 550 496
Amounts written off 58 2 FIB (9) ®)
Impairment losses recognised, net &R Z HEEE @ F58 73 59
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—H#&#% 614 550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, other receivables,
amounts due from related parties and loans to third
parties included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk. No other financial assets
carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Group’s liquidity risk management involves
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Management
prepares monthly cash flow budget to ensure
that the Group will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group arranges and negotiates financing with
financial institutions and maintains a certain level
of standby credit facilities to reduce the Group’s
liquidity risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(€) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Based on the existing level of gearing and
continued access to funding, the Group believes
that its liquidity risk is not material.

Analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
the remaining period at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity dates are presented in Notes 27 and 28.

(d) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile
as monitored by management is set out in below.

The following table as reported to the management
of the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting
period.
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4

(CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 B ﬁ@ﬁ%fﬂﬁéﬁﬂlﬂﬁ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE(E)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 B ISR Bx B & (48)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued) d) FI=ERk(E)
2020 2019
“ECEE —T-NF
Effective Effective
interest rate RMB’million interest rate RMB’million
ERAZE AREEHEER ERAME ARBEET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Bank loans BITEX 4.47% 9,794 4.63% 8,583
Loans other than bank loans %R {TE R
MohZ BR 3.51% 15,231 4.03% 22,894
Lease liabilities HE&E 4.28% 664 4.36% 618
25,689 32,095
Variable rate borrowings: FEEE:
Loans other than bank loans % R{TE =
WAhz B3R 1.70% 2,648 3.55% 3,022
Net exposure [al [ % %8 2,648 3,022

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings by approximately
RMB22 million (2019: RMB25 million).

N -—ZT&+—-H=+—
H BREEMEHERTT
B TR RER LA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit for the
year and retained profits that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate borrowings of the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact
on the Group’s profit for the year and retained
earnings is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as
2019.

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
optimise returns for owners and to minimise its cost of
capital. In meeting its objectives of managing capital, the
Group may issue new shares, adjust its debt levels or
the mix between short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated as the sum of interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by the sum of total
equity, interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.
The gearing ratio at 31 December 2020 is 25.11% (2019:
30.72%).

There were no changes in the management’s approach
to capital management of the Group during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation

(@)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

4 BrigRE

EEREMIARD

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3 RNFEMET(E)
Financial assets measured at fair value @ BAFEFEZTH
(Continued) BE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continueq) NFEERGE)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2020 categorised into 31 December 31 December 2019 categorised into
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-B-%& E@‘_§_§¢+_ﬂ—+ Al RZE-NE WZE-NE+ZB=+—-Hf
+-A=1+-H ATEHENE T-A=t-H ATEHENES
ZAVE £-& %—?& ] LATE £ EF=0 £=8
RMBmilion RMB'milion RMB'milion RMB'milion  RMBmilon  RMBmilon  RMBmiion  RMBmilion
AREEET ARMEER AREEERT ARWEER ARMEER AREKEEL ARKEER AREEER
Recurring fair value ~ SEMATEGE
measurements
Other financial assets ~ Hit¢@EE
- Listed -k 239 239 - 202 202 - -
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and  ZE_TTFRZFT—H
2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and F+-—A=1+— EIJt?E
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The F—RREH B EE
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between BITEEBAFS=AzBFE=
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the HEH - REEMBE TR
reporting period in which they occurred. NP ESH 2 AEEEB
WERREERBHEEY -
Information about fair value measurements BN FEFGTEZER
As at the date of the statement of financial position, REEIRRKZBE - FAB L
all the listed equity securities are stated at fair MZzBAEHFIZATE
values, which have been determined by reference FIER - THE2ZE 5 RIRiEE
to bid prices quoted in the respective stock B X EABMETTE °
exchanges.
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (o) ARFELAINGER 2
<

carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost as of
31 December 2020 and 2019 were not materially
different from their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value
(Continued)

The fair values of long-term borrowings are based
on discounted cash flow using applicable discount
rates based upon the prevailing market rates
of interest available to the Group for financial
instruments with substantially the same terms
and characteristics at the date of the statement
of financial position. Such discount rates ranged
from 2.58% to 4.32% (2019: 3.26% to 4.37%) per
annum as at 31 December 2020 depending on the
type of the borrowings. An analysis of the carrying
amounts of long-term borrowings is presented in
Note 28.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Accounting judgments and estimates are regularly evaluated
by the Group, based on historical experience and other factors
which include expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant sources of estimation uncertainty arise from the
impairment of LNG processing plants and are described as
follows:

Property, plant and equipment, including construction in
progress, are reviewed for possible impairments whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Determination as to whether
and how much an asset is impaired involves management
estimates and judgements such as future prices of natural gas,
discount rate used in discounting the projected cash flows
and production profile. However, the impairment reviews and
calculations are based on assumptions that are consistent
with the Group’s business plans. Favourable changes to some
assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the need to impair
any assets in these years, whereas unfavourable changes may
cause the assets to become impaired. Note 16 contains further
information about the risk factors and carrying amounts of the
LNG processing plants.

4

BEAREERSMILA
& ()

FHEEZAFEIEE
FRERBFBAERSH 2
WRBEMEFE - MBEB@IT
WMEUAREER I B AR
FEHARBABBGEREE
BMrzemTARESZIRIT
MG REEE - RZF—
ZF+-_A=+—H %%
FIREN TR EF2.58%%F
4.32% (ZZ— 4 : 3.26%
E4.37%) - BRTEEER
fE - REEEZREES
MM 5E282 % ©

BA 88 T 5T #I B & (& 5t

AEBEHRARBEBEERREMAR
(BRURKEHFEENBRTRRE
12 2 18 H) ¥ & 5T B K fh R ETT AT
i e

FEEF TR EZE T ERELNGII T
BB - BT

ME BELRRBEBEEZTIR)S
BEEHABRE LB REEER G
EORW DA T ARE RS A RERE
BEEEROMELRREZEE LR
BB AT RAE  PIIMRARZ
RREWE  MBBREFFBRESRAAZE
BERRHERBR - A - BER &
AAEDRBREASEZ X5 E =
ZREMEL - BETERZBNE
HESANREE RN ZEFEHEM
BEETRE MANEFHNSEE
ERE - ARILNG I T & b A & K
REEFISENM 6 -

ERERERAT —2-saskHs 1061



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

REVENUE

Revenue mainly represents revenue from the sales of natural
gas, sales of LPG, LNG processing and terminal business and
sales of crude oil. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 by major
products or service lines is as follows:

A

WATRHEKERARBEE - LPGH
&~ LNGHN T 2 {#& X 75 M iH B IR i
ZWA - BB TR E LR 155 &
EARAzKBEPANZBARIEE
an X RIS BI A DI

2020 2019
—EZEF —T-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
AR®BEET AR¥KBETR
(Restated)
(E75))
Continuing operations BESEEK
Disaggregated by major products RFrEEMRIRBGENES
or service lines
- Sales of natural gas products - HERXARE® 86,881 72,502
- Sales of LPG - LPGiH & 14,740 21,292
- Revenue from LNG processing - LNG NI EZERBHKA
and terminal service 6,364 5,996
- Sales of crude oil - HERMH 1,266 2,004
109,251 101,794

The Group’s revenue are substantially derived from the sales
of goods to customers in the PRC and recognised at a point
in time.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales and service contracts such that
the above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations under the sales or service
contracts that had an original expected duration of one year
or less.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is
disclosed in Note 33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hittikzs - FE
2020 2019
—EZEHF —T-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBEETT
(Restated)
(E%)
Continuing operations BEKEEK
Net exchange gains/(losses) PEH Wz (E18) %58 621 (289)
Rental income Al A 86 52
Government grants XA #e8 B 47 54
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of HEWE  BELZE
property, plant and equipment (B518) W= F8 (8) 4
Others HAth 395 223
1,141 44
INTEREST INCOME FIS WA
2020 2019
— i —T-hEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Interest income on: FHEZMBWA:
- Amounts due from related parties ~ — FEUL BB 5 B 157 90
- Bank deposits - RITER 173 175
330 265

EREREARAE =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

9 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION COSTS 9 EEMEAEA

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEBHETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEKEEK

Salaries, wages and allowances e TERER 4,506 4,291

Retirement benefits scheme RKE 5T
contributions 194 452
4,700 4,743

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its staff.
The Group is required to make contributions to the retirement
plans at rates ranging from 14% to 20% of the salaries, bonus
and certain allowances of its staff. In view of the outbreak of
COVID-19, the PRC government has reduced the employer’s
contribution rate for certain social insurance schemes during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with these plans beyond the annual contributions
described above. The Group’s contributions for the year ended
31 December 2020 were RMB194 million (2019: RMB452
million (restated)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

10 INTEREST EXPENSES 10 FIEXZH
2020 2019
—EEF —T-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBEETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BESEEK
Interest expenses on: BHEZHME X
Bank loans RITER 480 487
Senior notes BEER 206 240
Convertible bonds A ERE S - 44
Other loans, from: HEMER: 8-
- CP Finance - R 273 238
- Fellow subsidiaries - RARWB QA 157 318
Interests on lease liabilities HEBEZME 31 28
Less: Amounts capitalised DR W = (439) (456)
708 899
Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are attributable BEXMteBRREREGKHEZEEM
to the construction of qualifying assets. The average interest AHEEXNA - BEZT_TF+=
rate used to capitalise such borrowing cost was 4.04% (2019: A=+—HLEFE BEXLUHEREE
4.36%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020. B AP A 2 E I F R B4.04% (ZF

—N4F : 4.36%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

11 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM 11 SEREERIRIMEHER

CONTINUING OPERATIONS Al i A
ltems charged in arriving at the profit before income tax RBLEEBRASHREBAMNENE
expense from continuing operations include: HMBRATIEE -
2020 2019
—EZEHF —T-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBAESETT
(Restated)
(E5))
Continuing operations BFEEEXR®
Auditors’ remuneration* 1% ELE BN &>
- audit services - Z B R 26 26
- non-audit services - EEERE 5 4
Cost of inventories recognised as EERARAI 2TFEKAE
expense 90,420 83,100
Depreciation charge and depletion of A TNIBE 2 ES H RIEFHE
- owned property, plant and -BEME BERZE
equipment 3,879 3,592
- right-of-use assets -ERAEEE 436 326
Amortisation cost of VAT IEB 2 #88AK A
- intangible assets -EBEEE 87 57
Depreciation, depletion and e BREKEHE
amortisation 4,402 3,975
*  The auditors’ remuneration for discontinued operations is RMB3 million * REBEZSTFFT_A=+—HIEFE -
(2019: RMB3 million) during the year ended 31 December 2020. BERIEFELEEBORBEMM e SAR

HaBIL(CZ—NF: ARK3AETL) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

12 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS 12 EERETIZHE
Details of the emoluments of directors for the years ended 31 HE_Z-TFR-_FT-NFF+A=
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: +— EIJJ:EF%E%Z@H@#I P

2020
—§-Ef
Salaries,

allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2020
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
2 3:1 “E-8F
EEHE REEEF WAL BRGHEMRR @t

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARTR AR®Tn AR%TR

Directors: EE
Mr Fu Bin (appointed on NREER=F=-FF

19 November 2020) +—HATAHEZE) - - - - -
Mr Qian Zhijia (aopointed on BARKER-ZE-FF

19 November 2020) T—A1ThBEEE) - - - - -
Mr Ling Xiao (resigned on AERER-F-FF

19 November 2020) +—HTAA# /f) - - - - -
Mr Zhao Yonggqi ffesigned on WKREE(R=F-FF

19 November 2020) +—ATAAE /f) - 972 - 54 1,026
Mr Zhao Zhongxun (resigned on BB T E (K- E-FF

19 May 2020) AATAAFE) - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong BEBEE - - - - -
Mr Miao Yong BERE - - - - -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (resigned ZEIE %4 (K -F-F#F

on 27 May 2020) BAZt+AEE) 110 - - - 110
Dr Liu Xiao Feng BEEt 270 - - - 270
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 270 - - - 270
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper gk 270 - - - 270

920 072 - 54 1,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

12 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS 12 EERET 22 ()
(CONTINUED)
2019
“Z-NEF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2019
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
= “T-NE
EZHe  RAEREA BEEL RNGEMRT @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTn ARETRT ARBTR
Directors: -
Mr Ling Xiao EERE - - - - -
Mr Zhao Yonggi ok kg - 888 - 74 962
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEEEE - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong BEBLE - - - - -
Mr Miao Yong BELAE - - - - -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey THELE 264 - - - 264
Dr Liu Xiao Feng AEEET 220 - - - 220
Mr Sun Patrick FEELE 220 - - - 220
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper LEKLE 77 - - - 77
781 888 - 74 1,743
The discretionary bonuses of the Directors are reviewed and EENHNBREABRTHNZESLER

recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board
of Directors, having regard to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year including one (2019: one) director
whose emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

12 EERETZENE(E

AEEAEBELEESMEALERE
—H(CE-NE REF KEFEZ
MEER LA T HRR - FREN

The emoluments payable to the remaining four (2019: four) THTITHER(ZE-NF -EOB)ALTZ
individuals during the year are as follows: BT
2020 2019
—EEF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMAME 5,765 5,879
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 4T - -
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B 604 678
6,369 6,557
The emoluments fell within MENFTIER: Number of Individuals
the following band: 18 Bl A &
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 B JTAT - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T 1,500,000 & 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% JT £2,000,000 7% JT 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /& JT £3,500,000 /& JT 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 % JT 24,000,000 /& JT - 1

None of the Directors has waived their remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company did
not incur any severance payment to any director for loss of
office or any payment as inducement to any director to join

the Company (2019: Nil).

BE-ZT-_ZFTHF+-_A=+—HBL*F
B BEEFTHAEEH(CZT N
FiE) o

BE_T_TF+_A=1+—HIF
€ ARAEFE A E R BB S
EMBRINENRBEREMNES
MARRRZHE(ZT—NEF &) -

ERERERAR —s-ss5gHms 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13 FiISHEHR

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR ARBEBHETT
Current tax B HA B 18
- PRC - /B 3,296 3,636
- Overseas - 4N 71 246
3,367 3,882
Under-provision in respect of prior BAFERETR
years 15 47
Deferred tax (Note 29(b)) I % B 18 (Kt 7£29(b)) 130 145
3,512 4,074
Income tax expense attributable to LA & 18 fr 18 5% K FE 45 &Y
profit from: FreBER:
— continuing operations - BELEER 2,313 2,405
- discontinued operations -ERIEBELEER 1,199 1,669

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the Group
has no assessable profit for the year (2019: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and
regulations, the PRC corporate income tax rate applicable to
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is principally 25% (2019:
25%). The operations of the Group’s certain regions in the
PRC have qualified for certain tax incentives in the form of a
preferential income tax rates ranging from 15% to 20% (2019:
15% to 20%).

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the applicable rates
of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13 FASHERE)
REBBRFFEHEBIGF 2 FRa
RRBRERRANEBE RN EMERH
BEFHE BHLEIERMT

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax expense
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
corporate income tax rate in the PRC applicable to the Group
as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBETT
Profit before income tax expense L T&ENKBRFAEHEBA

from A

- continuing operations - RBEREER 8,107 7,014

— discontinued operations -ERIEBELEER 5,137 6,631
Profit before income tax expense bR AT1S 70 & B A @ A 13,244 13,645
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% B KB (ZE—NF:

(2019: 25%) 25%) 5t B 2 18 3,311 3,411
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREBETR 15 47
Effect of different tax rates MEER 2 ZE (157) (25)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax HZE T KA 2 T E & (200) (75)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT X H 2 T £

for tax purposes 93 184
Tax effect of share of profits less losses J& {i B 2 /X &) % F 8 5 18 2

of associates g2 (67) (164)
Tax effect of share of profits less losses FE{E G & 1 ¥ % IR E 1B 2

of joint ventures MG T E (29) (61)
Tax effect of deferred tax not RERBELEMRIE 2 MG B

recognised 261 356
Tax effect of withholding tax on B sk AR B 2 TR 2

dividends received or receivable BB 285 401
Income tax expense FTiS R Sx 1 3,512 4,074

The domestic income tax rate used in the calculation above is
the PRC tax rate which is the jurisdiction where the operations
of the Group are substantially based.

ERFABEMAZBEARGSRBE XSS
BHE  dEASRKEEIEXHREE
PIEZREEER

ERERERAT —2-sasrHms 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SREARARESZT

(@) Basic earnings per share ()

The calculation of basic earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations is based on:

(i)  Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (basic)

BREFXEF

BEGERERULBELEED

MEREARRFTRIEAT S B

() AR R R A 4 F
(&)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHER AREBETT
(Restated)
(E75))
Profit attributable to owners 2N & A% 58 & {5 34
of the Company from
- continuing operations - RBEBEREER 3,580 2,423
- discontinued operations - DA ILIFERLEE 2,483 3,128
Profit attributable to owners 7N/ &) i 3R & {55 FI| (B AX)
of the Company (basic) 6,063 5,551

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year of approximately 8,659 million
shares (2019: 8,321 million shares).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SREXARBERI(E
(CONTINUED)
(b) Diluted earnings per share b)) BEREEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share from FECEEBRRERIERFEBELE
continuing and discontinued operations is based on: XN SREBEERNIEATE
=
() Profit attributable to owners of the () AR FIRER EAS & F
Company (diluted) (#%)
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEETT
(Restated)
(E7%))
Continuing operations HFRRERK
Profit attributable to owners 2N &) % 5 F& 1f &
of the Company (basic) (EX) 3,580 2,423
After tax effect of effective FEREEBPERNX
interest on the liability HoERELSMNEE
component of convertible o HBRTETE
bonds from continuing
operations - 26

Profit attributable to owners of 7N &) % 5 & 15 %
the Company (diluted) (55) 3,580 2,449
Discontinued operations ERIEFERSEEK
Profit attributable to owners — ZN2 &) % 5 FE 15 %

of the Company (basic and (EAXAREE)
diluted) 2,483 3,128

Profit attributable to owners of ZN2A &) i% B FE 1k 3% )
the Company (diluted) (#58) 6,063 5,577
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SREARAREERF(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued) b)) BEREERFR(E)
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary (i) 3 AR hn 15 B
shares (diluted) (%)
2020 2019
—EZEF —T-NF
million shares million shares
BER BER
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HH
ordinary shares at 31 T3 AR NN RE T 8
December 8,659 8,321
Effect of conversion of AEREFCERYE
convertible bonds - 307
Weighted average number of HR+ZA=+—HH
ordinary shares (diluted) at LB NAE T
31 December (858) 8,659 8,628

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

(i) Dividends payable to owners of the Company
attributable to the year

15 RAATIRREGERE

() REEEMFATRK

Vig B

2020 2019

—E-EHF —T-NEF

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEER ARBEBHETT
Proposed final dividend attributable AN B RS R 2
to owners of the Company for 2020 Z—Z_ZTFERHAKE

(note (a)) (Fft 7% (a) 1,819 -
Proposed special dividend attributable </ &) f% 5 J& (5 ## & 2
to owners of the Company for 2020 —Z-ZFERRIKE

(note (a)) (P 5% (@)) 18,501 -

Final dividend attributable to owners of ZAAQA &AL R EWNH T —NF
the Company for 2019 (note (b)) R B AR B (BT 7% (b)) - 2,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

(i

)

15 AQFERREEREE

—HRFEEBRAERR
] ﬁi iz B

RAFE it ERZM)

F

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEER ARBEEETT
Final dividend in respect of the previous _t— Bf B & FEH) & HA L B
financial year, approved and paid (RAFE AR
during the year 2,277 1,831

Notes: B 3 -

(@ The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of @ EFFRIANR-_Z_—FA=R(E
RMB21.01 cents per share and a special dividend of RMB213.66 L ERI NS e (i )
cents per share, totaling RMB234.67 cents per share (2019: ZREIRMNKREREERARE21.01
RMB26.3 cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on D REERIREE/RARK213.665 - é.\
the Company’s register of members (the “Shareholders Register”) HERAREE234.675 (ZF— ¢
on 3 June 2021 (Thursday). The payment of the final dividend is & A R#26.35) o IR REFRR & ;,E if«
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General BRERARARBRRBAFAE ([T
Meeting of the Company (the “2021 AGM”) and the payment of EHX%?@EK‘@J)%ME iR A5 455 Bl AR
the special dividend is subject to (i) the completion of the disposal BAFOREBERAATEBRAHRAR
of 60% equity interest in PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd EMRSEEERAR(EREEEED R
(“Beijing Pipeline”) and 75% equity interest in PetroChina Dalian ZECEF T AT AR ES
LNG Co., Ltd (“Dalian LNG”) (the “Transaction”) in accordance EHE ((RESERZ D OER RGNS
with the terms and conditions under the equity transfer agreement 7552 o e EP AHIERRKAREBEBER
(“Equity Transfer Agreement”) entered into between the Company AR (HEREERE ) 60%MKIE KT A
and China Oil & Gas Pipeline Network Corporation (“PipeChina”) on MAERERARER QA (U(@LNG
20 December 2020; (i) the receipt by the Company of the proceeds RADNTERRE(Z XS] (AR
from the Transaction; and (iii) the approval of the Shareholders ?x%uix%m?ﬁ?%fﬂﬁ &(|||)Hx$b¥/\4
at the 2021 AGM. The payment is expected to be made on or T-FREBFREH AR T AIE
before 30 July 2021 (Friday). The proposed 2020 final dividend and B BHREER=_ZE—— itﬁ 7+
special dividend amounts to a total of approximately RMB20,320 A (Eﬁﬁﬁ)izmiﬁ BRE-ZT-%
million. FRABRBERFIRSEEHARE

20,320§1¥JTE °
The Transaction is conditional upon the satisfaction of certain ZRPEFREERBRBTIAES
conditions as set out under the Equity Transfer Agreement, THREEXNEFAIEE  BRHEET
and thus the Transaction contemplated thereunder may or may WMEITHZ R DR VEERETT - Jﬂz’ﬂ\ '
not proceed. Further, as the special dividend is subject to the ARFRIREAFZRSTK * A
completion of the Transaction, the receipt by the Company BREZRSHHAER IE&HQ?EAf
of the proceeds from the Transaction and the approval of the T FREBFREHERFAIEE
Shareholders at the 2021 AGM, the special dividend may or may HARDVEIRMEIRE - RER K&
not be paid. Shareholders and potential investors should exercise BEENEERMIFEEFETE -
caution when dealing in the Shares.

(o)  Final dividend attributable to owners of the Company in ) ARRBRFEEEZZT-AFREARER
respect of 2019 of RMB26.3 cents per share amounting to a BRARK26.3%  BRAEHEHOARKE
total of approximately RMB2,277 million were approved by the 22TTEET  RRER-ZE_ZTFHA
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on 27 May 2020. The 7+t5553172ﬁ§ﬁ%ﬂ¢7ﬁﬁtﬁt/§
amount is based on approximately 8,659 million shares in issue as ZEeBOERZ TF=A=+MAH

at 24 March 2020 which was paid on 24 July 2020.

EB

EmERAERAR 2=

B #1172 48, 659§%Hxﬂx1“+ i
ER-ZT-_ZTFLA-+HALT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &=

—E-F

—= ==

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

F+ZA=+—HILFE

16 ME - - BERR

Leasehold Equipment
land leased  Oil and gas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings for own use  properties pipeli hinery hicl Others in progress Total
BENMERR BRR
B ZHEE+H RARNE RAREE RERES RE ) ERIR ag
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBER ARMBER ARWEER ARYEER ARWEER ARBEER ARWABEER ARWEER ARWEER
Cost: R
Balances at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-B&#H 4,648 4152 12,946 50,061 69,956 2,803 1,553 15,677 161,796
Currency translation differences ~ SHERZ%E 2 - 203 - 5 2 - 3 215
Additions RE 233 431 208 - 666 63 84 8,866 10,551
Acquisition through business BREBAMETRE

combination 79 161 - - 1,752 4 2 132 2,130
Disposals et (154) (169) 1) - (860) (205) (10) (141) (1,560)
Transfers #5 354 - - 1,511 6,999 - 3 (8,867) -
Balances at 31 December 2019~ MZZ—AF+ZA=+—-R&#H 5,162 4,575 13,336 51,672 78,618 2,667 1,632 15,670 173,132
Balances at 1 January 2020 5,162 4,575 13,336 51,572 78,518 2,667 1,632 15,670 173,132
Currency translation differences &M% ER 2% (5) ) (266) - 1) (7) U] (6) (288)
Additions RE 402 584 184 - 142 31 128 7,393 8,864
Acquisition through business BREBAGEITRE (M 34)

combination (Note 34) 360 - - - 3,482 13 8 348 4,211
Transfer to disposal group HAZHEARELEL

classified as held-for-sale it 28 51 (i 7£35)

(Note 35) (1,945) (701) - (50,626) (18,662) (103) - (406) (72,443)
Disposals 1E (119) (179) (2,109) 1) (689) (262) (28) (112) (3,499)
Transfers g% 164 34 - 386 4,945 1 202 (5,732) -
Reclassification ENHE 1,531 (46) - (1,102) (2,005) 12 1,610 - -
Balances at 31 December 2020 R FFT-A=T-HEH 5,550 4,266 11,145 229 65,730 2,352 3,550 17,155 109,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

og =, =3
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BERRE(E
(CONTINUED)
Leasehold Equipment
land leased  Oil and gas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings for own use  properties pipeli hinery hicl Others in progress Total
BENMERR BRR
BF ZHEL# RARNE RAREE RERES RE i HRIR a8

RMB’million  RMB'million  RMB'million  RMB’million RMB'million RMB'million ~ RMB’million ~RMB'million ~ RMB’million
ARBEERL ARWEER ARBEER ARWEER ARMEER ARBEER ARWEER ARWEER ARWEER

Accumulated depreciation and Rt fTERBEARFE:
depletion and impairment:

Balances at 1 January 2019 RZE-N5-F-B&H 1,326 - 11,821 15,465 27,358 2,205 644 2,301 61,120
Currency translation differences ~ SHEH £E - - 173 - 2 2 - - 177
Charge for the year AEETH 249 164 268 1,442 3,881 188 101 - 6,293
Disposals e 1] 23 21) - (37) (185) [0} 26) (638)
Impairment loss RAEER 1 - - - 325 2 ] 3% 404
Balances at 31 December 2019~ MZZ—AF+ZA=+—-R&#H 1,565 141 12,241 16,907 31,195 2212 785 2,310 67,356
Balances at 1 January 2020 RZZ-ZF-A-B&H 1,565 141 12,241 16,907 31,195 2212 785 2310 67,356
Currency translation differences ~ SHEH =% ) - (241) - @ 6) )] - (258)
Charge for the year AEETH 366 182 312 1,445 4,310 132 123 - 6,870
Transfer to disposal group EREHEABELEY

classified as held-for-sale & 4 5 (H 35)

(Note 35) (731) (134) - (17,967) (9,936) 1) - - (28,849)
Disposals e (103) (34) (2,104) (1) (505) (249) (28) - (3,024)
Reclassffication ENNE 527 - - (323) (1,063) - 859 - -
Balances at 31 December 2020  RW=Z=TH+-A=T—BH 1,621 155 10,208 61 23,999 2,008 1,738 2,310 42,100
Net book value: EAFE:

Balances at 31 December 2020  RW=Z=FF+-A=T-B#H 3,029 4,111 937 168 41,731 344 1,812 14,845 67,877
Balances at 31 December 2019 RZZ-AF+ZA=t—B#H 3,597 4,434 1,095 34,665 47,323 455 847 13,360 105,776
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 W% - BMENKRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

The buildings of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.

Other assets mainly comprises of containers, roads, bridges
and others.

As at 31 December 2020, certain property, plant and
equipment of the Group were pledged to banks for loan
facilities granted to the Group. See Note 28.

As at 31 December 2020, the legal title registration of
certain of the Group’s properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB878 million (2019: RMB851 million) is
subject to certain administrative procedures to be completed
by the relevant local government authorities. The Board of
Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the risks and
rewards of using these assets have been transferred to the
Group.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are
situated on leasehold land in the PRC which was granted for
use by the relevant government authorities to the Group at nil
consideration with no specific terms of usage.

In view of the fluctuations in LNG supply and prices during
the year, the Group performed impairment assessment with
respect to certain LNG processing plants, each of which being
identified as a cash generating unit.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment in respect of the Group’s LNG processing plants
amounted to RMB7,715 million (2019: RMB7,830 million). No
impairment was recognised with respect to LNG processing
plants for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The estimate of the recoverable amount of these LNG
processing plants was determined based on a value in use
calculation, using a discounted cash flow model. Future cash
flows were adjusted for risks specific to these LNG processing
plants and discounted using a pre-tax discount rate ranging
from 14.06% to 15.70% for the current year (2019: 13.65% to
15.34%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BERREE)
(CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assets FREEE
The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-use NWTRASERBBEERNEI S 2
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: FRAEEERDFEI:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
a2 -3 —ET-NF
+=Z—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
Notes RMB’million RMB’million
M ARBEEETR AREBETT
Buildings, carried at depreciated cost VA#T & K A IR 2 1B F () 377 302
Leasehold land leased for own use, NITERANEZHE
carried at depreciated cost UEBERZHEE L (if) 4,111 4,434
Equipment and machinery, LAY BE R ARSI BR 2 32 1
carried at depreciated cost Kot 2% (iif) 753 697
Motor vehicles, carried at AT ERK AR 2 )78
depreciated cost 5 5
Others, carried at depreciated cost  JA#T & ik A<%1| B ~ E th
BE 68 5
5,314 5,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BERRE(E
(CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) FHEEEE)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised HREZERZEEREEZ X HEE
in profit or loss is as follows: k)i UM
2020 2019
—EZEF —T-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEBHETT
(Restated)
(&)
Continuing operations BEKEEK
Depreciation charge of right-of-use REBEERRE D
assets by class of underlying asset: FRAEEETEIL:
Buildings BF 174 111
Leasehold land leased for own use MENEBRZEE i1 167 150
Equipment and machinery A Mk B8 75 65
Others HAth 20 -
436 326
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 10) HEBEN ST 31 28
Expense relating to short-term leases E2452 HATH S #HRE 2 L 335 363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets in both
continuing and discontinued operations were RMB1,092 million
(2019: RMB834 million). The right-of-use assets of RMB161
million were acquired through business combination during
the year ended 31 December 2019. Additions to right-of-use
assets of RMB27 million was transferred to assets associated
with a disposal group classified as held-for-sale as at 31
December 2020.

Details of total cash outflows for leases is set out in Notes
24(c).

(i)  Buildings, carried at depreciated cost

The Group has obtained the right to use buildings as its
warehouses and offices through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10
years.

(i)  Leasehold land leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use of certain
leasehold land in the PRC. The leases typically run for
a period of 10 to 50 years.

(i) Equipment and machinery

The Group leases equipment and machinery under
leases expiring from 16 to 20 years. Some leases include
an option to purchase the leased equipment at the end
of the lease term at a price deemed to be a bargain
purchase option.

16 Y% - B&ER&RE(E)

EREEEGE)

FA - FECEEBREREFELSE
¥BNEREEERNE AAREK1,002
BET(CZE—NF:ARKSMEE
e REBEE=_ZT—hhF+-_A=1+—
HEFEFRAEEEARKIGIEE T
NEREBAHER HR-ZZT=-_ZTF
+-A=+—H FRAEEEAREA
REZIEETEHEZEASEAFED
EZREHEBNBECEE -

HMERS MR BN M
24(c) °

i) RITEXARIER 2EF

AEEDEBHEASNISRE
HERRMAEZEBTZER
e —Rs FRBEENIR
HMEETF -

(i) HMENEERZEE L

AEECRGEE TURFEZE
Er o EmE —HmE A
AEERMtFERTF -

(i) "X M Es

AEERBERTANFE-TFR
EmzHEEHERB RIS
MoEEBRZEEE KRHEHE
MR R RREREEERE
ZERBEEHHEHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

17 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17 RIBERT z2RE
2020 2019
—EB-EF —ET-nF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBAESETT
Share of net assets EEEEFE 5,836 5,362
Goodwill Bk 350 350
6,186 5,712
Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 40. BETERENA ISR E40 o
There is no individually material associate which significantly THERENBEZEZHME AR HAEE
affects the results and net assets of the Group at 31 R-CZB-TEFE+-_A=+—HZEERK
December 2020. BEFHEKERATE -
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BRITEE HBE N NTI ZE5HER:
material:
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBEERL
Aggregate carrying amount of BRI TEE 2B E QAR
individually immaterial associates in FEVBmEACAERREB
the consolidated financial statements 6,186 5,712
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEBELHZSHE QT
share of those associates’ 2 s EE
Profit from continuing operations FECEEE BT 340 951
Post-tax profit or loss from ERIEFELEER
discontinued operations BREiEE R - -
Other comprehensive income Hiib2mEUk (92) 14
Total comprehensive income 2 B 5 248 965
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18

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

18 REEEXZRE

2020 2019
RMB’ m|II|on RMB’million
ARBEER AREBETT
Share of net assets JEIEEEFE 3,310 3,163
Loan to a joint venture M—EeEELEER 38 40
3,348 3,203

Details of the principal joint ventures are set out in Note 41. EHITZEEECEZFHBHNME

4

There is no individually material joint venture which significantly
affects the results and net assets of the Group at 31

December 2020.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually

THEREHNBEREELEUANEE
R-ZF_THEF_A=t—BZXER
BEFEEREKR

E-

rE°

BERTERZABERERX ZAEHER:

material:
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARMEERT ARBBEETR
Aggregate carrying amount of BRTEZ2EBELERIE
individually immaterial joint B mERZEREEB
ventures in the consolidated
financial statements 3,348 3,203
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s $’§ HEEEZEEEREL
share of those joint ventures’ BeRE
- Profit from continuing operations - BBLEER RN 183 319
- Post-tax profit or loss from - ERIEFELEEBRRY
discontinued operations 3k - -
— Other comprehensive income - Hip 2w e (85) 20
— Total comprehensive income - 2HK =B 98 339
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39.

The following tables list out the information related to
PetroChina Jiangsu LNG Co., Ltd. (Jiangsu LNG”) and
PetroChina Jingtang LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang Co.”). Both
are the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before
any inter-company elimination.

REEARZIRE

FRAXTEMNBAR 2 FFHNME
39 °

TRIHEPBEARIHRERARE
BRARH(DIFLNG)) R Al ERE
RARABRRR([RERAF D ZHEBE
F e ZMRARNHA/AKENNER
m o A B ARG (FEE
HHED  UTHEF ZFBEERE
ERNVEMARIEIPHEA 225 e

NCI percentage FEEHMEEAE S

Current assets MENE E

Non-current assets FERBEE

Current liabilities MEEE

Non-current liabilities FEMBEE

Net assets BEFE

Carrying amount of NCI FEFE S M BREE

Revenue A

Profit and total comprehensive FRRMEE2EK B
income for the year

Profit allocated to NCI AR EIEESIERER Z R

Dividend paid to NCI BRI SIS 2 AR B

Cash flows generated from REEBHEZHERE

operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activites HREEXBKFA 7R SR E
Cash flows used in financing activities B E/EBFTAZIR SR E
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Jiangsu LNG
SIH#LNG
2020 2019
=5 i —E-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARMEERT ARBRER
45% 45%
1,276 1,040
4,855 4,847
(405) (5639)
(93) (90)
5,633 5,258
2,535 2,366
2,454 2,363
1,422 1,253
640 564
473 614
1,740 1,453
(924) (1,006)
(1,074) (1,329)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 19 RBARIZIRE(E

Jingtang Co.
RELQT
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREBETT
NCI percentage JEEHItEEA DL 49% 49%
Current assets MENVE E 1,596 801
Non-current assets ERENEE 4,949 5,077
Current liabilities RBAE (317) (641)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (884) (279)
Net assets BEFE 5,344 4,958
Carrying amount of NCI FEFE G AR EE 2,619 2,429
Revenue WA 1,895 1,932
Profit and total comprehensive FRREMEEZEKEERE
income for the year 985 956
Profit allocated to NCI 2B & FIEEHIE R = 2 R A 483 468
Dividend paid to NCI BT IEESIEER RS 294 319
Cash flows generated from KREXEBHEZHERE
operating activities 1,179 1,319
Cash flows used in investing activities REEXBHAAZEESRE (1,847) (184)
Cash flows generated from (used in) BIEEBEL(FTA)Z
financing activities Rens 3 (1,259)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

20 INTANGIBLE AND OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20 B R HE R HEE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREBETT

Intangible assets (note (i) = A E (M REG) 1,554 1,017

Prepaid construction costs SEENEES AN 378 525

Loans to associates BN =E 30 360

Other financial assets (note (i) H b & mh & 2 (K aE i) 239 202

Others HAth 239 86

2,440 2,190

Notes: B 5T -

(i) The intangible assets mainly comprise goodwill, contract (i) EFREETERERE ARBE-
relationships, franchised rights and computer software costs. The BHELEEBHERAN BEEEZ
movements in intangible assets are as follows: SFEm

2020 2019
“EC-EE ZZ-NEF
Goodwill Others Total Goodwill Others Total
HE Httr @t HE Hifr @it
RMB’million  RMB’million RMB’million  RMB'million ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB’million
AREEER AR®EER AR%EER ARBEERT AREBEERT AREBER

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 352 665 1,017 139 184 323

Additions NE - 13 13 8 23 31

Acquisition through BB E OT#ETT

business combination Ui B (B 5134)
(Note 34) 175 518 693 205 531 736

Transfer to disposal EREHHEARE

group classified as HEZHEER
held-for-sale - (42) (42) - - -

Disposal & (34) - (34) - - -

Impairment loss BB & 1R - - - - (16) (16)

Amortisation for the year 7ZN4F & #4 § - (93) (93) - (67) (67)

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 493 1,061 1,554 352 665 1,017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE AND OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

i
{1

REMERHEE

~ \\\

A*

BeE: (8

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NEF
t=A=t-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEHETR AREEETT

Equity securities designated EBERZEAFEFAEMEELR S

at FVOCI (non-recycling): SR CRAFE S (TAIEE EER)

- Listed in Australia - B AR E LW 7 7
- Listed in Hong Kong -RAEEET 3 4
- Listed in the PRC - BB £ 229 191
239 202

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position by the measurement hierarchy
are set out in Note 4.3(a).

The Group designated other financial assets at FVOCI (non-recycling),
as the investments are held for strategic purposes. No dividends were
received on these investments during the year (2019: Nil). Fair value gain
on other financial asset (non-recycling) of RMB31 million (2019: RMB65
million), net of tax of RMB6 million (2019: RMB10 million) was recognised
in other comprehensive income during the year.

INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:

21

AEEREEYBRARIEZFESRE OB
EemEE 2 REBESH M43 -

HRABBEEDREREREMIFAE - Bit
AEEETHMWESREERZAFETAHR
thEEKEAE(RAIBREER) - AFE
YERZSERERRTARE(ZE—NF:
M)  H e MEE (T EEZER)NATF
BEREZAREINBEL(ZZE-NFARE
5EEBL)(FIKHIEBEBARKBEEL(ZT —
NEARBI08E L) FRAREMEEE

78

REMBRRERTFERRE

2020 2019

—E-EHF —NF

RMB’ m|II|on RMB’million

ARBEER AREBETT

Natural gas RKIAR 885 1,168
Materials for natural gas pipelines RKAREEME - 185
Crude oil in tanks and others MmERBEEM 40 45
925 1,398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

22 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22 FEUWERFX

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
+=A=+-8B +-A=+-H
RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEERT AREBAETR

Accounts receivable, FEUCBR 3R BB 1B B
net of loss allowance 4,085 2,792
Ageing analysis R 2

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts receivable, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BEREHR - BUERFKCGOREEE
BIREZARZREDTWT

2020 2019

—EEHF —E-NF

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEBETR ARBEBETT

Within 3 months =@ ANUA 3,407 2,284
Between 3 to 6 months —@EAZ=XEANAN 189 78
Over 6 months NE A £ 489 430
4,085 2,792

The Group’s revenue from rendering of terminal and pipeline
services and sales of crude oil are generally collectable within
a period ranging from 30 to 90 days from the invoice date
while the sales of natural gas are made in cash or on credit
terms no more than 90 days. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from accounts receivable
are set out in Note 4.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

23 PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT
ASSETS

23 EANRREMABEE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEER ARBEBETT

Other receivables, net of credit losses HEWZHIE - B EE
EBiEz 1,149 1,752
Prepayments TET K 2,798 2,487

Amounts due from an intermediate JE Uk A R 4 AR A R 3R OB

holding company 1,590 15
Loans to joint ventures MEBLEENR 400 410
Loans to third parties ME=FERK 23 25
Dividends receivable JE U % B 93 93
Value-added tax recoverable A U 5] 1 (B AR 1,950 1,839
Income tax recoverable A Y e AT AR 8 8
Other current assets HEtmeh&E 142 191
8,153 6,820

The amounts due from an intermediate holding company are
RMB1,590 million (2019: RMB15 million), which are expected to
be settled within one year, and unsecured and interest-bearing
at 1.80% per annum (2019: 1.80% per annum).

Loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-bearing at
4.99% per annum (2019: 4.99% per annum) and expected to
be settled within one year as at 31 December 2020.

FE W R 1 AR R R RUIE A A R #1,590
BEL(ZE— jLEJ\Eﬁ%wE:%
L) MHR—FRNEE AEEAR
BEFE1.80% (T —NF: FH=E
1.80%) 5T B °

R-ZF_ZF+_A=1t—H RAEE
CEEFAEERR - WEHNEL99%5t
B(ZE—NF FHEL99%) N T8 H
R—FRERE -
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

@)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

24 RERREFEEHE

@)

BeRReEEARS

2020 2019
= —TAF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBETT
Cash at bank and on hand WITRFHERES 14,277 18,132
Short-term bank deposits MEIRITER 1,996 508
Cash and cash equivalents from SEREEBHRER
continuing operations HeEEEE 16,273 18,640
Cash and cash equivalents included st A—#9 M AFIEL
in a disposal group classified as EZHEARZERE R
held-for-sale ReEEIER 417 -
Cash and cash equivalents HehReEMEEE 16,690 18,640

Cash at bank and bank deposits carry interest at
prevailing weighted average market rate at 0.56% per
annum (2019: 0.39% per annum).

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash
are amounts of approximately RMB13,828 million (2019:
RMB16,852 million) denominated in RMB which are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of
these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
and the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC Government.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

24 RERRAELFEEAR)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b MEIZEBRELENER
financing activities (continued) AR (48)
Convertible Lease Dividend
Borrowings bonds liabilities payables Total
BE WHEHARS HEEE ERE ast
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARMEER AR%EER AR%EERT ARKEER
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-Z£-f—-H 34,499 - 618 1,116 36,233
Changes from financing REERERELE:

cash flows:

Increase in borrowings EBEEMm 16,616 - - - 16,616
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (18,627) - - - (18,627)
Capital element of BERBEREAEHH

lease rentals paid - - (462) - (462)
Interest element of ENHEERSHEHR

lease rentals paid - - (33) - (33)
Interest paid ERFE (1,423) - - - (1,423)
Dividends paid to BRARRRERE

owners of the Company - - - (2,277) (2,277)
Other dividends paid BREMKRE - - - (4,202) (4,202)
Total changes from financing BEREFELDHLEE

cashflows (3,434) - (495) (6,479) (10,408)
Effect of foreign exchange Exgno¥g

rate changes (647) - - - (647)
Other changes: Hit2 .

Net changes in lease liabilies ~ FRMEEEFEE

during the year - - 546 - 546
Interest expenses FlaFE% 1,375 - 32 - 1,407
Transfer from accrued liabililes ~ EHEAE 57 - - - 57
Dividends to ARARERE

owners of the Company - - - 2,277 2,277
Dividends to FEEIERERS

non-controlling interests - - - 3,521 3,521
Acquisition through business BBEBEETRE

combination (Note 34) (P 7£34) 2,323 - - - 2,323
Transfer to disposal group BEEHEABELEL

classified as held-for-sale &8 R (1 735)

(Note 35) (6,500) - (37) - (6,537)
Total other changes Hit 2845 (2,745) - 54 5,798 3,594
At 31 December 2020 RZB-EE+-A=1-H 27,673 - 664 435 28,772
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 24 RERREFEEHE

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b MEIZBRELENER
financing activities (continued) AR (48)
Convertible Lease Dividend
Borrowings bonds liabilities payables Total
e UEREH HEBE EfRE o
RMB’million  RMB’million  RMB’million  RMB’million =~ RMB’million
ARBEER ARMEER AR%EER ARMEER ARWEER
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=A=+-H 35,235 3,306 203 1,059 39,808
Impact on initial application of NI ERE AN B REES
HKFRS 16 EALHvA-A - - 641 - 641
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-AE-F-H 35,235 3,306 844 1,059 40,444
Changes from financing RERSRESZE:
cash flows:
Increase in borrowings EEE 9,343 - - - 9,343
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (10,986) - - - (10,986)
Repayment of convertible bonds (BB A& &% - (10) - - (10)
Capital element of ERNEEREAL BN
lease rentals paid - - (301) - (301)
Interest element of ENHEERSMEHR
lease rentals paid - - (31) - 31)
Interest paid BRAE (1,530) 28) - - (1,558)
Dividends paid to ERARARERES
owners of the Company - - - (1,831) (1,831)
Other dividends paid EREMKS - - - (3,165) (3,165)
Total changes from financing REREFELHAE
cashflows 3173 (38) (332) (4,996) (8,539)
Effect of foreign exchange Exgyeye
rate changes 239 - - - 239
Other changes: Hit#g:
Net changes in lease liabiities ~ FAHEEEFLH
during the year - - 78 - 78
Interest expenses FERE 1,568 44 28 - 1,640
Transfer (to)/from accrued liabililes (ZEEZ) /EHEHE(E (29) 24 - - (5)
Conversion of convertible bonds B R E & E % - (3,336) - - (3,336)
Dividends to FRARERE
owners of the Company - - - 1,831 1,831
Dividends to FERIMEERE
non-controlling interests - - - 3,222 3,222
Acquisition through business BREBAFETRE
combination 659 - - - 659
Total other changes Hitt 2545 2198 (3,268) 106 5,053 4,089
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NE+=A=1+-H 34,499 - 618 1,116 36,233
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 24 WERWEEEIEH(E)

(c) Total cash outflows for leases c HEHRE KA
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash REEHFAGERERERZSE
flows for leases comprise the following: HERFBUATEE:

2020 2019
— ? — E :g’é_j-l.léﬁ
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEBEETR AREBETT
Within operating cash flows KEREME 390 418
Within investing cash flows KELRERE 490 265
Within financing cash flows MEREMED 495 332
1,375 1,015

These amounts relate to the following: ZESEETYSIEGFR:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBETT
Lease rentals paid BENEERS 885 750

Additions of leasehold lands leased AEBEHEEERAZHE it

for own use 490 265
1,375 1,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 Rg7A
Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
million HK$’million
ZTEREE TEREE
BER BEATT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &7 K H 80.01)8 T2 B g
At 1 January 2019, RZE—NF—H—H-
31 December 2019 and “E-NF+-A=T—HK
31 December 2020 —E-ZEF+-_HA=+—H 16,000 160
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Number of Nominal value Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares shares
million RMB’million million RMB’million
ZEREA ZEREE BT EE TR EE
BER AR¥EER BER ARBEBHET
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBEHHML:
Ordinary shares &ZREE0.01ET
of HK$0.01 each BE R
At 1 January n—RA—H 8,659 71 8,072 65
Issue of shares upon N AR =g
conversion of convertible BHREETRA
bonds (note) (B =E) - - 587 6
At 31 December R+=-A=1+—8~ 8,659 71 8,659 71
Note: On 19 November 2019, 586,240,903 ordinary shares were Max: RZFE—-—AF+-—-A+hB-

issued upon conversion of convertible bonds and the Group’s
share capital increased by HK$5,862,409 (approximately
RMB5,153,090) accordingly. The amounts presented in the
table above are rounded for presentation of balance as at 31

December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

26 OTHER RESERVES

@)

Movements in components of other reserves

26 Hitf#®
(a) EL1th {4 & 4H R &2 E)
Group
A58
Fair value
reserve Convertible
Share Contributed Merger (non- bond equity  Translation Retained
premium surplus reserve  recycling) reserve reserve Others earnings Total
NEEREE
(FUBEE TEARS
RfEE BHRE  AHEE BE) RERE ENRE i REER a7
RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'millon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'million

AR¥BEL ARBBET ARBEL ARBAET

AR¥BEL AR¥EET AR¥BEL ARMBET ARKEBET

note (i note (i) note (i) note (iv) note (v) note (vi) note (vii)
M) M 5 () i 2 i) W3k () MEE() M3 (v i 5 (il
Balances at 31 December 2018 and R=Z-\E+=f
1 January 2019 =t-BR=3-1%
-f-REH 32,359 109 (23,820) 68 195 1,158 7,208 25,362 42,639
Total comprehensive income for the year A% i &5 - - - 50 - 178 - 5,551 5,779
Transfer between reserves HEREER - - - - - - 598 (598) -
Final dividend for 2018 “T-\EEERE - - - - - - - (1,831) (1,831)
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERTEARSE
convertible bonds (note) BIRA (FE) 3,52 - - - (195) - - - 3,330
Balances at 31 December 2019 R=B-nfE
TIAZt-RER 35,884 109 (23,820) 118 - 1,336 7806 28,484 49,917
Balances at 31 December 2019 and W=Z-AFE+=f
1 January 2020 =t-AR-Z-8F
-B-B&8 35,884 109 (23,820) 118 - 1,336 7,806 28,484 49,917
Total comprehensive income for the year &R 2 % &8 5 - - - 24 - (214) - 6,063 5,873
Transfer between reserves BERgR - - - - - - 3 (113) -
Final dividend for 2019 “E-AERERE - - - - - - - @2 @)
Balances at 31 December 2020 R-2-%%
TZAZt-REH 35,884 109 (23,820) 142 - 1,122 8,519 31,557 53,513

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
outstanding convertible bonds with carrying amount of
RMB3,336 million were converted into ordinary shares.
Accordingly, the carrying amount of these convertible
bonds, together with the related convertible bond equity
reserve, was derecognised with an amount of RMB3,525
million, being the excess over the par value of the ordinary
shares issued, recognised as share premium in this
connection.

MiaE: RBE-Z-AF+-A=+
—HILEE AEEREER
A R#3,3368 & 7T /) 8 R 1T
fFrlsginfE At AL @mk -
Fit - ZE T E@REFNERER
BEEREBAITEBERESER
REBRIEER  BREETE
BREEMNARKESS5HE
L LR ARG RE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

26 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED) 26 H{hf#dk (&
(@) Movements in components of other reserves () HitEEAKREE (E)
(Continued)
Company
b NG|
Convertible
Share  Contributed bond equity Retained

premium surplus reserve earnings Total

TERES
RBEE BHRH MR RHEEN BE

RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion  RMB'million
AREREL ARBEEL AR¥EEL ARMAEEL ARBAER

note (i) note (i) note (v)
B3 () Pt 32 i) it 3T (v)
Balances at 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\E+=A
and 1 January 2019 =+-HR=E-hF
—-B-B&# 32,359 109 195 14,340 47,003
Total comprehensive income FREANEEE
for the year - - - 5,270 5,270
Final dividend for 2018 “E-\ERERE - - - (1,831) (1,831)
Issue of shares upon conversion of R E T E A E 5K
convertible bonds BIRG 3,525 - (195) - 3,330

Balances at 31 December 2019  R=E-h#

TZA=t+-R&# 35,884 109 - 17,779 53,772

Balances at 31 December 2019 R-Z-A&+=H

and 1 January 2020 =+-BR-Z-E%
—-B-B#&# 35,884 109 - 17,779 53,772

Total comprehensive income FRRENREE

for the year - - - 4,006 4,006

Final dividend for 2019 “E-NERERE - - - (2,277) (2,277)

Balances at 31 December 2020 RZ-Z-Z#f

TZA=+-B&H 35,884 109 - 19,508 55,501
2 FE
(b) Nature and purpose of other reserves () HitEE2z2tEREN

Notes: B 5 -

(i) Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the share (i) BRIBEERE-NN—FRATE -
premium account may be applied by the Company in R EAIMARRIEAEHE
paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to Ak AREHEIEEITTIAR
members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares. R Z AR AR AR BTG -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

26 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature and purpose of other reserves
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Group and the
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

(iii) The merger reserve represents the difference between
the considerations and the aggregate share capital of
subsidiaries acquired under business combinations under
common control.

(iv)  The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated as FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period (see Note 3(h)).

(v) The convertible bond equity reserve represents the equity
component of the convertible bonds at initial recognition.

(vi) The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
3(d)(ii).

(vi) ~ Others mainly represent capitalisation of retained earnings by
subsidiaries and the statutory surplus reserves. Pursuant to
the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association and
the resolution of Board of Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of its net profit to statutory surplus
reserves. Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserves
may be ceased when the fund aggregates to 50% of those
subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves
may be used to make good previous years’ losses or to
increase the capital of those subsidiaries upon approval.

H th i 8 (48)

(b)

EB

ﬁi’.{.ﬁfﬁZﬁ”‘& B

nﬁ

M sk - (88)

iy EBEHBBEMNBARREAEE
WA ZEABRRESEAR
AAkBEmBETIRNEEZ
= o

(i) AOFFEERHRZESTES
BOFFMKEHRERR ZRERR
ARz 25 -

vy 2AFERBCITEEDEZEER) S
ERBEBARMBRETEY
EHEEBEISIE T AIRAF

EtAREMEE R E 2 BA
BEAFEZZEFEZH (ALK
3(h) °

(v) Tﬁi%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁm‘*ﬁ&
R EBRES DD

Vi) EXRFEHREREENERY
BHRERELEZMEELEZRE -
IR B M FES() () 2 & 5T B R
BRI e

(i) EHpEXB2EHMEBELRENCRT
BN POXE BB RTE - RIE(R
EARAMBRRE)  E124
AR R R B S Z A& E
MEBAREESRE AEEZ
BT A R AR s NFRR 2
10%RBUEE BB AT - &)
ERBABRABEINZEN
B AR FEM B AR Z250%8 - AT
Bitfe - ZE AR ATELIE
BRAANBHETAFEER %
BINZEWERE 2R -

ERERERAT —s-sssens 197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

26 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(c) Distributability of other reserves

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of other
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company, as calculated under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 was RMB19,617 million (2019:
RMB17,888 million). After the end of the reporting period
the Directors proposed a final dividend of RMB21.01
cents and a special dividend of RMB213.66 cents
per ordinary share (2019: RMB26.3 cents per share),
amounting to RMB20,320 million (2019: RMB2,277
million) (Note 15). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

27 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

()

26 Hih#E (&

A 53 i LAt {5 4

R-E-ZFEE+-A=+—H0 "7
e ARAE) = R 0k 2 Bty
FEEeBEREEREE—NL\—
FRalATE)BARK19617H
BT —NF: AR¥17,888
BEL  NRHRERAKRE EF
BRAHRESREAKRARE
21.010 MFFRI B R E AR A
Ri#E013.660 (ZE—NF: FK
AR #26.35)  #E AR 20,320
BBET(ZE—NF: ARE2,277
BBIT(KE15) - ZBRERRE
BRI AERAE—HARE -

27 BNERRRERERE

2020 2019

—E-EHF —T-NF

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEER AREBHETT

Accounts payable FEATBR K 3,355 2,214

Contract liabilities aEHaE 10,911 9,800

Salaries and welfare payable N & & KkiE A 312 342

Accrued expenses FEEtRAX 14 16

Dividend payable JE T AR B 435 1,116

Interest payable & A B 72 144
Construction fee and equipment JENERE RRHEKAR

cost payables 8,239 10,079

Amounts due to related parties JE A BB 5 5B

- Non-controlling interests - SIS 1 1

- Others - Hfb 82 380

Other payables H b JE T R IE 4,672 5,208

28,093 29,300

As at 31 December 2020, the Group also had non-current

R-B-BELA=T—A  A%£E

contract liabilities of RMB591 million (2019: RMB776 million)
which were included under non-current other liabilities and
were expected to be recognised as revenue in over 12 months
but less than 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

27 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s contract liabilities represent primarily advances
received from customers. In certain regions of the PRC,
customers of the Group’s city gas business are required to
use integrated circuit cards and top up in advance before the
balances are deducted upon usage of natural gas. Depending
on the market conditions and the customers’ credit profile,
the Group also requires advance for certain customers for
sales of other natural gas products. These advance payments
from customers are recognised as contract liabilities until the
natural gas products are sold to the customers. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the amount of RMB9,800 million
(2019: RMB9,383 million) recognised in contract liabilities at
beginning of the year has substantially been recognised as
revenue during the year.

The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as well as the
named party in other proceeding. While the outcomes of
such contingencies, lawsuits or other proceeding cannot be
determined at present, management believes that any resulting
liabilities will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position or financial performance of the Group.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27 BHERRKREFEEGE)

AEECZEHNBEEIEREERPZ
B o EREE TR - NEB T
MREBRFAFAENEERLE
SIEE - FAREARAREHRE
BoBRIMAREFEENRR A&
ERAHEEMRARERFITIEEX
ETEFEANK - ZERBEREFZ
ENFREBEEEERAAREREETR
FRIEZAERRABANEE - KA
E_E-_TF+_A=+—HILEFE -
FYREHEERR 2 ARKB00H
Brn(ZZE—NF: AR¥9,383HET)
ERFRRKEERBUWA -

AEBBETREZHER MR
ZIEET - BEABREEEZFTH
REM  ERFDRREMFRZER
HEEEREEANHEELEZARD
SUAKRE 2 BAN KT HREE
RERTFEE -

IR &S 24

BERSHR  BENRFEERAHY
ZERE TR

2020 2019

—E-EF —TAF

RMB’million RMB’million

ANEEBEERT AREBETT

Within 3 months =@ AR 2,751 1,620
Between 3 to 6 months =B A=ENEA 159 81
Over 6 months NEAMN E 445 513
3,355 2,214

The typical credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables fall within the credit time frame. The
contractual maturity date of accounts payable and accrued
liabilities is within one year.

REEEmZBREMET RO - A&
B2 i B R B BOR  DARE AR
PIBERNRARNERRAA - B
ERLEAREZANFHHA—F
A o
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

28 BORROWINGS 28 B8E
2020 2019
RMPB’ m|II|on RMB’million
AREBEETR ARBEEHETT
Short-term borrowings — secured (note) R HAfEE - A\ () - 24
Short-term borrowings — unsecured MEEE - £EKH 3,014 3,540
Current portion of long-term borrowings & HEE 2 BIEAI o 2,168 5,208
5,182 8,772
Long-term borrowings — secured (note) =HIEE - B (M) 780 -
Long-term borrowings — unsecured REIEE - EEF 23,879 30,935
Less: Current portion of long-term B REEE ZBIEHD

borrowings (2,168) (5,208)
22,491 05,727
27,673 34,499

Note: As at 31 December 2020, certain property, plant and equipment fsx: RZTEF+-—A=+—H0 &&

of the Group amounting to RMB756 million (2019: RMB21 million)
were pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the Group.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

EETHmE -
756E B IL(ZE
%m)

TRERMT

BMELEZEAARE
—hF:ARB21H

ZRACRARERR ZE

17 -

EEZEHEERITERE:

2020 2019

—EEHF —E-NF

RMB’million RMB’million

ARMEERT ARBBETR

RMB AR 18,450 21,645
US dollar ETT 6,501 7,815
Hong Kong dollar AT 2,648 4,968
Japanese yen Hot 18 18
Euro BL 7T 56 53
27,673 34,499
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GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

28 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28 BE(E
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the borrowings of the RZZBZZEFRZZFT-NF+A=*
Group were repayable as follows: —H AEECZEBEEARNATERER:
Loans other than
Bank loans bank loans
RITEX REBETERUAIZER
2020 2019 2020 2019

—ECEF —ZT-hEF —ECEF —E-NF
RMB’million BMB’million  RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EERL ARBEET AR¥EBEERT ARBHEET

Within one year —FR 1,970 3,609 3,212 5,163
Between one to two years —EWEF 1,970 346 2,274 1,968
Between two to five years MZERF 3,197 1,975 8,842 15,101
After five years AELE 2,657 2,653 3,551 3,684

9,794 8,583 17,879 25,916
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TERHFLAEEZBEZHBTENTF
maturity for its borrowings. The information presented is based H - EJNERTDIUAAEE AN Z
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay EFPAPAEEE URRAMBERS
and represents the undiscounted cash flow including principal nEBEREEHNE) :

and interest:

Loans other than

Bank loans bank loans
BITER REBITERUNZER
2020 2019 2020 2019

RMB’ m|II|on BMB’million  RMB’ m|II|on RMB’million
ARBEEL ARBEETL AREEBEERXT ARBHET

Within one year —FR 2,216 3,913 3,672 6,103
Between one to two years —EWF 2,188 569 3,086 2,800
Between two to five years MZERF 3,852 2,403 9,055 16,181
After five years AFLIE 3,234 3,151 3,985 3,758

11,490 10,036 19,798 28,842
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29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 29 #Z&8 B EBRRETDZAEFRH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current tax in the consolidated statement of @@ HZeaBBEHRRTFPZED
financial position represents: HA *RIEH
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREAET
Tax payables in respect of B AR TER
subsidiaries in: JER 2 BiA
- the PRC - 586 649
- Peru -WE 9 2
- Thailand - &= H 8 9
603 660
Withholding tax on dividend WERARDIKKE 2
distributed by the subsidiaries A 1 68
604 728
As at 31 December 2020, the Group also had income RZZEZZEF+A=+—H"
tax recoverable of RMB8 million (2019: RMB8 million) REBETEAAIWEMERAR
which were included under “prepaid expenses and other BeE B L(ZE—NF:ARKS
current assets”. BEL)  EEFtATENREE
HREEEIAT
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GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —Z —_TF+_A=+—HILtFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

29

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

0)

:N'K

)

() BEBZIELEMRT
8-

AMBRARPZEEH

REE

&:
Movement of each component of () BEEHEEE T nefE&E
deferred tax assets and liabilities SERDH 2 EEH
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FRARGAETBARRKE
recognised in the consolidated statement of RZBEEKBEE /(BF)
financial position and the movements during the Z AR -E‘ NEBWNT
year are as follows:
Undistributed
profits of PRC
and overseas Revaluation
Accelerated  subsidiaries, surplus from
tax associate and Deferred business
depreciation  joint ventures income Others  combination Total
FERENE
NE - BERT
mE REELEZ REEKEH
RERE RABAE EEW# Htt 2EfRH aE
RMB'million RMB'million ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million
ARBEET AREBER ARKBERN ARKEERL AREEENT ARKBER
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NF-F-A (358) (495) 263 540 - (50)
Currency translation differences ~ SMER 25 &) @ - - - )
Acquisition through business BREBAET
combination g - - - 66 (185) (119)
(Charged)/credited to the REABETR (1R
consolidated profit or loss #% 43) (105) © 5 - (145)
Credited to other REMEZEREER
comprehensive income - - - (12) - (12)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+ZA
=+-8 404) 602) 261 599 (185) (331)
A 1 January 2020 R-Z-E5-F-R (404) (602) 261 599 (185) (331)
Currency tranglation differences ~ EHENEE 1 2 - - - 3
Acquisition through business BREBAGED
combination (Note 34) U (Wi 3E34) - - - (21) (128) (149)
Transfer to disposal group EREHBARED
classified as held-for-sale EZWWERT
(Note 35) (Hi5£35) 373 98 - @ - 469
(Charged)/credited to the REABET(HR)/
consolidated profit or loss i) (75) (47) (136) 128 - (130)
Credited to other REMZEAKZES
comprehensive income - - - (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZE+2A
=t+-8 (105) (549) 125 698 (313) (144)
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29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 29 %S EISRRP2FEH

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) (48)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) BERZEENEEE
(Continued) REafE: (&)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) 4RE BRI KGR
statement of financial position
2020 2019
—®-®®  —E-AF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEERETT
Representing: 15
Deferred tax assets EEFEIBEE 1,294 1,366
Deferred tax liabilities EREBIBEE (1,438) (1,697)
(144) (331)
30 COMMITMENTS 30 KiE
Capital commitments B AR E
2020 2019
= —TAF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREBETT
Contracted but not provided for: BRIHNERELHRBE:
Oil field development costs MERZEER - 151
Other property, plant and equipment HEMmE WEL&E 927 896
927 1,047
Authorised but not contracted for: EHEERTH:
Oil field development costs MHEREER 5 453
Other property, plant and equipment HibE - WEKZE 543 877
548 1,330

204 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

31 OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT

Leng Jiapu Contract

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract signed in 1997, the Group
agreed to acquire 70% of the production sharing interest
for RMB1,008 million and to fund its share of cost of the
development carried out for the realisation of oil production
(the “Development Operations”) in the area as defined in the
Leng Jiapu Contract (the “LJP Contract Area”), at an estimated
cost of US$65.5 million (approximately RMB474 million) in
the first two years of the development period and be further
responsible for 70% of the development cost after the first
two years, in exchange for a 70% share in the oil production
from the LJP Contract Area.

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group shall bear
70% of the costs required for the Development Operations in
the LJP Contract Area which shall be allocated (after deduction
of local taxes and enterprise income tax) firstly towards
operating costs recovery and thereafter in the proportion of
70% to the Group and 30% to PetroChina towards investment
recovery and profit.

The Leng Jiapu Contract provides twenty consecutive years
of production sharing from the date of commencement of
commercial production and will expire on 31 December 2023.

In connection with the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group has
also entered into an Entrustment Contract with an operational
entity owned and operated by CNPC, whereby the latter is
entrusted to take up the responsibility as an operator. Under
the Entrustment Contract, a Joint Development Management
Organisation was established for the performance of the
contractual responsibilities under the operatorship.

31

HEHERSKEE
BAREARE

BEZRITR—NNEEHNLRREAR -
AEERZRET0% Z EMDRIELS -
EEARK1,008B 8T WEERZ
FEBREARMATEZHWE(IEREAR
e ) REEABE®R(FHEEZE]D
EEZHAERA EMFEREH G
AT BB65.58 BRI (HARKATAT
B WINBAEEMFEI0%ZH
B LREAREASRHIE70%
ZEMRE -

BEBELSFXEAR AEEAZLRE
ERMEAREEXREEDKNHAT
ZT0%MRA - EED I (KHKREH
B R EMERER) EARKE L
PR B R AR S B A B R R 70%
B130% 2 LBl 5 R R E X
AR Re BREREY A

REBERABRT MR EHEEZEB
Bt EEs It AmEE T B
R-E-—=F+-_A=+—HEMW -

AEBTRLKESREE—EhHE
OHEEEERETEECXBER
RIMERFEAR Bt REEREA
BIERIEXENEE - RIEZFEAR -
ERVBERETRAR  BITEE
XEARBETZEE -
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31

32

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT 31 MHEMRS K& E(E)
(CONTINUED)
Leng Jiapu Contract (Continued) ARESEHE(E)
The summary of assets, liabilities and results for the year AKEENRGREMBEREMERBHEAARN
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in relation EERAREBERAZERCEE B
to the Group’s interest in the Leng Jiapu Contract is as follows: BEREEMPMDAT:
2020 2019
S 2 ;3 —ET-NnF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEERETT
(i) Results for the year (i) XTEEXEE
Income WA 657 973
Expenses 53 (810) (843)
(i) Assets and liabilities (i) EEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE 394 339
Current assets mMENEE 541 653
Current liabilities mEAE (169) (73)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE - -
Net assets BEEFE 766 919
(iii) Capital commitments (iii) FAREIE
Contracted but not provided for EETAERIELEE - 151

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CNPC, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is a
state-controlled enterprise directly controlled by the PRC
government. Related parties include CNPC and its subsidiaries
(together, the “CNPC Group”), other state-owned enterprises
and their subsidiaries which the PRC government has control,
joint control or significant influence over, the entities which the
Group is able to control, jointly control or exercise significant
influence over, key management personnel of the Company
and CNPC and their close family members and any entity,
of any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group’s parent.
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the following is a
summary of significant related party transactions entered into
in the ordinary course of business in both continuing and
discontinued operations between the Group and its related
parties during the years and balances arising from related
party transactions at the end of the years indicated below:

(@ Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and
joint ventures

The Group has extensive transactions with other
companies in the CNPC Group. Due to these
relationships, it is possible that the terms of the
transactions between the Group and other members of
the CNPC Group are not the same as those that would
result from transactions with other related parties or
wholly unrelated parties.

The principal related party transactions with the CNPC
Group and associates and joint ventures of the Group
which were carried out in the ordinary course of
business, are as follows:

(i) The Group entered into (i) the Leng Jiapu Contract
with the CNPC Group in 1997 and (i) certain
supplemental agreements, including a sixth
supplemental agreement on 29 November 2017
for connected transactions for the three years
ending 31 December 2020, for the purpose of
renewing the terms of the previously signed master
agreement and supplemental agreements.

Under the Leng Jiapu Contract and the master
agreement, a framework for a range of products
and services to be procured from the CNPC Group
to the Group and vice versa including oil and gas
products, general products and services, financial
services and rental services is provided.

32 ABA XS (E

BREEMERREMEORM ZH
B ER 2SN NEEEERRE TR
FARBELEEBRERLEFEL
EERB - BREBBEANTILZER
MBI RGN ERABEALRSE
EZ BB

7 5 B8] B A SR [ EL A R B R )
BREZORZHNEBHE - AR

HEHEREFR AREEPREEE
i BX B 2 R] 2 B B9 32 5 16 5K Al e
EHMEAR T KEEERALZ
B RS ERERTR °

AR ERE R AR E 2B E QR
MEBLENTE@BBAIRST)
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LI

() AEEGR—NNEFER
HEBRT AR EA R &)
FUATHEAEHZERER
—F—tF+—A=1+NH
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Tt HI=ZAFEBEER
SHENDEBRGE) - A
BEIRRIE BN E LA
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

@)

Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and

joint ventures (Continued)

(i) (Cont

inued)

Provision of products by the CNPC Group
to the Group amounted to approximately
RMB56,960 million (2019: RMB35,821 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Provision of services by the CNPC Group
to the Group amounted to approximately
RMB6,777 million (2019: RMB9,410 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Provision of products by the Group to the
CNPC Group amounted to approximately
RMB3,335 million (2019: RMB5,653 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Provision of services by the Group to the
CNPC Group amounted to approximately
RMB15,285 million (2019: RMB16,486 million),
which mainly includes natural gas pipeline
transmission services and LNG gasification
and unloading services provided by the
Group, for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 32 BIE AKX 5 (48)

(a) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates and (@ EAFhEE - -B=408
joint ventures (Continued) REBLE¥2RS ()
(i) The Group has entered into agreements for (i) AEBEEF L RAEE

the sales of natural gas with certain associates AETHERAIREEDHEH
and joint ventures of the Group amounting to EXAR  REZ-Z=F
approximately RMB1,179 milion and RMB522 FT+-A=1T—HILFEH»
million (2019: RMB727 million and RMB23 million), AEIBAREIIT9OB ELR
respectively, for the year ended 31 December AR#225E T (ZZE— N
2020. FARBIBETEA
R¥23EETT) °
The above transactions in (i) and (i) constituted R Ez2RSEE E
connected transactions in accordance with Chapter MR FUAZEEKBEER
14A of the Listing Rules. Z
(i) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, amounts iy RZZZFTFRZFT-NF
due from and to CNPC Group, associates and +=ZHA=+—8" JEH&&J?&?
joint ventures of the Group, which are unsecured NP hER KXEEZ
and interest-free, except borrowings, loans to Hﬁ?‘%@j&/\ﬁmizlﬁ
an associate, loans to joint ventures and lease H(REE BEXRT—HH
liabilities, are included in the following accounts /NG /\m?éﬁmi)}
captions and summarised as follows: fﬂ EaBEMNAEERLR
CBEFATIIEEIBER
jﬂﬁ% Lan T
2020 2019
gy ;3 —T-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR ARBBETT
Intangible and other BELREMIERBEE
non-current assets 167 422
Accounts receivable JE UK BR 3R 1,338 1,020
Prepaid expenses and TART R R H At )R & B
other current assets 2,188 519
Accounts payable and ENERKLETEE
accrued liabilities 6,928 5,746
Borrowings BE 18,375 18,713
Lease liabilities HE&E 48 40
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 32 BB 53X 5 (4&)
(b) Key management compensation b)) FEEEBEZHS
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBET
Salaries and allowances Hekilse 3 4
Retirement benefits — defined BRIKEF - REHEKETE
contribution scheme - -
3 4
(c) Transactions with other state-controlled c EPEHEHMCEFTEREZ
entities in the PRC X5
Apart from the aforementioned transactions and the bR 5REPHER - BE
transactions with CNPC Group, associates and joint NAIREBELE RPN K&

ventures, the Group has transactions with other state-
controlled entities include but not limited to () sales
and purchases of goods and services; (i) purchases of
assets; (iii) lease of assets; and (iv) bank deposits and
borrowings.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business.
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33 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker which is determined as the Executive Directors of the
Company.

The Group organises its business around products and
services. From the products and services perspective, the
Group is engaged in a broad range of oil and gas related
activities and derives its revenue from its four operating
segments: Natural Gas Sales, Sales of LPG, LNG Processing
and Terminal and Exploration and Production.

The composition of reportable segments of the Group has
changed in the year ended 31 December 2020 following
the potential disposal of discontinued operations (Note 35).
Reportable segments are aligned with financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s executive management.

Due to such a change in the reportable segments, the
previously reported segment results for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been restated to be comparable with
the revised segmentation approach as required by HKFRS 8
Operating Segments.

The Natural Gas Sales segment is engaged in the retail sales,
distribution and trading of various natural gas products. The
Sales of LPG segment is engaged in the wholesales and
retail sales of various LPG products. LNG Processing and
Terminal segment is engaged in the processing, unloading,
storing, gasification and entrucking of LNG. The Exploration
and Production segment is engaged in the exploration,
development, production and sales of crude oil and natural
gas.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s profit/(loss)
before income tax expense, share of profits less losses of
associates and joint ventures (“segment results”).

Segment assets exclude deferred and current taxes, other
financial assets, investments in associates and joint ventures,
as all of which are managed on a central basis.

Corporate income and expenses, net, mainly refers to interest
income earned from cash and cash equivalents, net exchange
gains/losses, general and administrative expenses and interest
expenses incurred at corporate level.

Corporate assets mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents
held at corporate level.
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33 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 33 WMILER(ME
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit and AHERREFREENE
assets iR

2020 2019
= —TAF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER ARBERETT
(Restated)
(E75))
Reportable segment profit A 3R 45 AR B 05 A
Profit before income tax expense from &KL EKH
continuing operations BPTIS R B R AR A 8,107 7,014
Income tax expense FTiSti& A (2,313) (2,405)
Profit for the year from continuing REREEBFRNEF
operations 5,794 4,609
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIEFELEED
operations F N & F 3,938 4,962
Profit for the year F A F 9,732 9,571
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEET ARBAEERT
Reportable segment assets AHRERHREE
Continuing operations BELEE
Segment assets TR % & E 99,506 90,296
Investment in associates REEZNR 28 E 6,186 5,712
Investment in joint ventures REELEZERE 3,348 3,203
Deferred tax assets BELEHRIBEE 1,294 1,366
Income tax recoverable A U [ Fr 15 F% 8 8
Other financial assets HithemEE 239 202
Discontinued operations ERIEFERLEER
Segment assets* REBE E* 44,407 47,110
Total assets BEE 154,988 147,897
* The segment assets of discontinued operations as at 31 December * RZEZEF+ZA=+—H BRLE

2020 is represented as assets associated with a disposal group BREEBOIREE AT RRAR
classified as held-for-sale in the consolidated statement of financial NESEAIFEHEZEEHABMBEZE
position. = o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Neither the Group’s revenue is derived from nor the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the place of domicile of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of
approximately RMB18,620 million (2019: RMB22,139 million) is
derived from one (2019: one) customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue. The revenue
is attributable to the Natural Gas Sales, Sales of LPG, LNG
Processing and Terminal and Exploration and Production
segments.

ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, PetroChina Kunlun
Gas Co., Ltd (“Kunlun Gas”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into equity transfer agreements (the
“Agreements”) to acquire equity interests in 22 entities at a
total cash consideration of RMB1,486 million (the “Acquisition”).
Upon the completion of the Acquisition, 22 entities (the
“acquired entities”) have become the subsidiaries of Kunlun
Gas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

34 ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED) 34 UREE (4])

RUBERNWBEEEASR 2 H 5

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

acquired entities at the Acquisition date were as follows: BEERBEZATFEMT:
RMB’million
ARBEBETT
Property, plant and equipment Y- BENEE 4,211
Investments in joint ventures REBREZRE 46
Intangible and other non-current assets mRENEMIERESEE 518
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 1
Inventories BB 41
Accounts receivable JE W BR 3R 184
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ERNFREEMRBEE 456
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHBHIER 694
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ERNERKREFEE (1,259)
Short-term borrowings HEEE (1,085
Long-term borrowings KEEE (1,238)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (150)
Other liabilities HinEE (67)
Fair value of identifiable net assets EHRBAURANFEEZATE
acquired 2,358
Non-controlling interests FE ¥ ) 1 A 2= (1,047)
Goodwill kS 175
Total consideration BB 1,486
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired BoBEWERENAEEEER (694)
Net cash outflow HEREFEHE 792
Apart from net cash outflow for the acquisition of the acquired B LT B 4 U B EENRESREF

entities of RMB792 million, the Group also repaid consideration
payable for entities acquired in 2019 amounted to RMB425

million during the year.

The gross contractual amounts of accounts receivables at
the date of acquisition were amounted to RMB184 million. No
contractual cash flows was expected to be uncollectable at

the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

34 ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

The non-controlling interests recognised at the date of
acquisition was measured by reference to the proportionate
shares of the fair value of the net identifiable assets at the
date of acquisition.

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the benefit arising from
the exploration of new markets in Henan, Hebei, Jiangxi and
other cities and synergies expected to be achieved from
integrating the entities into the Group’s existing businesses.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purpose.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB7 million have been
charged to selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Included in the revenue and profit for the year ended 31
December 2020 are RMB2,814 million and RMB25 million,
respectively, contributed from the acquired entities since the
Acquisition date.

Had the Acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020,
revenue and profit contributed from the acquired entities for
the year would have been RMB4,200 million and RMB9 million,
respectively.

2019 business combination

On 15 August 2019, Kunlun Gas, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into equity transfer agreements to
acquire equity interests in seventeen entities at a total cash
consideration of RMB1,640 million (the “2019 Acquisition”). The
2019 Acquisition was completed on 31 August 2019. Upon
the completion of the 2019 Acquisition, fifteen entities have
become the subsidiaries of Kunlun Gas while two entities have
become the associates of Kunlun Gas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 35 BERILERERESER

On 22 December 2020, the Group entered into an agreement
with PipeChina, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to sell and PipeChina has conditionally
agreed to purchase the Company’s equity interests in
Beijing Pipeline and Dalian LNG at a base consideration of
approximately RMB40,886 million (subject to the adjustments
according to the price adjustment mechanism as set out
in the agreement). Each of Beijing Pipeline, which used
to be reported under the Group’s “Natural Gas Pipeling”
segment, and Dalian LNG, which used to be reported
under the Group’s “LNG Processing and Terminal” segment,
represented a separate major line of the Group’s business.
Consequently, Beijing Pipeline and Dalian LNG were presented
as discontinued operations with the associated assets and
liabilities presented as a disposal group classified as held-for-
sale in these financial statements.

Financial information relating to the discontinued operations is
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 35 BERIEREREER(E

(@) Result of the discontinued operations @ BERLESELKEEK2
E4
Profit for the year from the discontinued operations is REERIEFERLEER Z2FNR
analysed as follows: B DT
Beijing
2020 Pipeline Dalian LNG Total
—E-EHF EtHEREEQAT KELNGLF et
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARBBERT ARBEER
Revenue WA 9,022 1,054 10,076
Other gains, net Hiplezs o F58 238 4 242
Interest income B YA 15 24 39
Purchases, services and A RS R EAb
others (1,861) (137) (1,998)
Employee compensation & BBl & A A
costs (370) (44) (414)
Depreciation, depletion and  #T& - B & #84
amortisation (2,320) (241) (2,561)
Selling, general and HE - — MR
administrative expenses EREA (36) 2 (38)
Taxes other than income BR PTIS B ASNZ T 18
taxes (74) (18) (92)
Interest expenses FMEZH (117) - (117)
Profit before taxation B %2 A 4 7 4,497 640 5,137
Income tax expense Frigti& A (1,046) (153) (1,199)
Profit for the year FRERN 3,451 487 3,938
Attributable to: AT A L FEAS
Owners of the Company 2NN S 2,117 366 2,483
Non-controlling interests I 42 I 1 A 25 1,334 121 1,455
Profit for the year FRER 3,451 487 3,938
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 35 BERLEKERESER(E)
(@) Result of the discontinued operations @ ERILBHEEEREZ
(Continued) EE(\
Beijing
2019 Pipeline Dalian LNG Total
—E-hE EHZEELAT KELNGAT ot

RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARWEERT ARWEER

Revenue WA 10,144 1,375 11,519
Other gains, net Efb s - F58 307 13 320
Interest income NS N 9 — 9
Purchases, services and R R R EAM

others (2,075) (119) (2,194)
Employee compensation EEM S KA

costs (348) 43) (891)
Depreciation, depletion and ~ #T& - 185 & # 44

amortisation (2,129) (2406) (2,375)
Selling, general and HE - — MR

administrative expenses EREEA (69) (12 (81)
Taxes other than income BRETIS B AN BEIB

taxes (63) (24) (87)
Interest expenses FEZ I (89) — (89)
Profit before taxation B 15 B i A 5,687 944 6,631
Income tax expense FTiStHi&E M (1,431) (238) (1,669)
Profit for the year FRER 4,256 706 4,962
Attributable to: ATA T :

Owners of the Company KRR E 2,600 528 3,128

Non-controlling interests FE 18 ) 14 2 1,656 178 1,834
Profit for the year FREF 4,256 706 4,962
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35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Cash flows from the discontinued operations (b)

Cash flows for the year from the discontinued operations

are analysed as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

35 ERLEBEAKERKER)

REECRLKEGHABER
BzRERE

KECRIEFEBREEBZFA
BenEMNWT:

Beijing
2020 Pipeline Dalian LNG Total
—E-EHF EEREEQAT KELNGALT et
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARYBEERT ARB®BER
Net cash generated from REEBEEZRS
operating activities FRE 5,954 668 6,622
Net cash used in investing REXBFAzZRE
activities FEE (1,028) (30) (1,058)
Net cash used in financing mMEESHFACZES
activities HRE (5,531) (638) (6,169)
Net cash outflows Bent F58 (605) - (605)
Beijing
2019 Pipeline Dalian LNG Total
—E-NEF EEREEQAT KELNGLF et
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEERT ARWEERT ARWEER

Net cash generated from REEBEEZRS

operating activities R 6,329 986 7,315
Net cash used in investing KREXBACES

activities B (3,378) (388) (3,766)
Net cash used in financing MEFBAZRE S

activities B (2,765) (598) (3,363)
Net cash inflows WamAFE 186 — 186

ERERERAR —E=-ssggRs 221
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REMBHRRWE
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35 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 35 BERLEKERESER(E)
(c) Assets and liabilities associated with the  BEoEAFFHEZEN
disposal group classified as held-for-sale ;E.%E BB EENR &
E
The assets and liabilities associated with discontinued RZE-FEF+_HA=+—HHE

operations and presented as the disposal

group

classified as held-for-sale as at 31 December 2020 are

EREFELEXBHEBLZT
BOBRFFELEZHEMARZ

as follows: BEERBEHINWGOT:
Beijing
Pipeline  Dalian LNG Total
LHREBELA KELNGAF @it
NOTE RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
i ARMEBEERT AR¥EER ARXEER
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERHR 16 41,058 2,536 43,594
Intangible and other non-current & & EA IR E
assets BE 83 20 103
Inventories FE 159 160
Accounts receivable & W BR 3% 25 - 25
Prepaid expenses and other current T 3 & E 47 &)
assets BE 107 108
Cash and cash equivalents RekHE&EHEEE 24(a) M7 - 47
Assets associated with the HoBABELHER
disposal group classified as HEARHEZ
held-for-sale BE 41,849 2,558 44,407
Accounts payable and accrued EREREFREFERE
liabilities 3,147 63 3,210
Income tax payable FERFTS 49 - 49
Other tax payable Hith e3¢ 18 46 33 79
Borrowings EE 6,500 - 6,500
Lease liabilities HERE 33 4 37
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE 29 403 66 469
Liabilities associated with the HEAEAFEHEZ
disposal group classified as HEARHEZ
held-for-sale g8 10,178 166 10,344
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36 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 36 3R &HEH

37

38

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

PERIOD

Pursuant to the potential disposal of discontinued operations
(Note 35), the agreement entered into with PipeChina for the
disposal of 60% equity interest in Beijing Pipeline and 75%
equity interest in Dalian LNG was approved by shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 12 March 2021.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to the disclosure requirement in respect of the changes in
segment reporting and discontinued operations set out in Note
33 and Note 35, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and will be submitted
to the shareholders for adoption at the 2021 Annual General
Meeting to be held on 26 May 2021 (Wednesday).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

39 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39 FEMBAT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which ARRZZEZTF+A=+—Hz*x
are limited liability companies at 31 December 2020, are as EWNBRARI(BHAEBEREERR)ZHF
follows: BT

Percentage of

Particulars of issued equity interest

Place of incorporation/  and paid up capital/ Type of attributable to

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group

AR/ BERTRBRERE/ KEEELS

MEAR LM B 3L 45 B aMERZFHE EEERESR BREAL

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in the PRC

ETEER CERHEERH

Beckbury International Limited British Virgin Islands “(BVI") US$1  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
KERAES (= BREFRTF (P 2E ()

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Peru

ERBOR LERHERH

SAPET Development Corporation United States of America 100 ordinary shares  Limited liability company ~ 50.00% (note (ii))
("SAPET) xH no par value BREFAH (B 3 i)
100 E @R EEE
SAPET Development Peru Inc. United States of America 100 ordinary shares  Limited liability company ~ 50.00% (note (i)
e no par value BEREMAF GELD)
1000k & R EEE

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Thailand

EZABR LERHEERH

Gentral Place Gompany Limited Hong Kong 160 ordinary shares  Limited liability company 100.00%
Bk 160/ & i & BREFRTF

Sino-U.S. Petroleum Inc. United States of America US$1,000  Limited liability company 100.00%
e 1,000% 7T BREFAA

CNPCHK (Thailand) Limited Thailand Baht100 million  Limited liability company 100.00%
RE 1008 8% % BREFRTF

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Azerbaijan

EMERERMR LERHERH

Fortunemate Assets Limited BVI US$1  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
KERAES 1ET BREEAA (P 2E ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

39 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39 FEMBEAT(E

Particulars of issued

Percentage of
equity interest

Place of incorporation/  and paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
SmEL/ BETRBRRE/ AEBELL
MEARER B3 it B aMERZFHE EEERER BHAOM
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan
ERERTEMR £ERHERH
CNPC International (Caspian) Limited ~ BVI US$100  Limited liability company 60.00%
EEREUES 100E 7T BEREERA
Natural gas business
RRREH
Kunlun Gas PRC RMB8,560 million  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
ERMR B ARHB8560EE T BEREERA GE()
Xinjiang Xinjie Co., Ltd. PRC RMB4,370 million  Limited liability company ~ 98.50% (note (i))
MEHERPERAR e ARB4II0BET BREARAF (P22 ()
ERARRRNDERATA PRC RMB2,082 millon  Limited liabilty company ~ 77. 88% (note (i)
HE ARE2082EETT BREFAF (B3
CNPC Shennan Qil Technology PRC RMB3,102 million  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i))
Development Co., Ltd. i ARESI2BE T BRETAF (B3 ()
BETRAEARETREERAA
Kunlun Energy Investment Shandong PRC RMB1,700 million  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
Company Limited i AREITO0EE T BREERA (P £E()
EmaeRRER)ERAA]
Huagang Gas Group Company Limited PRC RMB1,500 million  Limited liability company ~ 51.00% (note (i)
EEMREEARAT B ARB15008E T BREARTF (B &)
mIIERREREFEAF PRC RMB900 million  Limited liabilty company ~ 51.00% (note (i)
e ARBI00EET BEREEDA (B &)
HEBRERERAA PRC RMBS500 million  Limited liability company ~ 94.00% (note (i)
e ARES00EET BREERA (B ()
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39 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 39 FEMBATI(E)

Particulars of issued

Percentage of
equity interest

Place of incorporation/  and paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
SMEYL/ BETRBRRE/ AEBELY
MEARER B 3L 3t 2 aMERZFHE EEERER BHBOM
Natural gas business (Continued)
RRAREH (H)
EREREBARAF PRC RMB195 million  Limited liabilty company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
hE ARBIBEET BREERA (B £E()
Kunlun Energy (Liaoning) Company PRC RMB192 million  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i))
Limited H ARBINEET BEREERR (B EE()
EmaR(EE)ERAT
EmERARERAR PRC RMB48 million  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
il ARBBBEET BEREEDA (B &)
EmeR(HB)BRAA PRC RMB105 million  Limited liabilty company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
M ARBI05B 8T BREFRTF (P EE ()
Cangzhou Gas Limited Company PRC RMB200 million  Limited liability company ~ 51.00% (note (i)
Petrochina i ARBA0EET BREERA (P £E()
BN R RERAR]
Petrochina Tianjin Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd. PRC RMB255 million  Limited liability company ~ 100.00% (note (i)
TERRERAREBERAR HE ARBBSEET BREARTF (P25 ()
Jiangsu LNG PRC RMB3,166 million  Limited liability company ~ 55.00% (note (i))
LELNG HE ARESI66EET BREERR (B EE()
Jingtang Co. PRC RMB3,150 million  Limited liability company 51.00%
REAT HE AREII0EET BREFAF
Dalian LNG PRC RMB2,600 million  Limited liability company ~ 75.00% (note {iii))
RELNGATF i ARE2600E BT BREERR (B 2 i)
Beijing Pipeline PRC RMB21,408 million  Limited liability company ~ 60.00% (note (iii))
EtREERF HE ARE21,408E BT BREERA (B K i)
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GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

39 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

Shares are held directly by the Company.

In accordance with the share purchase agreement dated 8
September 2001, the Group has the rights to variable returns from
its involvement with SAPET and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over SAPET. As a result, SAPET is
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company.

Since SAPET Development Peru Inc. is wholly-owned by SAPET,
it is also accounted for as the subsidiary of the Company.

The entities are classified under discontinued operations during the
year.

(i)

39 FEMBAT(EF)

MARBEEZFAERD -

RIEBMHA-ZSE—FLANBZE
Mtk - AN SR B G R 2 B SAPET
E¥EFMEBAZRE®R  THEENE
MEKSAPETHE B DM 2% %
O - Eitk - SAPETH R AARRE 2
Mg aa -

SAPET Development Peru Inc.H
SAPET2 B A - MEATTKE /RER
AlZMB AR -

ZEERBFRNIACKREFBERE:
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40 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

At 31 December 2020, the Group had interest in the following
principal associates:

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital/
registered capital
BRTRBRERE/
dMEXZFHE

Place of incorporation/
establishment
gMAYL/

Lt

Name of associate

BENTEM

= =

40 FEBENT

i

%

Ft+-A=1+—H A&H

RIATE2MERRHEREE:

Percentage of
equity interest

Type of attributable to

legal entity the Group
KEEEN

EEERER BREAL

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan

ERERFHYR LEREERH

Aktobe Kazakhstan 8,946,470 common
BMERDA shares of 1,500
tenge each (note (i))
8,946,470 SR EE
15008 X 2 &i# i
(M EE()
Natural gas distribution in the PRC
EVERERRR
China City Natural Gas Investment PRC RMB1,000 million
Group Co., Ltd. HE ARE10006E T
AT RRAREEBERAA
Qingdao Port Dongjiakou Liquid PRC RMB710 million
Chemical Terminal Co., Ltd. FE ARBETOBET
EEBERORBIIBEERAF
Notes:

(i) Issued and paid up share capital of Aktobe consists of 8,946,470
ordinary shares and 943,955 preference shares. The preference
shares give their holders the right to participate in general

shareholders’ meetings without voting rights generally.

The effective equity interest of Aktobe attributable to the Group is
15.07% as the 25.12% equity interest in Aktobe is held by a non-
wholly owned subsidiary in which the Group holds a 60% equity
interest.

(ifi) Shares held directly by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

41 PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES M FEFELE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had interest in the RZZFZZEF+A=+—H ~5H
following principal joint ventures: RUATEEGECEEAES

Percentage of

Particulars of issued equity interest

Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ Type of attributable to

Name of joint venture establishment registered capital legal entity the Group

HMRYL/ BEETRARRE/ rEEEN

RELEZR B 3L 3 B afMERzFHE EEERER BREAL

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Oman

ENEMR LERHEERM

Mazoon Petrogas (BVI) Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary shares  Limited liability company 50.00% (note)
KBRS of US$1 each BEREFEADF i3]

50,000 R E &

1ETZERR

Production of petro-chemical products in the PRC

REBEERMILIER
EEENEHRERAR PRC RMB223 million  Limited liability company 25.00% (note)
e ANR¥23EET BREERA (M)

Natural gas business

RRRER

Xi'an Qinggang Clean Energy PRC RMB337 million  Limited liability company 50.00% (note)
Technology Co., Ltd.

BRER R RERAT B ARBITBET BEREERA (M 2E)

Binhai New Energy Co., Ltd. PRC RMB229 million  Limited liability company 50.00% (note)

RERNBRBESHEBREBAR HE ARE29EET BREFAH i3]

Jilin Jigang Clean Energy Co., Ltd. PRC RMB657 million  Limited liability company 50.00% (note)

EREEFRHRERAR B ARB6TEE T BEREERA (M 2E)

Note: The shares of the above principal joint ventures are held directly MsE: LETZEEECENROBAEAAT

by the Company. BHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

42

COMPANY — LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 42 A TEHEBE HERRR
POSITION
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—B-%F —E-NF
+=A=1+-H +-A=+—8
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BT 5E AREEHER AREFET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BERRE 7 9
Investments in associates REERR 2K E 1,306 1,306
Investments in joint ventures REBELEZKRE 971 973
Investments in subsidiaries RINB AR ZKE 58,314 56,114
Loans to a subsidiary ERT—REHMBLAR - 4211
Other non-current assets HiERBEE 1 -
60,599 62,613
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid expenses and B KRR EMT
other current assets EE 3,325 5,218
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEREE 1,738 687
5,063 5,905
Total assets HMEE 65,662 68,518
Equity B &
Capital and reserves attributable to <72 7] IR 5 FE 45 R &K
owners of the Company RfEE
Share capital AR 25 7 71
Retained earnings BEAEN 26 19,508 17,779
Other reserves HAi & 26 35,993 35,993
55,572 53,843
Liabilities 8
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable and FERER R K
accrued liabilities EEtaE 918 1,013
Short-term borrowings REEE - 3,486
Income tax payable JERTETS 17 32
Lease liabilities ME&RE 2 2
937 4,533
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _TF+_A=+—HILFE

==

42 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 42 72\ S]JE mHEH ik n & (48)
POSITION (CONTINUED)

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
. —TNF
t=A=t-8 +ZA=+-H
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BT 5E AREEER AREBET
Non-current liabilities *¥REBEE

Long-term borrowings REEE 9,149 10,135
Lease liabilities HEEE 4 7
9,153 10,142

Total liabilities BEE __‘!(_):(_)?_0________________1_4__6_7_5__
Total equity and liabilities ERREBELAE 65,662 68,518
Net current assets RBEEFE 4,126 1,372
Total assets less current liabilities REERABAEE 64,725 63,985

43 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 43 HIERZKXIER AL

At 31 December 2020, the Directors consider the immediate RZZZZEF+_A=+—H R

parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be ABAEEEES AR REEEZERAL

PetroChina HK and CNPC which are incorporated in the BRPABEBSERARRPEAHE

BVI and established in the PRC, respectively. PetroChina, an CDRIREBE XS R EEM

intermediate holding company, produces financial statements Ao REAM - A—HEBEEERA

available for public use. Al REAIEARATERA 2B R
%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HilZ —_ T _TF + A=+ —HIEFE

44 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 4 BE_F_FF+_HA=+
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT —HIESFESHEMEILRE
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MEVMER] - FERIKEEN
DECEMBER 2020 ARER &

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZZUBRREMAH  BEg
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new R AEEBMEIEEET R —IEHER
standard, HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts, which are not yet BBV MEERNEITRIRESA]
effective for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which REBEZE-Z-_FTF+_A=+—HItF
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These FNMARER  MARKMNEZZVBER
developments include the following which may be relevant to = oo ?ﬁ%’ﬂ: BIEATAIEE AL
the Group. E BB 1EE]

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

RUTHES z2&BEBZ

HHBEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, 1 January 2021

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
BBV BEWMELRFEINR - DAL ERNFEI - BEAMBMEERNHTIHR - —E2-—%—H—H

Ei’éﬁﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁu RASE R BBV R EER E165 BRI AN FFEELFE

ZEER]

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

1 January 2022

BB HMEERIEIRUERT R H HL R 2 124 | T =F—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Intended Use

BB EBE6H BTN YE  BERKE  (FHEHZH < HigiHE] —T-__F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022

BER G ERFEITR (BT RNIEELSL — BT84 KA —T__F—H—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

1 January 2022

BEAVBRELEN - N\GFE_Z_TFRAHFELE —E-__%—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
ERGHERFEIRUET RIS EEER B I TE ] —T-=F—F—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

INFORMATION ON EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION
SEGMENT

In accordance with the Listing Rule 18.18, this section provides
supplemental information on oil and gas producing activities of the
Group.

Proved Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates

The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated proved
developed reserves and proved reserves as at December 2018,
2019 and 2020. The tables are formulated on the basis of reports
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton and Ryder Scott
Company, independent engineering consultancy companies.

FHMRELEERREZ2ERN

BiE T8 B E181818 - ANETIR (L H B A
EEMRAEEEZHNMITER -

PR B H R B G 5T

TRHINARBTRZZE—N\F - —_E—NF
M—Z_FTF+_AZEFHRACHEHE
RARPARE ZSEEBRDIBBEEILIERE
f& A Al DeGolyer and MacNaughton #1Ryder
Scott CompanyfF & 2 & mim & -

CRUDE OIL R d
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
FEAC MR KARE
fHE (L) (& &)
(million (million
barrels) barrels)
(BE®) (BE®)
Reserve as at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-_HA=1+—H
2= 49.3 64.9
2018 Revision ZE—N\FEF] 11.8 8.9
2018 Production —ET-)\FEE (13.8) (13.8)
Reserve as at 31 December 2018 R-E—)\F+-_HA=+—H
2= 47.3 60.0
2019 Revision ZE-NAFEF 6.8 8.8
2019 Production —E-NFEESE (13.7) (18.7)
Reserve as at 31 December 2019 RZE-NFE+—A=+—H
ZIHEE 40.4 55.1
2020 Revision —E-FFBE] 9.9 10.7
2020 Production —E-EFES (12.3) (12.3)
Reserve as at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H
2= 38.0 53.5

=
EB

RERERAE =2=
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

NATURAL GAS RXAR
Proved
developed
reserves Proved reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
PREAE BY & RARE
ER-ACE) (& 5t
(million cu feet) (million cu feet)
(BEBYAR) (BBYIAR)
Reserve as at 31 December 2017 R-E—tF+=-A=+—H
Zi#E 203,977.3 209,532.5
2018 Revision ZE-)N\FEF] 4,012.4 11,762.5
2018 Production —E-)\FEESE (33,389.9) (33,389.9)
Reserve as at 31 December 2018 R—ZE—N\F+=-A=+—H
22 174,599.8 187,905.1
2019 Revision —E-NFEF] 1,855.5 1,089.8
2019 Production —E-NFEE (32,926.1) (32,926.1)
Reserve as at 31 December 2019 R-E—-—hF+=-_A=+—H
Zi#E 143,529.2 156,068.8
2020 Revision ZEZFTFEF 5,954.7 9,435.9
2020 Production —ETFES (26,121.6) (26,121.6)
Reserve as at 31 December 2020 R-E-EF+-_A=+—H
ZE=E 123,362.3 139,383.1
Definition: BEx
The petroleum reserves are classified as follows: BREFEESBENAT:

Proved oil and gas reserves — Proved oil and gas reserves are
those quantities of oil and gas, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be
economically producible — from a given date forward, from known
reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions, operating
methods, and government regulations — prior to the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expire, unless evidence
indicates that renewal is reasonably certain, regardless of whether
deterministic or probabilistic methods are used for the estimation.
The project to extract the hydrocarbons must have commenced or
the operator must be reasonably certain that it will commence the
project within a reasonable time.

234  KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2020

RO HRFE — R\ BREESBRERY
EARMEEMNZNEARIEFRESER
E e ENBESIS R H) - BB IRFI A
TREENDN - KEEEE RN
- RBEE - (EXMBUTE SR - 7]
VAA 32 TE 2 &8 SRRl A8 07 AT B0 R A BX
B -RAACRRFERERIEXERAAEE
EEHANEEREAMIKGER -




(i)

(iv)

The areas of the reservoir considered as proved includes:

(A) The area identified by driling and limited by fluid contracts,
if any, and (B) Adjacent undrilled portions of the reservoir that
can, with reasonable certainty, be judged to be continuous
with it and to contain economically producible oil or gas on
the basis of available geoscience and engineering data.

In the absence of data on fluid contracts, proved quantities in
a reservoir are limited by the lowest known hydrocarbons (LKH)
as seen in a well penetration unless geoscience, engineering,
or performance data and reliable technology establishes a
lower contact with reasonable certainty.

Where direct observation from well penetrations has defined a
highest known oil (HKO) elevation and the potential exists for
an associated gas cap, proved oil reserves may be assigned
in the structurally higher portions of the reservoir only if
geoscience, engineering, or performance data and reliable
technology establish the higher contact with reasonable
certainty.

Reserves which can be produced economically through
application of improved recovery techniques (including, but
not limited to, fluid injection) are included in the proved
classification when:

(A) Successful testing by a pilot project in an area of the
reservoir with properties no more favourable than in the
reservoir as a whole, the operation of an installed program
in the reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or other evidence
using reliable technology establishes the reasonable certainty
of the engineering analysis on which the project or program
was based; and (B) The project has been approved for
development by all necessary parties and entities, including
governmental entities.

Existing economic conditions include prices and costs
at which economic producibility from a reservoir is to be
determined. The price shall be the average price during the
12-month period prior to the ending date of the period covered
by the report, determined as an unweighted arithmetic average
of the first-day-of-the-month price for each month within such
period, unless prices are defined by contractual arrangements,
excluding escalations based upon future conditions.

(i

=

(i)

(iv)

RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

Developed oil and gas reserves — Developed oil and gas reserves
are reserves of any category that can be expected to be recovered:

(0

Through existing wells with existing equipment and operating
methods or in which the cost of the required equipment is
relatively minor compared to the cost of a new well; and

Through installed extraction equipment and infrastructure
operational at the time of the reserves estimate if the extraction
is by means not involving a well.

Undeveloped oil and gas reserves — Undeveloped oil and gas
reserves are reserves of any category that are expected to be
recovered from new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing wells
where a relatively major expenditure is required from recompletion.

(0

(i

(i)

Reserves on undrilled acreage shall be limited to those directly
offsetting development spacing areas that are reasonably
certain of production when drilled, unless evidence using
reliable technology exists that establishes reasonable certainty
of economic producibility at greater distances.

Undrilled locations can be classified as having undeveloped
reserves only if a development plan has been adopted
indicating that they are scheduled to be drilled within five years,
unless the specific circumstances, justify a longer time.

Under no circumstances shall estimates for undeveloped
reserves be attributable to any acreage for which an
application of fluid injection or other improved recovery
technique is contemplated, unless such techniques have been
proved effective by actual projects in the same reservoir or
an analogous reservoir, or by other evidence using reliable
technology establishing reasonable certainty.
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

Results of Operations for Exploration and Production WEREEERREEEE
Segment
RMB’million
ARBBER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-_ZEF+-A=+—HLEE
Gross revenue KRN 1,226
Less: Inter-company adjustment AN RS -
Revenue from external customers REIIFHER 2 A 1,226
Segment results R ZEE (249)
Share of profits less losses of: JE A& 55 ) Rk 85 48 -
- Associates - B E QA (98)
- Joint ventures -5EhE 103
Profit before income tax expense bR AT 1S 7% & A A (244)
Segment results included: RIBEEBIE:
— Interest income - F BB A 8
- Depreciation, depletion and amortisation - E - BREREH (321)
- Interest expenses - MEXZH (1)
- Net exchange losses - EHEEFE (13)
RMB’million
AREBETT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZZ-hEF+ZA=+—HLFE
Gross revenue UL A 2,004
Less: Inter-company adjustment e ANIIETE S -
Revenue from external customers KREINEBEP WA 2,004
Segment results RI% & 250
Share of profits less losses of: JE A 5 ) Rk B 48 -
- Associates A WN 621
- Joint ventures -EEBRE 219
Profit before income tax expense bR BT 15 7% & A3 A 1,090
Segment results included: RIBEE BT
- Interest income - M EWA 9
- Depreciation, depletion and amortisation -E - -BEREHE (297)
- Interest expenses - MEXH -
- Net exchange losses - [EH BB R (37)

EREREARAE =
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RESERVE QUANTITIES INFORMATION

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and )% UxEg - BiiRBREEELE 2
Production: B 7N

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and ¥ ZWE HFERETHELECRE
Development Activities

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBETR AREBE T
The Group PINS
Property acquisition costs ES AR - -
Exploration costs B R B R - -
Development cost B B AR 13 130
Total S 13 130
Equity method investments AR E
Share of costs of property acquisition, DIhBERNRIRAEEDE
exploration and development of B ENEE - R R
associates and joint ventures fA 3 K A 476 652
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